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Message from
the Chairman of the Board

Year 2018 is the first year that TICON Industrial
Connection Public Company Limited changed its
fiscal period from 1% January — 31" December to 1
October — 30" September. In effect, the fiscal year
2018 will only account for a nine-month period starting
from 1* January 2018 to 30" September 2018.
Underlying the foregoing change, performance of
this year has been outstanding in terms of core
business growth, portfolio expansion into new
investment, organization re-structuring and operating
alignment with total dimension strategy to drive for a
sustainable growth in the long-run.

With reference to operating metrics over the year,
TICON has completed transferring “Built-to-Suit”
warehouses to new clients with total area approximately
70,000 sgm; and successfully embarked on an
“Asset Enhancement Initiative” plan to effectively
addressing clients’ demand and improving efficiency
of factory and warehouse utilization, thereby
resulting in higher take-up rates for overall asset
portfolio. Moreover, by the end of the year, TICON
has sold assets to TREIT with the amount equal to
Baht 1,693 million., which helps increase TICON
revenue stream and at the same time enhances
return of TREIT as well. For international investment
in ASEAN countries in 2018, TICON joint venture
company in Indonesia has invested in Ready-Built
warehouse for 10,000 sgm. and Built-to-Suit
warehouse for 40,000 sgm.; where occupancy rate
in the market has been almost as high as 100%.
Based on these achievements in core business
performance both domestic and abroad, TICON'’s

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform

revenue over a 9-month period in 2018 totaled at
Baht 3,817 million, with a reported net profit of
THB 668 million; reflecting a strong growth from the
previous 12-month period of 2017 by 83% and 38%
respectively.

In an attempt to expand business portfolio for a long
term sustainable growth, TICON has been well-supported
by “Fraser Property Group”, currently the Company’s
major shareholder, in soliciting potential business
partner to form joint investments into new businesses;
comprising development of hyperscale “Data
Centre” facility to providing shared rental space for
organization’s storage of business information; and
provision of “Co-Working Space” to provide rental
service for a shared workplace fully equipped with
high quality amenities. The new ventures will
enhance TICON'’s value proposition on top of
warehouse and factory for rent business in order to
meet the dynamics of customer’s requirement. Data
Centre business is the joint venture between TICON
and “ST Telemedia Global Data Center (STT
GDC)”, the world’s leading Data Centre provider
from Singapore with an investment proportion of
51% to 49%. This joint venture aims to build the first
large-scale Data Centre, situated strategically in the
midst of Bangkok metropolitan to cater for demand
of large enterprises domestically and internationally.
While Co-Working Space business is a joint venture
between TICON and “JustCo”, ASEAN'’s largest
Co-Working Space provider from Singapore with an
investment proportion of 51% to 49%. Currently the
joint venture company has opened its first Co-Working
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The Company is steering its roadmap to
become the country’s leading provider
of “Smart Industrial Platform” with
“Total Dimension” strategy execution
to enhance competitiveness

Space at AlA Sathon Tower, and its second location
at Capital Tower All Season Place with plans for
continuous expansion in high-profile central business
areas.

The business growth in 2018 has been positive with
key driving forces partly from the recovery of
domestic economy, while many government
infrastructure investments in the country have been
satisfactorily progressed in the past year with continued
massive funding over the next 3-5 years.
Moreover, “Eastern Economic Corridor (EEC)”
project has become more concrete with government
incentivized benefit scheme to draw foreign direct
investment (FDI) and greater business expansion to
the country, alongside Thailand 4.0 economic model
that serves as a catalyst for accelerating an
economic growth by fostering the new era of
digitization across key industrial sectors, leading to
growing demand for factory and warehouse spaces
together with data center service and co-working
facility.

In order to tap on widening opportunities and cope
with changes of digital disruption, TICON has
planned to enhance its business potential by
acquiring good quality assets and land plots in
strategic locations, as well as making series of
investments in new technology businesses to ride
out the global trends. The Company is steering its
roadmap to become the country’s leading provider
of “Smart Industrial Platform” with “Total Dimension
Strategy” execution to enhance competitiveness, by
focusing on customer needs, optimizing facilities
and services to address changing preferences,
utilizing innovation, as well as adopting best practices
in operating and financing procedures, and
maintaining a healthy balance of revenue stream
between recurring income from rent services and

asset monetization to TREIT. Equally important, the
Company continues to develop a robust management
framework with adequate internal control system
and adherence to good corporate governance
principle, taking into consideration the environmental
conservation, society well-being, and all stakeholders’
fair treatment.

TICON'’s Board of Directors and | would like to
applaud our management team and our employees
for their professionalism and unity which brought
TICON to an exceptional achievement in 2018, as
evident from a record-high of dividend to shareholders
at 0.27 THB per share, equivalent to a payout ratio
of 74.2% from 2018 net profit. As the organization
evolves towards a clearly defined direction, all
personnel are committed to deliverables and fully
supportive to business innovation and strategic
transformation in tandem with the dynamic
of global technology. With the foregoing developments,
| believe that TICON will continue to grow in the
future with stability and sustainability.

Lastly TICON’s Board of Directors and | would like
to express thankfulness to our shareholders, our
businesses alliances, as well as TREIT shareholders
for having trust and giving a continuous support to
TICON business for all this time.

/

Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom
Chairman of the Board
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Report of the Audit
Committee

To Shareholders of TICON Industrial Connection
Public Company Limited

The Audit Committee of TICON Industrial Connection
Public Company Limited which was appointed by
the Company’s Board of Directors consisting of
independent directors who are well-qualified and
have experience in certain areas including accounting,
finance, business administration and law. They are
independent and qualified to review the reliability of
financial reports according to the Stock Exchange of
Thailand (SET). Currently, there are 4 members,
namely, Mr. Threekwan Bunnag (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom,
Mr. Chatchaval Jiaravanon and Mr. Tithiphan
Chuerboonchai.

The Audit Committee has completely and
independently performed its duties in accordance
with the Charter of the Audit Committee, according
to the requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand,
with an emphasis on complying to the principles of
good corporate governance, having a good internal
control system and promoting for a preventive
inspection approach which covers risk management
and protection of all stakeholders’ interests on an
equal basis. In 2018, the Company has changed its
fiscal year end by September 30 to be consistent
with the Group’s business. Therefore, the Company’s
new accounting period for this year covers a period
of 9 months for the first time starting from 1 January
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2018, ending September 30, 2018. In this year, the
Audit Committee had a total of 6 Audit Committee
meetings attended by the Audit Committee as
follows:

Attendance

Committee Name Position / Total

meetings

Mr. Threekwan Bunnag Chairman of the | 6/6
Audit Committee

Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom | Audit Committee 6/6

Mr. Chatchaval Jiaravanon | Audit Committee 4/6

Mr. Tithiphan Chuerboon- | Audit Committee 6/6

chai

The aforementioned meeting was a mutual discussion
between the management, internal audit and external
auditor to present information, listen to opinions and
useful suggestions to review the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal control system, reliability of
financialreports, compliance with laws and regulations
related to the Company’s operations, as well as
reviewing the related transactions or transactions
that may have conflict of interest. This includes
meeting with an auditor without the management of
the Company one time to ensure that the auditor
has freedom to determine the scope of annual audit
framework without guidance from the management.
Summary of performance in the year 2018 was as
follows:



1) Review of Financial Reports

The Audit Committee reviewed the important information
of the Company’s quarterly and annual financial
statements as of September 30, 2018 and its
subsidiaries, which have been reviewed and audited
by the auditors of the Company together with the
management, internal audit and external auditor.
The scope of review includes issues related to
important accounting policies and principles, changes
over the past year, potential future impact, material
extraordinary transaction, comments by auditor and
internal control. The committee has the opinion that
the Company’s financial statements for the year
ended 30 September 2018 have been presented in
a fair and reasonable manner, in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Appropriate
accounting policies are applied consistently with
adequate disclosure in compliance to the laws and
relevant regulations.

2) Review of Adequacy of Internal
Control System

The Audit Committee reviewed the results of internal
control system of the Company on a quarterly basis,
including review of the adequacy of internal control
system according to the evaluation framework by
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as
an assessment guideline. The committee has the
opinion that the internal control system of the
Company is appropriate and effective enough to
conduct business transparently.

3) Review of Compliance

The Audit Committee has reviewed and supervised
the Company, and its affiliates to comply with all
applicable laws, regulations, policies; and operate
all kind of activities legally under the Securities and
Exchange Acts regulated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC), the Stock Exchange
of Thailand (SET), and other applicable laws relating
to the business of the Company. There was no
indication to believe that the Company had deficiencies
related to non-compliance and / or malpractices
contrary to or inconsistent with the regulations, rules
and laws.
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4) Nomination of the Auditor for
2018

The Audit Committee reviewed the audit service
proposal from three audit firms, considering
appropriateness of the qualification, independency,
and reasonableness of the compensation for
proposing to the Board of Directors, and obtaining
approval from the shareholders’ meeting resolution
to appoint KPMG Phoomchai Audit Limited as an
auditor of the Company with Ms. Patamawan
Wattanakul, CPA License No. 9832 or Ms. Nittaya
Chetchotiros, CPA License No. 4439, or Miss.Sureerat
Thong-arunsang, CPA License No. 4409 or
Miss Kanokorn Puriphanvanich, CPA License No.
10512 as the auditors to certify the Company’s
financial report of the year 2018.

5) Review Related Transactions or
Transactions with Possible Conflicts
of Interest

The Audit Committee has reviewed the related
transactions or the transactions that may lead to
conflicts of interest which must comply to the laws
and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
regarding disclosure of information and practice of
listed companies in related transactions that may
cause conflicts of interest. The Audit Committee has
the opinion that related transactions were made on
an arm’s length basis without any conflict of interest
in a fair and reasonable manner. No irregularity was
found, and information was adequately disclosed.

6) Review and Monitor the
Performance of Internal Audit

The Audit Committee has performed its duties as
stated in the Audit Committee Charter by reviewing
that the Company has appropriate internal control
system to govern an effective internal audit operation
in accordance with international standards and
procedures. The Audit Committee shall consider
and approve audit plan of the internal audit for the
year 2018 which was prepared in accordance with
the results of the corporate risk assessment,
inclusive of determining the importance of each
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system to meet business goals of the organization
under changing circumstances, reviewing internal
control system for independency and scope of
operation, along with executing according to
the recommendations in the quarterly internal
control assessment report, as well as providing
recommendations to the Internal Audit Department to
achieve the goals set by the audit plan assigned by
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee approved the Internal Audit
Department to purchase and install a robust audit
program to use in internal audit work, including both
internal audit management and data analytics
program to uplift the audit performance of the
company effectively in compliance with international
standard with capability to accommodate for large
and complex data.

The Audit Committee reviewed the audit results of
the internal control system according to the annual
audit plan, including the procurement system,
property investment management system and
information technology to provide the Company with
the work process, control, and supervision of
information technology, security of data and
communication network to be effective and consistent
with international standard. The committee
approved to engage the specialized IT auditors from
overseas to participate in the audit of the Company’s
information technology system for further improvement
to meet international standard.

The Audit Committee is responsible for evaluating
the performance of the Chief Internal Audit and
overall Internal Audit Department in the year 2018,
approving the appointment, transferring and
allocating manpower of the Internal Audit Department
as deemed suitable, along with supporting
competency development and advancement of
internal audit profession.

7) The Audit Committee’s
Performance Reports to the Board
of Directors.

The Audit Committee has reported its performance
together with the review of the financial statements
presented to the Board of Directors at least once a
quarter, as well as preparing the Audit Committee’s
report to be disclosed in the Annual Report for the
year 2018 in accordance with the regulations of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand. If there are any

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform

suspicious transactions or actions that may have a
significant impact on the Company’s financial
position and operating results, the Audit Committee
will propose to the Board of Directors for
acknowledgment. During the past year, there has
been no event or situation indicating that such event
occurred.

To conclude the year 2018 overview, the Audit
Committee performed its duties independently with
knowledge, competence, prudence and caution to
comply with the scope and responsibilities specified
in the Charter of the Audit Committee, and protect
the interests of all stakeholders on an equal basis.
The Committee was of the opinion that the Company
and its affiliates’ financial reports were accurate,
reliable, with adequate information disclosure in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles. Besides, the Company has implemented
a sufficient, appropriate, and effective internal
control and audit system based on international
standard. For the related transactions or transactions
that may lead to conflict of interest, the Company
has strictly complied with the laws and regulations of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, with procedures for
controlling and monitoring operations in compliance
with the Securities and Exchange Acts, regulations,
and other laws related to the business of the
Company.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

¥ Yoo

(Mr. Threekwan Bunnag)
Chairman of the Audit Committee



Report of the
Risk Management

The Board of Directors of TICON Industrial Connection
Public Company Limited believes strongly in proper
risk management as a governing mechanism for the
Company to achieve its mission and goals, add
value to the business, shareholders and
stakeholders as well as facilitating a robust and
sustainable growth. The Board of Directors has set
up Risk Management Committee consisting of five
members as listed as follows: Mr. Chotiphat
Bijananda, Chairman of committee with Mr. Panote
Sirivadhanabhakdi, Mr. Threekwan Bunnag,
Mr.Uten Lohachitpitaks and Mr. Tithiphan
Chuerboonchai as members of the Committee.

Duties of the Board are to regulate and support risk
management operation consistently with the company
strategies and business goals.

The Committee has performed its duties in accordance
with the Risk Management Committee Charter
approved by the Board of Directors. In 2018, two
Risk Management Committee meetings were
convened with key agenda summarized as follows:

1. To review risk management policy, the Risk
Management Committee reviewed and adjusted risk
management policy to reflect current business
operation and to comply with international standard.
The policy will be a framework guideline to manage
overall business of the Company.

2. To review Risk Management Committee Charter,
the Risk Management Committee revised the Risk
Management Committee Charter to be more proper
and comply with good corporate governance
practice which encourages the Board of Directors to
perform duties concerning crucial risk assessment,
defining a comprehensive risk management
guideline, and providing an efficient system or
procedure for executives to cope with risk
management as well as exploring business
opportunity that might occur by aforementioned risk.

3. To consent on risk tolerance limit, the Risk
Management Committee consented on risk
tolerance limit and determined that the primary risk
management duty is in the responsibility of the Risk
Management Committee. The Risk Management
Committee will give advice about a comprehensive
risk management guideline, provide an efficient
system or procedure for executives to cope with risk
management, continuously monitor and evaluate
results of risk management and report to the Board
of Directors.

4. To require risk management training as a compulsory
course for employees, the Risk Management
Committee approved to arrange regular trainings on
risk knowledge and risk management for the
employees of the Company so the employees will
understand and aware of the risk management’s
importance continuously.

The Risk Management Committee is determined to
perform its duties to monitor and evaluate risks of
the Company. The shareholders and other
stakeholders can be assured that the Company has
a robust risk management procedure to efficiently
manage the crucial risks and avoid impacts to the
Company’s operation and performance.

Over the last one year, the Risk Management
Committee has highly value to supervise the
Company to develop a systematic risk management
framework. Furthermore, the experienced and
internationally well-known expert from outside
organization was engaged as an advisor to support
the development of risk management efficiently.

%

(Mr. Chotiphat Bijananda)
Chairman of Risk Management Committee
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. . To be a leading provider of smart
Vl SIoON industrial platform, committed to
deliver end-to-end solutions serving

customer’s demand in Industrial 4.0
under good corporate governance
best practices to maximize benefit
of all stakeholders.
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To be a leading provider of smart

- - industrial platform, emphasizing on
Mission e
providing new innovative design
and development process to meet

international standard of factory/
warehouse and customer’s
requirements concurrent with being a
total solutions service provider by
taking social responsibility and
sustainability into consideration.
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Significant developments

during the past three years +

3D Lo
TTIEIN | o ERASERS
13,230 . stake
" wiiontHB .~ 40.95%
. S
TICON received capital injection of Baht
[ W October i
: - i 13.23 billion from FPHT. FPHT became a
i TICON Logistics Park Company Limited major shareholder of TICON with 40.95%
invested in TPARK BFTZ Company stake.
i Limited which is a joint venture i
I m i company with Prospect Development i
i Company Limited to develop : TRIS
warehouses for rent and/or sale in i WA >
Bangkok Free Trade Zone project in . A Stable rRATING

Bang Phli, Samut Prakan. . i
TICON’s credit rating was upgraded to “A”

Stable by TRIS Rating from stable
operating cash flow and strong balance
sheet pursuant to capital injection.

TICON was certified a member of
Collective Action Coalition (CAC)

for anti-corruption.
Y ocomoer s :
TICON increased capital by issuing :

4;)‘ FRASERS common shares to Frasers Property
PROPERTY ; ; Lo :
/ Holdings (Thailand) Company Limited . F

or FPHT. The new 735 million shares

were distributed under a private . TICON established a 100% subsidiary,
placement. TICON International Pte. Ltd. in Singapore
to invest in companies outside Thailand.

@ TICON received a GOLD certified LEED (Leadership in
Energy and Environmental Design) standard for
green warehouses from the U.S. Green Building Council
(USGBCQ), a leading organization for green buildings
—— in USA. This solidifies TICON as a leading international
_adie — warehouse developer.
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TFUND TLOGIS and TGROWTH property funds
were converted successfully to TREIT (TICON Freehold
and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust) and continued

to be managed by TICON Management Co., Ltd. (TMAN). TICON established a subsidiary
TREIT became the largest Industrial REIT in Thailand with i !

total asset value of Baht 32 billion. the Joint Venture company named

TICON Technology Co.,Ltd. with
100% stake. TICON Technology
: has registered and paid-up capital
of Baht 1 million. The objective of
T REIT the company is to operate Data
: Centre business and other
technology businesses in Thailand.
TICON Technology partnered with
STTelemedia Global Data Centres
with shareholding proportion
of 51% and 49%, respectively.

TFUND TLOGIS TGROWTH TREIT

May

H / LA i
ER2D (4 figreemeds
Fraser Assets Co., Ltd. (FAS) purchased TICON’s
ordinary share from ROJANA representing 26.10%
of total issued and paid up capital of TICON, resulting

! ¢ in shareholding proportion of FPHT and FAS accounted
. Million THB i for 67.05% of total voting rights. FAS therefore
a proceeded a tender offer process consequently made
AR - i Fraser Group shareholding proportion in TICON being
©  atotal of 89.46%.

TICON established JustCo (Thailand) Co, Ltd.
to operate co-working office in Thailand.
The JV Company owned by TICON 51% and
JustCo (Thailand 2) Pte.Ltd. owned 49%
with registered and paid-up capital of

Baht 1 million.

JUSt
CcoO
ets ke vk bt
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TICON Group Structure

As of September 30, 2018
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Co., Ltd.

Associate Companies Joint Ventures
E—— ]

Subsidiaries
Eco Industrial Services 100% TICON Real Estate
Co., Ltd. Investment Trust

TICON Logistics Park

0, (Investment by TICON and
Co., Ltd. 100%

Shanghai TICON Investment
Management Co., Ltd.
TICON Management

Co, Ltd. Co., Ltd.

(Investment by TICON)
TICON (HK) Limited 100%

TICON International Pte. Ltd. 100%

TICON Technology Co., Ltd.  100%

Details of subsidiaries are as
follows;

(1) Eco Industrial Services Co., Ltd. (“EISCO”)
TICON holds 100 percent stake in EISCO. EISCO
was established under the Board of Investment
privileges to develop ready-built factories on
Laemchabang Industrial Estate. However, such
privileges have expired.

In 2003, EISCO was certified 1SO 9001:2000.
As of September 30, 2018, EISCO had registered
and paid-up capital of Baht 12.5 million.

(2) TICON Logistics Park Co., Ltd. (“TPARK”)
TICON holds 100 percent stake in TPARK. TPARK
was established in August 2005 to develop logistics
warehouses. TPARK benefits from BOI incentive in
Wangnoi logistic park, Sri Racha logistic park,
Laemchabang logistic park, TPARK Eastern
Seaboard, Bangpakong logistic park, TPARK Khon
Kaen and some warehouses located in Amata City
Chon Buri Industrial Estate, Hemaraj Industrial
Estate (Bo win), TPARK Bang Phli, Amata City
Rayong, ROJANA Industrial Park-Ayutthaya and
Prachin Buri.

TICON International Pte. Ltd.)

PT SLP Surya TICON Internusa
(Investment by TICON (HK) Limited)

70% TRA Land Development

TICON Demco Power 6 51%
23% Co., Ltd.
(Investment by TPARK)

TICON Demco Power 11 51%
25% Co., Ltd.

""""" (Investment by TPARK)

TPARK BFTZ Co., Ltd. 60%

(Investment by TPARK)

JustCo (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 51%

(Investment by TICON)

In 2009, TPARK was certified ISO 9001:2008. As of
September 30, 2018, TPARK had registered and
paid-up capital of Baht 11,500 million.

(3) Shanghai TICON Investment Management
Company Limited (“SH-TICON”)

TICON holds 100 percent stake in SH-TICON.
SH-TICON was registered in China in July 2010 to
explore real estate investment opportunities in
China.

As of September 30, 2018, SH-TICON had
registered and paid-up capital of USD 2.8 million.

(4) TICON Management Company Limited
(“TMAN”)

TICON holds 70 percent stake in TMAN and Mitsui
& Co. (Asia Pacific) Pte. Limited holds 30 percent.
TMAN was founded in May 2013 as a trust manager
of REIT and was approved by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) to manage the Trust
since August 6, 2014.

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform
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As of September 30, 2018, TMAN had registered
and paid-up capital of Baht 10 million.

(5) TICON (HK) Limited (“TICON-HK”)

TICON holds 100 percent stake in TICON-HK which
was founded in Hong Kong in April 2015 to invest in
business outside Thailand.

As of September 30, 2018, TICON-HK had
registered and paid-up capital of USD 16.13 million.

(6) TICON International Pte. Ltd.

TICON holds 100 percent stake in TICON International
Pte. Ltd., which was founded in Singapore in October
2017 to invest in companies outside Thailand.

As of September 30, 2018, TICON International Pte.
Ltd. had registered and paid-up capital of SGD
238.45 million.

(7) TICON Technology Company Limited.

TICON holds 100 percent stake in TICON Technology
Company Limited. which was founded in April 2018
to invest and/or own entities operating in data center
business and other technology-based business.

As of September 30, 2018, TICON Technology
Company Limited. had registered and paid-up
capital of Baht 1 million.

Details of associate companies are
as follows;

(1) TICON Real Estate Investment Trust (“TREIT”)
TREIT is an industrial real estate trust listed on the
Stock Exchange of Thailand. TREIT was
established in December 2014 to invest in industrial
properties owned not only by TICON or TPARK but
also by third parties. TICON Management Company
Limited or TMAN is the REIT manager and BBL
Assets Management is a trustee of TREIT.

TREIT’s first fund raising started in 2014 and
proceeded to increase capital and debt financing in
2015 for investment into factory and warehouse
from TICON and TPARK as well as investing in
leasehold properties. In December 2017, TFUND,
TLOGIS and TGROWTH were merged and
converted to TREIT. Currently, TREIT has 299
factories (total area of 750,485 square
meters) and 217 warehouses (total area of 818,231
square meters) resulting from assets acquired from
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TPARK and leasehold to freehold assets
conversion.

TICON and TPARK play important roles as a
property management of TREIT.

TREIT has a policy to pay dividend semi-annually of
not less than 90 percent of net profit after deducting
unrealized gain on revaluation or valuation review of
the properties and other adjustments according to
Notification of the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. The dividend is not subject
to corporate income tax.

As of September 30, 2018, TICON and TICON
International Pte. Ltd. hold, in aggregate, 23 percent
stake in TREIT and NAV of TREIT was Baht 10.5108
per unit.

Properties sold to TREIT is one of TICON fund
raising channel to expand its business apart from
cash flow from operation and debt financing where
TICON considered and maximized shareholders’
return.

(2)PT SLP Surya TICON Internusa (“SLP”)

SLP is a joint venture company objectively develop
factory and warehouse for rent in Indonesia which is
25 percent owned by TICON (HK) Limited and
25 percent owned by Mitsui & Co., Limited while PT
Surya Semesta Internusa Tbk holds 50 percent.
SLP was incorporated to develop factories and
warehouses for sale and rent in Indonesia. SLP
owns 34 warehouse units (67,284 square meters)
with an occupancy rate of 100 percent as well as
5 units work in progress (9,648 square meters)
in Suryacipta Technopark.

As of September 30, 2018, SLP had registered
capital of USD 185.6 million and paid-up capital of
USD 46.4 million.

(3) TRA Land Development Co., Ltd.

TRA Land Development Co., Ltd. was incorporated
on December 22, 2017 to develop real estate
projects. It is 50 percent owned by TICON, 25
percent owned by Rojana Industrial Park Public Co.,
Ltd. and 25 percent owned by Asia Industrial Estate
Co., Ltd.

As at September 30, 2018, TRA Land Development
Co., Ltd. had registered and paid-up capital of Baht
1 million.



Details of joint ventures are as
follows:

(1) TICON Demco Power 6 Company Limited
(“TICON Demco 6”)

TICON DEMCO 6 is a solar energy electricity
generating company which is 51 percent owned by
TPARK and 49 percent owned by Demco Public
Company Limited.

As of September 30, 2018, TICON DEMCO 6 had
registered and paid-up capital of Baht 5 million.

(2) TICON Demco Power 11 Company Limited
(“TICON Demco 11”)

TICON DEMCO11 is a solar energy electricity
generating company which is 51 percent owned by
TPARK and 49 percent owned by Demco Public
Company Limited.

As of September 30, 2018, TICON DEMCO 11 had
registered and paid-up capital of Baht 4 million.

(3) TPARK BFTZ Company Limited (“TPARK
BFTZ”)

TPARK BFTZ was founded in October 2016 to
develop warehouses for sale and rent in Bang Phli’s
Bangkok Free Trade Zone, Samut Prakan. The
company is 60 percent owned by TPARK and 40
percent owned by Prospect Development Company
Limited.

As at September 30, 2018, TPARK BFTZ had
registered and paid-up capital of Baht 350 million.

(4) JustCo (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (“JustCo”)

JustCo was founded in August 2018 to invest in
co-working office / co-working space business. It is
51 percent owned by TICON and 49 percent owned
by JustCo (Thailand 2) Pte. Ltd.

As at September 30, 2018, JustCo had registered
and paid-up capital of Baht 213,500,000.

Separately, TICON also invested Baht 1 million in
Bangkok Club Co., Ltd., which represents 0.11
percent stake, to utilize the Club’s facilities.

Annual Report 2018

. = &

Relationship with major shareholder

Frasers group is a major shareholder directly and
indirecty accounted for 89.46 percent stake in TICON.
Three of TICON’s Board of Directors, Mr. Panote
Sirivadhanabhakdi, Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks and
Mr. Chotiphat Bijananda are also the Board of Director
of Frasers Property Limited.

A Combined knowledge and proficiency in real
estate development of Frasers Property Limited
together with TICON’s industrial property rental
expertise could bring about enlarged opportunities
regarding products and services diversification to
support business growth and sustainability.

B
\ e

The Leading Provider of
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Details of warehouses under managed by the Company in 24 locations* are:

9
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units

2

units
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units
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units
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units

27

units

9
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Performance Overview

Financial Highlights Unit : Million Baht

2016 2017 Jan-Sep 2018
Sales of properties 250.68 194.36 2,209.57
Rental and service income 1,172.12 1372.60
Property management fee from property funds 201.12 239.15 226.90
Share of profit from investments in property funds/REIT 252.22 275.42 m
Realized additional gain on sales of properties to property funds/ 294.95 48.30 2.69
REIT
Cost of sales of properties 160.16 77.27 m
Cost of rental and service 332.56 409.83 343.53
Selling and administrative expenses 704.04 786.61
Net profit 278.10 482.40 667.66
Assets 36,092.73 40,982.31
Liabilities 24,675.06 16,048.07 17,618.79
Shareholders' equity 11,417.67 24,934.24
Return on equity (%) 2.38 2.64 3.49
Return on fixed assets (%) 2.31 3.20 3.57
Dividend pay-out (%) 53.35 38.21 7417

2016 2017 2018

The fiscal year starting from January to September

10.3% +-n . e 8.1% 0% = e 5.6%
12.2%
1049, Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
. (o}
8.3%"

e 48.4% Sa 57.0% .. 55%

. Sales of properties . Rental and service income . Property management fee from property funds

. Share of profit from investments in property funds/REIT . Realized additional gain on sales of Other incomes

properties to property funds/REIT

The Leading Provider of
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Financial Performance
.

HU Net Profit
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Financial Ratio

Leverage Ratio

Lower IBD/E of

(Unit: Time)
0.59x
with capacity to
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2.0 1.95 .
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1.5
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064 goco
o5 0.53 i 1 |
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°
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ﬁ;‘ Factory and Warshouse

46%
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Occopancy Rate
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Board of Directors

1. Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom

2. Mr. Threekwan Bunnag

3. Mr. Chatchaval Jiaravanon

4. Mr. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai
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5. Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks

6. Mr. Chotiphat Bijananda

7. Mr. Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi

8. Mr. Chali Sophonpanich

9. Mr. Chai Vinichbutr

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform
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Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom

Age 68 years

Date of First Appointment:
January 16, 2017

Date of Latest Appointment
April 24, 2017

Education

» Master of Management (MM), Sasin Graduate Institute
of Business Administration of Chulalongkorn University

» Bachelor Degree in Higher Accounting

« California College of Commerce

Director’s Training Course

* The Role of Chairman in Leading Strategic Risk
Oversight 2560, Thai Institute of Directors Association

 Directors Accreditation Program (DAP 63/2550) Thai
Institute of Directors Association

* The Role of the Chairman Program (RCP 33/2557) Thai
Institute of Directors Association

* Financial Institutions Governance Program (FGP 3/2554)
Thai Institute of Directors Association

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.0 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:
-None -

Work Experience within 5 years:
e 2017 - Present Chairman of the Board, Independent
Director, Member of the Audit
Committee, Member of Compensation
Committee, and Chairman of
Corporate Governance Committe
TICON Industrial Connection Plc.

Others Listed Companies

e 2016 - Present Independent Director, Member of
Audit Committee, Member of The
Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee, Demeter Corporation, Plc.

e 2016 - Present Independent Director, Vice Chairman
of the Board of Directors, Tipco Asphalt
Public Co., Ltd.

e 2015 - Present Independent Director, Chairman of
Audit Committee, and Member of
Human Resource, Remuneration and
Committee, Prima Marine Plc.

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform

e 2012 - Present Independent Director, Chairman of
Audit Committee, Compensation and
Nominating Committee, Chairman of
Corporate Governance Committee,
Golden Land Property Development Plc.

Others Non-Listed Companies
e 2017 - Present Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Sapthip Co.,Ltd.
e 2010 - Present Director, National Power Supply Plc.

Others Organization

* 2016 - 2018 Director, Circulation Fund of The
Comptroller General's Department,
Ministry of Finance

¢ 2013 -2014 Chairman, IRPC Public Company Limited

e 2011 -2018 Director, The Energy Fund Administration
Institute (Pubic Organization)

e 2010 - 2016 Director, Committee on State
Enterprises Evaluation, Ministry of Finance

* 2010 -2012 Chairman of Executive Committee,
The Industrial Environment Institute of
The Federation of Thai Industries

e 2009 - 2018 Director, Petroleum Institute of
Thailand

e 2008 - 2010 President & CEO, PTT Aromatics &
Refining PLC

* 2008 - 2010 Senior Executive Vice President, PTT PLC

e 2007 - 2008 President, PTT Aromatics & Refining PLC



Mr. Threekwan Bunnag

Age 62 years

Date of First Appointment
April 2, 2004

Date of Latest Appointment
March 27, 2018

Education
» Master of Business Administration, University of North
Texas, USA

Director’s Training Course

» Advance Audit Committee Program (AACP) 27/2017
Thai Institute of Directors Association

» Director Accreditation Program 2006 Thai Institute of
Directors Association

* Director Certification Program 2001 Thai Institute of
Directors Association

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.0 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:
-None-

Work Experience within 5 years
e 2004 - Present Independent Director, Chairman of
Audit Committee, Member of Nomination
Committee, Member of Risk Management
Committee and Member of Corporate
Governance Committee TICON Industrial
Connection Plc.
e 2008 - 2016 Director, TICON Logistics Park Co., Ltd.
Others Listed Companies
¢ 1998 - Present Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Independent Director, and Member of the
Nomination Committee, SVI Public Co., Ltd.

Others Non-Listed Companies

e 2012 - Present Director, Emerald Bay Resort Co., Ltd.

e 2012 - Present Director, Emerald Bay Villa Co., Ltd.

* 2006 - Present Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Siam Agro-food Industry
Public Company Limited.

¢ 1995 - Present Director, Gold Master Public Company
Limited

Annual Report 2018

Mr. Chatchaval Jiaravanon

Age 57 years

Date of First Appointment
April 2, 2004

Date of Latest Appointment
March 27, 2018

Education
» Bachelor of Business Administration, University of Southern
California, USA

Director’s Training Course

« Director Accreditation Program 2008 Thai Institute of
Directors Association

« Certification for Executive Program, CMA9 Capital
Market Academy

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.0 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:
-None-

Work Experience within 5 years
e 2004 - Present Independent Director, Member of Audit
Committee Member of Remuneration
Committee, and Member of Nomination
Committee TICON Industrial Connection Plc.

Others Listed Companies

e 2014 -Present Director, WP Energy Plc.

e 2013 -Present Independent Director and Member of
the Audit Committee SVI Plc.

e 2007 -Present Chairman of the Board, Finansia Syrus
Securities Plc.

e 2000 - Present AEON Thana Sinsap (Thailand) Plc.

¢ 1993 -Present Director, and Managing Director Group
Investment, TRUE Corporation Plc.

Others Non-Listed Companies
* 2006 - Present Chairman of the Board, Thai KODAMA
Co., Ltd.
* 2000 -Present President and Chief Executive Officer,
Telecom Holding Co., Ltd.
* 1990 - Present Director, Metro Machinery Co., Ltd.

The Leading Provider of
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Mr. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai
Age 66 years

Date of First Appointment:
April 24, 2017

Date of Latest Appointment
April 24, 2017

Education

» Master of Business Administration, Thammasat University

» Master of Laws (LL.M.) Harvard Law School

» Barrister-at-Law, The Institute of Thai Bar Association

» Bachelor of Laws (First Class Honors), Chulalongkorn
University

Director’s Training Course

» Financial Institutions Governance Program (FGP 3/2004)
Thai Institute of Directors Association

« Director Certification Program 2000 Thai Institute of
Directors Association

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.0 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:

-None-

Work Experience within 5 years
e 2017 - Present Independent Director, Member of
Audit Committee, Member of Risk
Management Committee, and Member of
Corporate Governance Committee, TICON

Industrial Connection Plc.

Others Listed Companies

¢ 2018 - Present Independent Director, and Member of
Risk Management Committee, Asset
World Corp Plc.

* 2016 - Present Independent Director and Member of
Audit Committee, Chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee,
Univentures Plc.

The Leading Provider of
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Others Non-Listed Companies
e 2016 - Present Independent Director, Member of
Audit Committee, Member of Nomination
and Compensation Commitee United
Overseas Bank (Thai) Plc.
e 2010 - Present Director, C & C International Venture
Co., Ltd.
e 2009 - Present Independent Director and Member
of Audit Committee, TSFC Securities Plc.
2010 - 2013 Independent Director and Member
of Audit Committee, Siam City Bank Plc

Others Organizations
* 1995-2018 Director, Research Center for Law and
Development, Chulalongkorn University
* 1978 - 2013 Lecturer of the Faculty of Law,
Chulalongkorn University



Mr. Panote Sirivadhanabhalkdi

Age 41 years

Date of First Appointment
January 16, 2017

Date of Latest Appointment
April 24, 2017

Education

» Master of Science in Analysis, Design and Management
of Information System, The London School of Economics
and Political Science, UK

* Bachelor of Science in Manufacturing Engineering,
Boston University, USA

« Certificate in Industrial Engineering and Economics,
Massachusetts University, USA

Director’s Training Course

« Director Certification Program (DCP 46/2004) Thai
Institute of Directors Association

 Director Accreditation Program (DAP 10/2004) Thai
Institute of Directors Association

» Finance for Non-Finance Directors (FND 10/2004) Thai
Institute of Directors Association

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.0 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:
+ A brother of Mr. Chotiphat Bijananda’ s Spouse

Work Experience within 5 years
e 2017 - Present Director, Chairman of Executive Committee
Member of Remuneration and
Risk Management Committee,
TICON Industrial Connection Plc.

Others Listed Companies

e 2012 - Present Vice Chairman of the Board, Chairman of
Executive Committee, Member of the
Compensation and Nominating Committee,
Golden Land Property Development Plc.

e 2007 - Present Vice Chairman of the Board and Chairman
of the Board of Executive Directors,
Member of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee, Member of the
Corporate Governance Committee,
Univentures Plc.

e 2007 - 2017 Director, Executive Director, Siam Food
Products Plc.
e 2005 -2017 Director, Executive Director Berli Jucker Plc.
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Others Non-Listed Companies

2018 - Present
2018 - Present
2018 - Present
2017 - Present
2017 - Present
2017 - Present

2016 - Present
2016 - Present
2016 - Present

2016 - Present
2015 - Present

2015 - Present

2015 - Present
2014 - Present
2014 - Present
2014 - Present
2014 - Present

2013 - Present
2013 - Present
2013 - Present
2012 - Present
2011 - Present

2011 - Present

2011 - Present

2011 - Present
2011 - Present
2010 - Present

2010 - Present
2010 - Present

2009 - Present

2009 - Present

2008 - Present
2007 - Present
2007 - Present
2006 - Present
2006 - Present
2004 - Present
2002 - Present
2002 - Present
2002 - Present
2002 - Present
2002 - Present
2001 - Present
2017 - 2018

2017 - 2018

2011 - 2018

2008 — 2017
2007 — 2017

Director Buriram Development Co., Ltd.
Director Frasers Assets Co., Ltd.

Director NY Property Development Co., Ltd.
Director Bhakdivattana Co., Ltd.

Director Siridamrongdham Co., Ltd.

Director Sub Somboon Property Plus
Co., Ltd.

Director Asian Capital Co., Ltd.
Director Kasemsubbhakdi Co., Ltd.

Director Namjai Thaibev (Social Enterprise)
Co., Ltd.

Director Vadhanabhakdi Co., Ltd.

Director Univentures REIT Management
Co., Ltd.

Director Quantum Capital Development
Co., Ltd.

Director TCC Holdings (2519) Co., Ltd.
Director Kasemsubvadhana Co., Ltd.
Director One Bangkok Co., Ltd.
Director Tonic International Co., Ltd.

Director Lakeview Golf and Yacht Club
Co., Ltd.

Director Frasers Centrepoint Co., Ltd.
Director TCC Assets (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Director Kasemsubsiri Co., Ltd.

Director SMJC Development Co., Ltd.

Director T.C.C. Exhibition and Convention
Center Co., Ltd.

Director N.C.C. Exhibition Organizer
Co., Ltd.

Director N.C.C. Management and
Development Co., Ltd.

Director N.C.C. Image Co., Ltd.
Director F and B International Co., Ltd.

Director Chiva-Som International Health
Resort Co., Ltd.

Director North Park Real Estate Co., Ltd.

Director North Park Golf and Sports Club
Co., Ltd.

Director Nong Khai Country Golf Club
Co., Ltd.

Director The Cha-Am Yacht Club Hotel
Co., Ltd.

Director Terragro Fertilizer Co., Ltd.
Director Adelfos Co., Ltd.

Director Thai Beverage PLC

Director Cristalla Co., Ltd.

Director Plantheon Co., Ltd.

Director Beer Thip Brewery (1991) Co., Ltd.
Director Athimart Co., Ltd.

Director Kankwan Co., Ltd.

Director Sura Bangyikhan Co., Ltd.
Director S.S. Karnsura Co., Ltd.

Director Theparunothai Co., Ltd.

Director T.C.C. Technology Co. Ltd.
Director Fah Prathan Pandinthong Co., Ltd.
Director One Bangkok Holdings Co., Ltd.

Director TCC Trade and Convention Center
Co., Ltd.

Director Norm Co., Ltd.

Director Eastern Seaboard Industrial Estate
(Rayong) Co., Ltd

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform
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Mr. Chali Sophonpanich

Age 58 years

Date of First Appointment
March 30, 2005

Date of Latest Appointment
April 26, 2016

Education
» Master of Business Administration, The University of
Chicago, USA

Director’s Training Course

» Corporate Governance for Capital Market Intermediaries
(CGI 7/2015), Thai Institute of Directors Association

« Director Accreditation Program 2005 Thai Institute of
Directors Association

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.0 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:
-None-

Work Experience within 5 years
e 2005 - Present Director, TICON Industrial Connection Plc.

Others Listed Companies
* 1994 - Present Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Executive Director, Member of the
Nominatio Committee, Asia Plus Group
Holdings Public Company Limited

Others Non-Listed Companies
¢ 2017 - Present Director, TRA Land Development Co., Ltd.
¢ 2014 - Present Chairman of the Board of Directors, Asia
Plus Securities Company Limited
* 1997 - Present President, Asia Industrial Estat Co., Ltd.
* 1987 - Present Director, Asia Sermkij Co., Ltd.
* 1987 - Present President, City Realty Co., Ltd.

The Leading Provider of
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Mr. Chotiphat Bijananda

Age 56 years

Date of First Appointment
January 16, 2017

Date of Latest Appointment
March 27, 2018

Education

» Master of Business Administration, Finance - University
of Missouri, USA

» Bachelor of Laws - Thammasat University, Thailand
Director’s Training Course

 Director Certification Program (DCP 155/2012) Thai
Institute of Directors Association

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.0 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:
A husband of Mr. Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi’s sister

Work Experience within 5 years
e 2017 - Present Director, Member of Nomination Committee
and Chairman of Risk Management
Committee, TICON Industrial Connection Plc.

Others Listed Companies
e 2013 - Present Director, Golden Land Property Development
Plc.
¢ 2011 - Present Vice Chairman, Sermsuk Public Co., Ltd.

Others Non-Listed Companies
e 2017 - Present Director, Big C Services Co., Ltd.
e 2016 - Present Director, Big C Supercenter Public Co.,
Ltd.
* 2013 - Present Director, Frasers Property Limited
e 2013 - Present Director, Fraser and Neave Limited
¢ 2008 - Present Chairman of Executive Board, Southeast
Capital Co., Ltd.
e 2008 - Present President, Southeast Group Co., Ltd.
* 2008 - Present Director TCC Technology Co., Ltd.
e 2007 - Present Advisor TCC Holding Co., Ltd.



Mr. Chai Vinichbutr

Age 45 years

Date of First Appointment:
November 13, 2012

Date of Latest Appointment
April 24, 2017

Education
* Bachelor of Business Administration, Boston University, USA

Director’s Training Course

* Director Accreditation Program (DAP 10/2004) Thai Institute
of Directors Association

* Finance for Non-Finance Directors (FND 10/2004) Thai
Institute of Directors Association

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.0 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:
-None-

Work Experience within 5 years
¢ 2012 - Present Director, TICON Industrial Connection

Plc.
e 2015-2016 Director, TICON Logistics Park Co., Ltd.
* 2015-2016 Director, TICON (HK) Limited
e 2013 - 2016 Director, TICON Management Co., Ltd.
e 2012 - 2016 Director, Eco Industrial Services Co., Ltd.

Others Listed Companies
e 2007 - Present Director, Rojana Industrial Park Plc.

Others Non-Listed Companies

e 2017 — Present Director, TRA Land Development Co., Ltd.

e 2011 - Present Director, Bangkok Office 3 Co., Ltd

¢ 2011 - Present Director, Bangkok Office 4 Co., Ltd.

e 2007 — Present Director, Rojana Power Co., Ltd.

e 2004 - Present Managing Director, Rojana Propert
Co., Ltd.

¢ 2011 —Present Director, Bangkok Office 3 Holding
Co.,Ltd.

e 2011 —Present Director, Bangkok Office 4 Holding
Co.,Ltd.
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Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks

Age 46 years

Date of First Appointment
January 16, 2017

Date of Latest Appointment
March 27, 2018

Education

» Master of Business Administration, Assumption University
« Bachelor of Business Administration, Assumption University
* Boardroom succes through Financing & Investment (‘BFT”)

by Thai Institute of Director Association

Director’s Training Course

» Boardroom Success through Financing & Investment
(“BFT”) by Thai Instituted of Director Association

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.0 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:

-None-

Work Experience within 5 years

2017 - Present

2018 - Present
2018 - Present
2018 - Present

2017 - Present
2017 - Present

Director, Member of Executive Committee,
Member of Risk Management Committee,
and Member of Corporate Governance
Committee, TICON Industrial Connection Plc.
Director, TICON (HK) Limited

Director, TICON Management Co., Ltd.
Commissioner, PT SLP Surya TICON
Internusa

Director, TICON Logistics Park Co., Ltd.
Director, TICON International Pte. Ltd.

Others Listed Companies

None

Others Non-Listed Companies

2018 - Present
2018 - Present
2018 - Present
2018 - Present
2018 - Present
2018 - Present
2018 - Present
2017 - Present
2017 - Present
2017 - Present
2016 - Present

2016 - Present
2013 - Present

Director, Frasers Property Ventures | Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

Director, Frasers Property Ventures |l Pte.
Ltd. (Singapore)

Director, TICON Technology Co., Ltd.
Director, One Bangkok Holdings Co., Ltd.
Director, One Bangkok Ventures Co., Ltd.
Director, Farnborough Business Park Ltd.
Director, Frasers Assets Co., Ltd.

Director, Frasers Property Holdings
(Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Director, Frasers Property Investments
(Europe) SARL (Luxembourg)

Director, Frasers Property International Pte.
Ltd. (Singapore)

Director, Sinomax International Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

Director, Frasers (Thailand) Pte. Ltd.

Group Chief Investment Officer, Frasers

Property Limited
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Management

1. Mr. Sopon Racharaksa

2. Dr. Somsak Chaiyaporn

3. Miss Lalitphant Phiriyaphant
4. Mr. Harry Yan Khek Wee

5. Miss Rojana Asawavichienjinda
6. Miss Kamonkarn Kongkathong
7. Ms. Teh Chiew Har

8. Ms. Lok Cheng Yee
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Mr. Sopon Racharaksa
President and Chief Executive Officer (Acting)

Age 47 years

* Appointment date as Acting Chief Executive Officer on 31 March 2018
Education:

* M.A., Public Administration, National Graduate
Institute for Policy Studies, Japan, 2002

* M.A., Economics, Michigan State University, USA,
1995

* B.A., Economics, Thammasat University, 1992

Training Course:

» Board Success through Financing & Investment
(BFI) (5/2018 10D Thai Institute of Director)

* Institute of Business and Industrial Development
(IBID 2/2015)

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.00 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:
-None -

Work experience within 5 years:

¢ 2017 - Present President, Chief Executive Officer
(Acting) TICON Industrial Connection
Public Co., Ltd.

e 2017 - Present Director, TICON Logistics Park
Co., Ltd.

e 2017 - Present Director, TICON International Pte. Ltd.

e 2017 - Present Director, TICON Management Co., Ltd.

e 2017 - Present Director, TPARK BFTZ Co., Ltd.

e 2017 - Present Director, Eco Industrial Services Co.,
Ltd.

e 2017 - Present Director, Shanghai TICON
Investment Management Co., Ltd.

e 2017 - Present Director, PT SLP Surya TICON
Internusa, Indonesia.

e 2017 - Present Director, TICON (HK) Limited,
Hong Kong.

* 2017 - Present Director, TICON Demco Power 6 Co., Ltd.

¢ 2017 - Present Director, TICON Demco Power 11 Co.,

Ltd.

Other Listed Companies:
-None-

Others Non-Listed Companies
* 2018 - Present Director, JustCo (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
* 2018 - Present Director, TICON Technology Co., Ltd.
* 2017 - Present Director, TRA Land Development
Co., Ltd.
e 2015 - Present Managing Director, TCC Land
Development Co., Ltd.
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* 2012 - Present Director, NCC Management and
Development Co., Ltd.

¢ 2012 - Present Assistant Deputy Managing Director,
TCC Hotel Group

Dr. Somsak Chaiyaporn

General Manager

Age 67 years

Education:

» Docteur Ingénieur (Mécanique), Ecole Centrale
de Lyon, France

* Master of Business Administration, Thammasat
University

Training Course:
* Management Development Program1 / 2018

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.00 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:
- None -

Work experience within 5 years:
e 2017 - Present Director, TICON Logistics Park
Co., Ltd.
e 2001 - Present General Manager, Eco Industrial
Services Co., Ltd.

Other Listed Companies:
-None-

Others Non-Listed Companies
-None-

Miss Lalitphant Phiriyaphant

Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary
Age 53 years

Education:
* Master of Economics, Thammasat University

Training Course:

» Tax Planning and Accounting for Real Estate (41/2018)

* Management Development Program1/2018

* Company Secretary 2003, Thai Institute of Directors
Association

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.01 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:
-None -
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Work experience within 5 years:

e 2017 - Present Chief Financial Officer and Corporate
Secretary, TICON Industrial Connection
Public Co., Ltd.

e 2017 - Present Director, TICON International Pte.
Ltd.

e 2017 - Present Director, TICON Logistics Park Co.,
Ltd.

¢ 2016 - Present Director, TPARK BFTZ Co., Ltd.

e 2015 - Present Director, TICON (HK) Limited

e 2015 - Present Director, Eco Industrial Services
Co., Ltd.

¢ 2015 - Present Director, Shanghai TICON Investment
Management Co., Ltd.

e 2013-2014  Director, TICON Management Co., Ltd.

Other Listed Companies:
-None-

Othes Non-Listed Companies
¢ 2018 - Present Director, TICON Technology Co., Ltd.

Mr. Harry Yan Khek Wee

SVP - Revenue Management
Age 40 years

* Appointment date as SVP — Revenue Management on 1 September 2018

Education:

» Master of Science (Real Estate), National
University of Singapore

» Bachelor of Science in Estate Management,
The University of Reading, UK

Training Course:
-None-

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.00 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:
-None —

Work experience within 5 years:
* 2018 - Present SVP — Revenue Management TICON
Industrial Connection Public Co., Ltd.
e 2009-2018 Head of Singapore Revenue
Management Ascendas Funds
Management Ltd., Manager of
As cendas-REIT, Singapore

Other Listed Companies:
-None-

Others Non-Listed Companies
-None-
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Miss Rojana Asawavichienjinda

Head of Finance and Accounting
Age 51 years

* Appointment date as Heaf of Finance and Accounting on 20 February 2017

Education:
e Master of Accounting (Internation Program)
Thammasat University

Training Course:
* Management Development Program1/2018
» Safety Agent for Management Work Program

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.00 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:
-None —

Work experience within 5 years:
e 2017 - Present Heaf of Finance and Accounting
TICON Industrial Connection Public

Co., Ltd.
Other Listed Companies:

-None-

Others Non-Listed Companies
-None-

Miss Kamonkarn Kongkathong
Head of Corporate Strategy & Investment

Age 37 years

* Appointment date as Head of Corporate Strategy & Investment on 1 June 2018

Education:
* Master in Accounting and Finance, London School
of Economics and Political Science (LSE), UK

Training Course:
* Management Development Program1/2018

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.00 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:
-None -

Work experience within 5 years:
e 2017 - Present Head of Corporate Strategy &
Investment TICON Industrial Connection
Public Co., Ltd.



* 2016 -2017 Senior Vice President, Credit Risk
Standard Charter Bank, Thailand

e 2014 -2016 Senior Vice President, Credit Risk
Standard Charter Bank, Singapore

e 2011-2014 Vice President, Regional Credit

Management CIMB Bank Berhad, Singapore
* 2006 - 2011  Assistant Vice President, DBS Bank,
Singapore

Other Listed Companies:
-None-

Others Non-Listed Companies
e 2018 - Present Director, JustCo (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
e 2018 - Present Director, TICON Technology Co., Ltd.
e 2017 - Present Director, TRA Land Development
Co., Ltd.

Ms. Teh Chiew Har
VP - Business Development

Age 38 years

* Appointment date as VP-Business Development on 1 October 2018

Education:

» Bachelor of Science in Mathematics, University
Technology of Malaysia

* Certificate of Commerce in International Business
& Banking and Chinese Culture

Training Course:
« Certified Financial Planner

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.00 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:

-None —
Work experience within 5 years:
¢ 2018 - Present VP - Business Development TICON
Industrial Connection Public Co., Ltd.
* 2014 - 2017 Investment Manager, Ascendas Funds
Management Ltd., (as Manager of

A-REIT), Singapore

Other Listed Companies:
-None-

Others Non-Listed Companies
-None-
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Ms. Lok Cheng Yee

VP - Design Management
Age 51 years

* Appointment date as VP-Design Management on 1 October 2018

Education:

» Master of Science (Real Estate), National University
of Singapore

« Bachelor of Building, The University of New South
Wales, Australia

Training Course:
-None-

% of Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse and
minor children:

0.00 (as at November 30, 2018)

Family Relationship among directors/management:
-None -

Work experience within 5 years:

e 2018 - Present VP Design Management TICON
Industrial Connection Public Co., Ltd.
Deputy Head of Development
Management Ascendas-Singbridge
Singapore Operations

* 2016 - 2018

Other Listed Companies:
-None-

Others Non-Listed Companies
-None-
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The Company has one Board of Directors and 6
Sub-Committees, comprising the Executive Committee,
the Audit Committee, the Compensation
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Risk
Management Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee

2. Board of Directors

As of 30 September 2018, the Company’s Board of
Directors consisted of 9 members as follows:

1. Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom
Chairman of the Board, Independent Director,
Member of the Audit Committee, Member of
Compensation Committee, and Chairman of
Corporate Governance Committee

2. Mr. Threekwan Bunnag
Independent Director, Chairman of Audit Committee,
Member of Nomination Committee, Member of
Risk Management Committee and Member of
Corporate Governance Committee

3. Mr. Chatchaval Jiaravanon
Independent Director, Member of Audit Committee
Member of Remuneration Committee, and
Member of Nomination Committee

4. Mr. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai
Independent Director, Member of Audit Committee
Member of Risk Management Committee, and
Member of Corporate Governance Committee

5. Mr. Chali Sophonpanich
Authorized Director

6. Mr. Chotiphat Bijananda
Authorized Director, Member of Nomination
Committee and Chairman of Risk Management
Committee

7. Mr. Chai Vinichbutr
Authorized Director, Member of Executive
Committee

8. Mr. Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi
Authorized Director, Chairman of Executive
Committee and Member of Remuneration
Committee

9. Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks
Authorized Director, Member of Executive Committee,
Member of Risk Management Committee, and
Member of Corporate Governance Committee
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The Authorized Directors who are authorized to sign
on behalf of the Company are Mr. Chali Sophonpanich
or Mr. Chai Vinichbutr or Mr. Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi
which need to be jointly signed with Mr. Chotiphat
Bijananda or Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks, totaling 2
directors and affix the company’s seal.

Mr. Chotiphat Bijananda, Mr. Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi
and Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks represent Frasers
Group and Mr. Chali Sophonpanich represents City
Realty Group.

Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board
of Directors

1. To act in a best interest of the Company and
all shareholders (Fiduciary Duty) by observing
the following four main practices:

1) To perform its duties with due diligence
and care (Duty of Care).

2) To perform its duties with faithfulness
and honesty (Duty of Loyalty).

3) To perform its duties in compliance with
laws, objectives, Company’s Articles of
Association, the resolution of the Board
of Directors, and resolutions of share-
holders’ meetings (Duty of Obedience).

4) To disclose information to shareholders
accurately, completely, and transparently
with verification and timelines (Duty of
Disclosure).

2. To arrange an Annual General Meeting within
4 months after the end of the Company’s
fiscal year. In summoning a meeting of
shareholders, the Board of Directors shall
send a notice of summoning of the meeting,
wherein specifying the place, date, time and
agenda for the meeting, as well as the
matters to be proposed to the meeting in
advance, within an appropriate period but not
less than the period specified by related
regulations.

3. To hold a Board of Directors meeting at least
once every 3 months

4. To oversee and ensure that the Company
maintains efficiency and accountability in its
accounting system, financial reporting pro-
cess, internal controls, internal audits and risk
management.
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10.

11.

To oversee and ensure that the Company’s
balance sheet and income statement have
been duly prepared with true, complete and
accurate information in compliance with
Financial Reporting Standards, and been
audited by the Company’s auditor prior to
proposal for the Shareholders’ consideration
and approval.

To formulate visions, directions and strategies
of the Company, including policies, operational
plans and budget. To monitor and supervise
the Management to function in accordance
with such policies, and to plan and budget
with efficiency and effectiveness.

To approve the interim dividend payment
(if any)

To oversee and ensure that the Company
has established a system and/or procedure
for risk management through appropriate and
sufficient risk management guidelines and
measures, with regular monitoring. To ensure
that the set vision, direction and strategy
have been effectively brought to implementation.

To govern and oversee the operations of the
Company and its subsidiaries to be in
compliance with the Securities and Exchange
Act, the Notification of Securities and
Exchange Commission, and regulations of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, i.e. connected
transactions, acquisition/disposition of
assets, and other related laws.

To oversee, review and approve the business
expansion plan and major investment
projects as well as the entering into joint
ventures with other companies as proposed
by the Management.

To consider and approve the appointment
and/or the change of the Company’s
representatives to be assigned to hold office
as directors and/or the Management of the
Company'’s subsidiaries/associated companies
in relation to the shareholding proportion. The
Board of Directors is also responsible for the
setup of the policy and governance mechanism
to monitor and supervise the management
and operations of subsidiaries and associated
companies in order to protect interests in the
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13.

Company’s investments, in accordance with
the Notification of Securities and Exchange
Commission.

To formulate the management structure and
to approve the appointment of the Executive
Committee, the Chief Executive Officer and
other Sub-Committees, as deemed appropriate,
i.e. the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Compensation Committee,
the Corporate Governance Committee and
the Risk Management Committee, including
the determination of the Sub-Committees’
roles and responsibilities and their remuneration.

The delegation of authority to take the foregoing
actions shall not extend to any authority in
considering and approval of connected
transactions or transactions that may cause
conflict of interest (if any), unless otherwise
the transaction is considered as a normal
course of business, with normal commercial
terms, or be in accordance with the policy
and procedure approved by the Board of
Directors in respect to the rules, conditions
and guidelines specified by the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and
other governed regulations.

The delegation of authority must be explicit
and in writing or formally recorded as the
resolution of the Board of Directors meeting
in the minutes, with specific role and
responsibilities of the authorised person.

The Board of Directors may delegate certain
authorities, as deemed appropriate, to a
director or directors or other person to act on
behalf of the Board of Directors, subject to
the supervision of the Board of Directors, or
delegate to such person the authorities as the
Board of Directors deems appropriate and for
a certain period as the Board of Directors
deems appropriate, provided that the Board
of Directors may cancel, revoke or amend
such authorities and, that said, authorization
in no way allows such authorized person to
approve any transactions in which such
authorized person or another person may
have conflict, interest or conflicts of interest in
other matters with the Company or its
subsidiaries, unless otherwise the transaction
is considered as a normal course of



14.

15.

16.

17.

business, with normal commercial terms, or
be in accordance with the policy and procedure
approved by the Board of Directors in respect
to the rules, conditions, regulation and
guidelines of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, i.e. connected transactions,
acquisition/disposition of assets and Notification
of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and other governed regulations.

To report and update the “Report on the
interest of Director and Executive” to the
Company, in compliance with the rules and
regulations of the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Directors must
inform the Company of relationships or
transactions with the Company, subsidiaries
or associate companies in any business
which may give rise to a conflict of interests.
Any connected transaction with directors
which may give rise to a conflict of interests
with the Company must be avoided.

Directors and Management (including their
spouse and any minor child) must not use
insider information of the Company, subsidiaries
or associate companies which has not yet
been disclosed to the public, whether the
information is derived from performing of their
own duties or any other way that may have a
material effect on the Company, subsidiaries
or associate companies for their own benefit,
or that of others with or without benefit in
return. If the director knows any insider
material information which has not yet been
disclosed to the public and might affect the
share price, that director must not disclose
that information to any person and must
cease from trading the Company shares for a
prescribed period until after the information is
publicly disclosed.

To set forth a corporate governance policy
and code of conduct to guide directors and
employees, with regular review and assessment.

To set out, oversee and follow up the
formulation of an anti-corruption policy and
practical guidelines, and to ensure that such
policy and guidelines have been strictly
implemented and conformed to, by
communicating them effectively to all
employees and suppliers.
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18. To formulate a complaint handling policy and
oversee to ensure that the Company has
clear and proper procedure for complaint
handling, including putting measures in place
to protect and maintain the confidentiality of
the complainants.

19. To appoint the Company Secretary to assist
and administer certain activities of the
Company and the Board, such as the Board
of Directors’ meeting, and shareholders’
meetings. The Company Secretary shall also
advise the Company and the Board on their
compliance with requisite duties to applicable
rules and regulations, and shall ensure the
accurate, complete, transparent and timely
disclosure of information by the Company
and the directors.

3. Executive Committee

As of 30 September 2018, the Company’s Executive
Committee consisted of 4 members as follows:

1. Mr. Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi
Chairman of the Committee
2. Mr. Chai Vinichbutr
Member of the Committee
3. Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks
Member of the Committee
4. Mr. Sopon Racharaksa
Member and Secretary of the Committee

Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the
Executive Committee

The Executive Committee shall determine strategic
development plan for TICON group, approve details
of investment, either financial or non-financial
matters, in order to achieve the Company’s
objective, add value for the shareholders in the long
run and supervise the operation of the group of
companies.

1. The Executive Committee is empowered to
do any act on behalf of the Company which is
desirable and not in contradiction to the
Articles of Association or any rules expressly
indicated, act on behalf of the Company in
the Company’s meeting except otherwise
specifically reserved for the discretion of the
Board of Directors only:
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1.1 Sell or assign the Company’s obligation
or property whether in whole or material
part.

1.2 Conduct any transaction for the purpose
of acquiring or disposing any significant
property of the Company.

1.3 Appoint the Board of Directors or the
committee or determine, amend or adjust
details of Roles, Duties and Responsibilities
of the Board of Directors or of any committee.

2. The Executive Committee shall determine the
guideline and supervise general operation of
the Company and TICON group.

2.1 Determine strategic development plan for
TICON group.

2.2 Take possible steps necessary for
maintaining the benefit of TICON group.

2.3 Review and approve value, strategies,
objective, budget plan and business plan
of the organization.

2.4 Review and approve significant transactions
(e.g. investment, acquisition and disposal)
the total value of which does not exceed
the specified amount or as proposed by
the Executive Committee from time to
time, specifically or generally, by the
Board.

2.5 Review and approve policy on financial
resources management and human
resources management.

2.6 Review the Company’s and TICON
group’s performance, both financial and
non-financial aspects.

2.7 Review and consider letter of consent
and letter of intent signed by China legal
representative (person with full authority
to represent, exercise rights and be
bound on behalf of the company in
China) which is maintained by the
Company’s Secretary.

2.8 Monitor and review the Company’s
accounting system in China from time to
time by referring financial practices
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including Finance seal and setting up
group of joint signatories for cost and
expense management.

3. The Executive Committee shall determine
criteria for qualifying the candidate, review
and approve the appointment/nomination of
candidate for senior executive positions in
TICON group including CEO, President, Chief
Financial Officer and other senior executives
(directly reporting to CEO, President and
Chief Financial Officer).

4. Audit Committee

As of 30 September 2018, the Audit Committee
consisted of 4 members as follows:

1. Mr. Threekwan Bunnag
Chairman of the Audit Committee and Independent
Director

2. Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom
Member of the Audit Committee and Independent
Director

3. Mr. Chatchaval Jiaravanon
Member of the Audit Committee and Independent
Director

4. Mr. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai
Member of the Audit Committee and Independent
Director

Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit
Committee

1. Review the Company’s financial report to
ensure accuracy and accountability, including
adequate disclosure, by coordinating with the
certified public accountant and the executive
who are responsible for preparing the
quarterly and annual financial reports.

2. Give opinions on connected transactions or
transactions which may constitute potential
conflicts of interest to ensure compliance with
the laws and regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand including laws related
to the business of the Company so as to
assure that such transactions are reasonable
and most beneficial to the Company.

3. Review the internal control system and
internal audit of the Company to ensure
appropriateness and effectiveness according
to the international process and standard.



10.

11.

Review the performance control and
follow-up procedure of the Company to
ensure compliance with the Securities and
Exchange law, rules, regulations or laws
relating to business of the Company.

Review the risk management procedure of
the Company to ensure comprehensiveness,
effectiveness and compliance with the
international standard.

Review the Company’s procedures for
working, controlling and overseeing the
information technology and preservation of
data security and communication network to
ensure effectiveness and compliance with the
international standard.

Review the Company’s good corporate
governance procedure, anti-corruption
procedures to ensure effectiveness and
compliance with guidelines of the regulatory
organizations.

Approve the charter, work plans and the
appropriateness of resource allocation,
manpower of the internal audit department as
well as support the development of potential
and professional progress of the internal
auditors.

Consider, select, nominate for appointment
and evaluate the performance of the chief of
the internal audit department or chief of the
external audit firm that provides internal audit
service as well as the independence of the
internal audit department.

Consider, select, nominate an independent
person to be the external auditor of the
Company including his remuneration by
taking into account the appropriateness, and
evaluate the performance efficiency of the
external auditor so as to propose the Board
of Directors for consideration and propose
the shareholders’ meeting for approval, as
well as convene the meeting with the external
auditors at least one meeting a year without
the presence of management to seek
opinions in various matters from the external
auditors.

Consider the audit scope and audit plan of
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the external auditor and the internal auditor to
ensure consistency and to reduce overlapping
in the part relating to the internal audit.

12. Annually conduct the evaluation of the Audit
Committee for the overall performance, team
performance, and individual performance and
report the evaluation results to the Board of
Directors.

13. Review to ensure that the Company has the
procedures for the receipt of complaint and
procedures for overseeing such matters.

14. Attend the shareholders’ meeting to clarify
and/or answer questions related to the Audit
Committee or the appointment of the external
auditor.

15. Report the Audit Committee’s result of
performance to the Board of Directors at least
once a quarter so as to acknowledge the
Board of Directors of the activities of the
Audit Committee in due time and to enhance
efficiency in the performance of the Audit
Committee. The aforesaid excludes the result
of performance in the fourth quarter which
shall be conducted as the annual report of
the Audit Committee and disclose in the
annual report of the Company. Such report
must be signed by the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and should consist of opinions on
various matters according to the SET
regulations.

16. Review the Audit Committee Charter by
examining, evaluating on its adequacy and
appropriateness based on the events or
situations that may change, and propose to
the Board of Directors for consideration and
approval

17. Performs other duties as assigned by the
Board of Directors with the agreement of the
Audit Committee.

In its performance under the scope of duties, the
Audit Committee shall have the authority to call for
the management, chief of department or staff
involved in such matters to give opinions, attend the
meetings or submit relevant documents as well as
seeking independent opinions from any other
professional counsel when it is deemed necessary
at the expense of the company.
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The Audit Committee shall perform its duties under
the scope of duties and responsibilities according to
the instruction of the Board of Directors who is
responsible directly to shareholders, stakeholders
and public.

5. Compensation Committee

As of 30 September 2018, the Compensation
Committee consisted of 3 members as follows:

1. Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom

Chairman of the Compensation Committee
2. Mr. Chatchaval Jiaravanon

Member of the Compensation Committee
3. Mr. Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi

Member of the Compensation Committee

Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the
Compensation Committee

1. Review and give advice to the Board of
Directors to secure approval by the Board for:

*  General working scope for compensation
of the Board of Directors and key personnel
from the management (namely, CEO,
President and other person having power
and duty relating to planning, directing
and controlling activities of the Company/
group) of companies.

+  Compensation for each director and key
management personnel of the group of
companies.

*  Planning for succession

The review by the Compensation Committee shall
cover all aspects of compensation including such for
directors, special compensation for director carrying
out special duty or function for the Company or
group of companies, salary, meeting allowance,
bonus, securities option program, incentive, reward
and other types of compensation.

2. Main objectives
*  Determine transparent standard procedures
for developing policy concerning
compensation for the management and

each director.

e Determine level and structure of
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compensation to reflect long-term benefit
and risk management policy adopted
by the group of companies to the extent
that it can satisfactorily provide incentives
for director and the management in
discharging their duties and ultimately
facilitate the performance as a whole.

Requirement

1. Take appropriate steps to ensure that policies
and compensation system approved by the
Board of Directors have been properly
implemented in accordance with the group of
companies’ objective and strategies.

2. Review policies and procedures concerning
compensation and benefit on annual basis.
This includes plan on performance/limitation
and/or other long-term incentive plan in order
to:

e Support long-term incentive plan which
includes stock option program or other
kinds of benefits under limited period of
time where the recipient can only enjoy
certain part of the benefits each year.

*  Support the executive committee and the
management to hold the shares beyond
the maturity period depending on
necessity on financial management for
the cost of share acquisition and relevant
tax burden.

» Evaluate cost and benefit of long-term
incentive plan and the executive committee
and the management should enjoy the
benefits under such plan.

*  Give suggestion to the Board of Directors
regarding the approval of amendment,
adjustment or any incentive plan from
time to time.

3. Review the approval made by the Board of
Directors on annual basis (as well as
non-executive director to be approved in the
annual general meeting of the shareholders),
performance and compensation of
non-executive director, executive director and
the management based on policy and
procedures for approved compensation
including following issues:



e The compensation for the executive
director and the management should
reflect or be proportionate to performance
of the company and each individual at
the same time, be in line with the benefit
of the shareholders and support
long-term success and risk management
policy of the group of companies.

e The Compensation for non-executive
director should be proportionate to one’s
performance in terms of contribution,
time spent, duties and responsibilities
and tock option program for
non-executive director to ensure that
such compensation is consistent with the
benefit of the shareholders.

Propose to the Board of Directors the
objectives and guidelines for proper
performance in order to support the evaluation
of each executive and director and the Board
of Directors.

Review the obligation of the group of companies
as a result of termination of employment
contract with the executive director and the
management to ensure that such contract
constitutes the provisions regarding fair and
reasonable termination of employment which
are not too much in favor of them and seek
how to exercise the provision under the
contract to allow the group of companies to
demand for the return of part of compensation
from the executive director and the management
under special circumstances such as giving
erroneous financial information or conducting
works improperly leading to financial damage
to the group of companies.

Manage to approve the benefits e.g. special
reward, bonus, stock option program or other
long-term incentive plan to senior management
of the group of companies based on the
performance of each company.

Give advice to the management in respect of
the policy on compensation and benefit for
other employees in addition to the management.

6. Nomination Committee

As of 30 September 2018, the Nomination
Committee consisted of 3 members as follows:
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1. Mr. Chatchaval Jiaravanon

Chairman of the Nomination Committee
2. Mr. Threekwan Bunnag

Member of the Nomination Committee
3. Mr. Chotiphat Bijananda

Member of the Nomination Committee

Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee

1. Set official and transparent criteria and
procedures for selection and resumption of
the member of the Board of Directors.

2. Conduct annual performance assessment of
the entire Board, Committee and
Sub-committee and of each member toward
the effectiveness of the Board of Directors.

Requirement

1. The Nomination Committee shall:

1.1 Provide advice to the Board of Directors
concerning the appointment of the Board
of Directors and its component taking into
account the balanced mixing of executive
and non-executive directors and between
independent directors and non-independent
directors as well as the scope and nature
of operation of the group of companies,
business requirements and how to avoid
improper change of the component of the
Board and the committee.

1.2 Review the structure, size, component
and independency of the Board of
Directors and give necessary suggestion
to the Board of Directors in relation to
certain improvement. The Nomination
Committee shall ensure that there shall
always be Independent Director(s)
constituting and actively performing
function in the Board at least one third or
half of the total number of the directors.

1.3 Consider if any director’s term of office
shall expire in the annual general meeting
of the shareholders each year under the
concept that each director’s term of office
shall expire at least once every three
years.

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform

43



44

Annual Report 2018

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

Give advice relating to appointment of the
director or resumption [and substitute (if
any)] as a part of the nomination
procedures. The Nomination Committee
shall consider the component of the
Board of Directors, capacity, devotion,
participation and performance of each
director (e.g. preparedness, participation
and openness) as well as the role of
Independent Director. The Nomination
Committee shall take steps to ensure that
the name of candidates for appointment
as the Company’s director or for
resumption of his/her office presented to
the Board for approval shall be disclosed
in the annual report (including disclosure
of selection and nomination process).

Determine succession plan of the Board
of Directors for approval by the Board of
Directors and give advice about issues
relating to the review of succession plan
of the Board of Directors, especially the
title of the Chairman of the Board, CEO,
President and Chief Financial Officer.

Identify candidate, review and consent to
the nomination of following titles:

e Company’s director or substitute

(whether the appointment or
resumption)

*  Members of the committee (including

the Audit Committee, the Compensation
Committee and the Nomination
Committee) evaluate qualifications
and experience of newly nominated
candidate to the Board of Directors
President and Chief Financial Officer.

Take steps to ensure that substitute
director is familiar with the Company’s
business and holds desirable qualifications.
In case of any person is nominated to
replace any Independent Director, the
Nomination Committee shall ensure that
such person holds qualifications similar to
those of such Independent Director be-
fore appointing such person.
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1.8 Review on yearly basis and when
necessary if any director has independency
and considers other significant factors.

1.9 If the Nomination Committee views that
certain director may not be qualified for
independency, the Nomination Committee
shall present their comment to the Board
of Directors for consideration and if the
Nomination Committee views that any
director is not performing one’s duty
independently, the Committee shall
present the review result to the Board
ofDirectors for consideration as well.

1.10 Review other director positions if that
particular has been performing one’s duty
adequately as the Company’s director
taking into account the position taken in
other companies and his/her other jobs
and the Nomination shall exercise their
discretion on fixing maximum number of
directorship in other companies that can
be taken by each director.

1.11 Review significant information relating to
the director to be included in the annual
report. Such information comprises
detailed background of each director
including education and expertise,
shareholding in the company and other
related companies, the committee of
which that director is a member (as
member or chairman), date of first
appointment as a director, date of latest
appointment as a director and as member
of other committees at present and during
the past three years whether as an
executive director, non-executive director
or Independent Director and other major
duties.

7. Risk Management Committee

As of 30 September 2018, the Risk Management
Committee consisted of 5 members as follows:

1. Mr. Chotiphat Bijananda

Chairman of the Risk Management Committee
2. Mr. Threekwan Bunnag

Member of the Risk Management Committee
3. Mr. Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi

Member of the Risk Management Committee
4. Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks



Member of the Risk Management Committee

5. Mr. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai*
Member of the Risk Management Committee
* Mr. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai was appointed as member of the Risk Management

Committee on 19 February 2018

Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Risk
Management Committee

1. Consider and approve policy, objective and
scope of risk management as a guideline for
risk management operation by the staff in
harmonized way and in line with business
strategies and goal. Policy, objective and
scope of risk management will be, however,
revised every year to reflect early warning
signal.

2. Consider risk management policy toward the
Company’s transaction to cover Business &
Strategic Risk, Market Risk, Credit Risk,
Liquidity Risk, Operational Risk, Financial
Report Risk, Legal & Compliance Risk and
Reputational Risk.

3. Ensure that risk is identified taking into
account internal and external factors that may
prevent the Company from achieving its
pre-determined objectives and the impact
and possibility of given risks is evaluated to
set priority and properly handle such risk.

4. Consider and review the approaches and
tools for effective risk management by the
Company which are suitable for the nature
and extent of the risk of transaction concluded
by the Company.

5. Consider and revise fixing of risk limits and
corrective measures to be implemented if risk
is beyond such risk limit.

6. Follow up risk assessment either in normal
and critical condition (Stress Testing).

7. Evaluate risk possibly originates from new
product or from newly set up business as well
as define measures against possible risk
associating with the transaction.

8. Review the Charter of the Risk Management
Committee on annual basis and any

10.

11.
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amendment thereto shall be presented to the
Board of Directors for approval.

Report risk management results to the Board
of Directors and in case of significant factor
or event that may significantly affect the
Company; it shall be reported to the Board of
Directors for acknowledgement as soon as
possible.

Supervise and give support to risk
management concerning anti-corruption by
assessing risk of corruption and reviewing the
adequacy and appropriateness of
anti-corruption measures.

Perform other duties as assigned by the
Board of Directors.

8. Corporate Governance Committee

As of 30 September 2018, the Corporate Governance
Committee had 4 members as follows:

1. Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom

Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
2. Mr. Threekwan Bunnag

Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
3. Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks

Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
4. Mr. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai*

Member of the Corporate Governance Committee

* Mr. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai was appointed as member of the Corporate

Governance Committee on 19 February 2018

Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of
the Corporate Governance Committee

Consider and review good corporate governance
policy to be proposed to the Board of
Directors.

Provide suggestion on the good corporate
governance to the Board of Directors.

Review the Company’s good corporate
governance practices and guidelines by
comparing to those applied by other listed
companies and then propose them to the
Board of Directors.

Consider and review policy and practical
guideline on Sustainability Management (SM)
which includes Corporate Social Responsibility
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(CSR) to be presented to the Board of
Directors.

5. Consider and review anti-corruption policy to
be presented to the Board of Directors.

6. Provide recommendations on following up
and reporting activities relating to anti-corruption
policy to the Board of Directors at least once
a year.

7. Consider and review the policy on whistle
blowing or lodgment of complaint to be
presented to Board of Directors.

8. Disclose good corporate governance policy
and practical guideline to all stakeholders
including the Company’s shareholders,
creditors, employees, customers, suppliers,
competitors, communities and the public.

9. Give advice to the working group for
preparing documentations necessary for
ranking audit on good corporate governance
by independent organization.

10. Provide consultation for the management and
employees with respect to compliance with
anti-corruption policy.

11. Give advice to the working group for preparing
documentations necessary for renewing CAC
Certified Company with independent
organization.

12. Review and revise the Charter of the
Corporate Governance Committee to be
presented to the Board of Directors for
approval.

9. Management Team

As of 3 October 2018, in accordance with SEC
definition the Company’s management team is as
follows:

1. Mr. Sopon Racharaksa
President
2. Miss Lalitphant Phiriyaphant
Chief Financial Officer
3. Dr. Somsak Chaiyaporn
General Manager
4. Miss Kamonkarn Kongkathong
Head of Corporate Strategy & Investment
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5. Mr. Harry Yan Khek Wee"
SVP - Investment Property
6. Miss Lok Cheng Yee?
VP - Design Management
7. Miss Teh Chiew Har”
VP - Business Development
8. Miss Rojana Asawavichienjinda
Head of Finance and Accounting

Note:
1) Appointed as executive of the company on 1 September 2018
2) Appointed as executive of the company on 1 October 2018

3) Appointed as executive of the company on 1 October 2018
Scope of Authorities and Duties

The Management is authorized to carry out tasks
assigned by the Board of Directors under the rules,
regulations and Articles of Association of the
Company. However, any member of the Management
having a material interest, directly or indirectly, or
having a conflict of interests in any nature with the
Company/Subsidiaries, as defined by the SEC, has
no right to engage in such matter.

Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Top
Executive

1. Efficiently and successfully implement
policies assigned by the Board, in accordance
with good Corporate Governance principles
and fair responsibility to shareholders.

2. Create strategic plans for financial, investment,
management and real estate development in
accord with the Company business.

3. Propose important matters for the Board’s
approval i.e. dividend payment for shareholders,
arrangement of shareholder meetings and
selecting, nominating and proposing the
independent auditor’s fees.

4. Approval of important matters concerning the
Company operations.

5. Acknowledge complaints, fraud suspicions
and questions about Ethical Standards and
Business Code of Conduct, by following the
process of dealing with the matters of
complaint.

6. Authority to order employees at all levels

7. Promote qualified individuals, who have



knowledge, skills and experience useful to
the Company, to Management.

Finance and Accounting Management Team

As of 3 October 2018, the Company’s finance and
accounting management team is as follows:

1. Miss Lalitphant Phiriyaphant
Chief Financial Officer

2. Miss Rojana Asawavichienjinda
Head of Finance and Accounting

3. Miss Rungtip Piyayodilokchai
Head of Strategic Finance

4. Miss Nusra Vongsuksiri
Head of Treasury (Acting)

Company Secretary

The Board of Directors has appointed Miss Lalitphant
Phiriyaphant who is a knowledgeable, capable,
qualified and experienced person as company
secretary to organize Board and Shareholder’s
meetings and ensure the Company’s performance in
accordance with good governance principles.

Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Company
Secretary

1. Provide advice pertaining to legal, regulatory
and any relevant regulators’ articles of
associations that the Company must conform
to correctly. Report changes on matters that
have a significant impact on the Company to
the Board as necessary.

2. Organize the Board and shareholders’ meetings
as well as arrange and send notices and
record, prepare and disclose minutes.

3. Announce the Board’s resolutions and
policies to the management for their compli-
ance.

4. Prepare and maintain any documents relating
to the meetings of the Board and shareholders,
the Company'’s statutory register of directors
and the management and prepare the report
on the interest of directors and the management,
etc.

5. Ensure that appropriate company information
is disclosed accurately, completely and
adequately for investors’ decision making.
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6. Be coordinator and mediator between the
shareholders, the Board and the management.

7. Perform other duties as assigned by the
Board.

10. Compensation for Directors and
the Management

Criteria for determination of compensation for
the Board and committee members

Compensation is fixed for member of the Board and
committee by taking into account the duties and
responsibilities of each member as well as the
Company’s performance and compensation paid by
listed companies under the same industry. The
compensation has been initially determined by the
Compensation Committee, and proposed to
shareholders for approval.

Whereas the 2018 Annual Ordinary General Meeting
of Shareholders, held on March 27, 2018, has
approved the compensation as follows Unit : Baht

1) Meeting allowance
* Board of Directors
- Chairman of the Board 20,000 Baht/person/meeting
- Board’s member 10,000 Baht/person/meeting
* Sub-Committees

- Audit Committee’s member | 10,000 Baht/person/meeting

2) Bonus Depending on the Company’s
performance
3) ESOP as directors - None -

compensation

Total compensation for the year not exceed 15,000,000 Baht

Determination of compensation for the
management

The Compensation Committee will consider
compensation for the management, appropriate for
corporate performance against corporate KPIs

10.1 Monetary Compensation

In the fiscal period of January 1 to September 30,
2018, the compensations (accrual basis) paid to
Directors and Audit Committee’s members were as
follows:
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Unit : Baht

Meeting Allowance

Director Audit
Committee

Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom | 160,000 60,000 1,530,000
Mr. Threekwan Bunnag 80,000 60,000 1,370,000
Mr. Chatchaval 40,000 40,000 1,200,000
Jiaravanon
Mr. Tithiphan 80,000 60,000 1,000,000
Chuerboonchai
Mr. Chali Sophonpanich 40,000 - 1,100,000
Mr. Panote 50,000 - 1,000,000
Sirivadhanabhakdi
Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks 70,000 - 1,000,000
Mr. Chotiphat Bijananda 40,000 - 1,200,000
Mr. Chai Vinichbutr 70,000 - 1,000,000

630,000 220,000 10,400,000

With respect to the management, in the fiscal period
of January 1 to September 30, 2018, the Company
paid compensation (accrual basis) to the 8 management
members as follows:

Amount (Baht)

‘ Salary 14,760,000

Bonus 3,185,360
‘ Provident Fund and Social Security Fund 600,262

Total 18,545,622

10.2 Other Compensations

In the fiscal period of January 1 to September 30,
2018, the Company has paid other forms of
compensation to directors and the management as
follows:

1. Directors & Officers Liability Insurance, the
limits of liability not exceeding Baht 100
million.

2. Health Insurance for 9 members of the Board
amount of 207,324 Baht, 8 management
members came to 141,702 Baht.

Furthermore, the management received benefits as
company employee such as monthly salaries,
bonuses and provident fund.
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11. Personnel
As of 3 October 2018, the Company has a total of
277 employees as follows:

Department Number of
Employees (person)

President 1
General Manager 1 ‘
Chief Financial Officer 1
Deputy General Manager 1 ‘
Revenue Management 28
Corporate Service 50
Land Management 3
Property Management 61
Construction 52
Business Development 6
President’s Office/ 4
Center of Excellence
Design Management 7
Finance 42
Internal Audit 4
Corporate Strategy and Investment 16

Total 277

11.1 Total Compensation for Employees

Total compensation for employees in the fiscal
period of January 1 to September 30, 2018 was
equal to 255.87 million baht which was in the form
of salaries, bonuses, fringe benefits, allowances,
provident funds (Company’s contribution), and
business seminars and trainings.

11.2 Human Resource Development Policy

The Company regularly provided trainings and
seminars to help improve skills and knowledge of
employees. That included training new employees
to prepare for their jobs in order to improve work
efficiency and skills of the management and staff.
The Company provided its employees chance to
register for external training as well.

In the fiscal period of January 1 to September 30,
2018, the Company spent a total sum of Baht 9.30
million on human resource development.

11.3 Labor Dispute over the Past 3 Years
- None -
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Shareholders Structure and

Dividend Payment Policy

Number of Registered and Paid-Up Capital

As at 30 November 2018, the Company had registered capital of Baht 2,751,213,562 and paid-up capital of Baht
1,834,142,375 consisting of 1,834,142,375 common shares at a par value of Baht 1 per share.

Shareholders Structure

Shareholders

The shareholders reported to the Stock Exchange of Thailand as at the closing date of the share register book on
30 November 2018 is:

Share register book on 30 November 2018

h hol
Shareholders No. of shares

1) Frasers Property Group
* Frasers Assets Co., Ltd. 889,853,278 48.52
* Frasers Property Holdings (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 751,004,000 40.95
1,640,857,278 89.47

2) City Realty Group

« City Villa Co., Ltd. 20,000,000 1.09
20,000,000 1.09
3) DBS Bank Ltd. 49,589,000 2,70
4) Mr. Jatupon Kriangchaikijkul 20,000,000 1.09
5) Mr. Voraphan Thepbanchaporn 6,687,800 0.36
6) Bangkok Insurance Public Co., Ltd. 5,835,524 0.32
7) Southeast Capital Co., Ltd. 5,610,600 0.31
8) Thai N.V.D.R. Limited 3,429,215 0.19
9) Miss Pornpen Dejvilaisri 2,815,500 0.15
10) Others 79,317,458 4.32
Total 1,834,142,375 100.00

Dividend Payment Policy

The Company has a dividend payment policy of not less than 40 percent of net profit after tax; however, the final
dividend payment will depend on the Company’s results, financial condition, liquidity requirement and other rele-
vant factors. At present, there is no dividend payment restriction under loan agreement between the Company and
financial institutions.
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Nature of Business
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TICON Business Overview

The Company engages in development and management of industrial properties which are Ready-Built Factory
and Ready-Built Warehouse, with a strategic direction to pursue more development in Built-to-Suit Industrial
property in order to cater for larger client base in accordance with its announcement of “Total Dimension” 3-year
business roadmap underneath the transformation strategy to strengthen and enhance capability to compete in the
long run, and stepping up to a leading provider of smart industrial platform. The Company has a plan to develop
industrial property along with becoming total solution provider to drive for business sustainability. TICON is ready
to move forward and promptly collaborate with strategic partnership to enhance its latency through a group network
to create new revenue stream in order to add value to its core business. The Company actively focus on new
growth over new business segment to meet customer’'s demand in the Industry 4.0 business environment. TICON

Industrial Property Technology Smart Solution
Revenue Structure

As at September 2018, the Company’s revenue contribution was from assets sold to TREIT and Built-to-Suit
warehouse sold to third parties, While rental and services income and revenue from management of property were
growing due to occupancy rate improvement. Please refer to further analysis of Revenue Structure under
Management Discussion and Analysis section.

2016 2017 January — September 2018
Revenue Structure Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht %
Sales of properties 250.68 10.36 194.36 8.07 2,209.57 55.06
Rental and service income 1,172.12 48.44 1,372.60 56.96 1,150.86 28.69
Properties management fee from 201.12 8.31 239.15 9.92 226.90 5.65

associated companies

Other revenues 248.59 10.28 280.73 11.65 227.24 5.66

Revenue before profit sharing and 1,872.51 77.39 2,086.84 86.60 3,814.56 95.06
realized additional gains

Share of profit from investment in 252.22 10.42 275.42 11.40 195.56 4.87
associated companies based on equity

method

Realized additional gains on sales of 294.95 12.19 48.30 2.00 2.69 0.07

properties to associated

companies

2,419.68 100.00 2,410.56 100.00 4,012.81

Industrial property

Business Overview

The Company provides integrated development of industrial properties with a strong portfolio of factory and
warehouse of over 2.7 million square meters under management in strategic locations nationwide. Factory and
warehouse offered by TICON are both in Ready-Built and Built-to-Suit type by targeting to escalate Built-to-Suit
development project. The Company’s factories and warehouses are located in strategic locations under various
industrial estates, industrial parks, industrial promotion zones, logistic parks, and free-trade zones of Thailand.
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Details of factories under managed by the Company in 16 locations are:

Location
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Number of Factory

Province TICON TREIT
Bang Pa-In Industrial Estate Ayutthaya 2 13
Hi-Tech Industrial Estate Ayutthaya 8 36
Rojana Industrial Park - Ayutthaya Ayutthaya 23 50
Amata City Chon Buri Industrial Estate Chon Buri 19 94
Laemchabang Industrial Estate Chon Buri 30 -
Hemaraj Chon Buri Industrial Estate Chon Buri 4 3
Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate Rayong 13 30
Bangpoo Industrial Estate Samut Prakan 2 11
Asia Industrial Estate Samut Prakan 28 -
Navanakorn Industrial Promotion Zone Pathum Thani 8 17
Lat Krabang Industrial Estate Bangkok 1 -
Kabinburi Industrial Zone Prachin Buri 7 -
Rojana Industrial Park - Prachin Buri Prachin Buri 8 -
Pinthong Industrial Estates (3 locations) Chon Buri - 42

*Note: Not including the areas pending for development

Details of warehouses under managed by the Company in 24 locations* are:

Number of warehouse

Location Province TICON TREIT
Logistic Park Bangna Chachoengsao 21 82
TPARK Laemchabang 1 Chon Buri - 21
TPARK Laemchabang 2 Chon Buri 29 15
Logistic Park Wangnoi (2 locations) Ayutthaya 21 17
TPARK Eastern Seaboard Rayong 12 4
TPARK Eastern Seaboard 1 and 2 Chon Buri 9 11
Logistic Park Eastern Seaboard 3 Chon Buri 8 -
TPARK Sri Racha Chon Buri 17 5
Hemaraj Chon Buri (Bo Win) Industrial Estate Chon Buri - 9
TPARK Phan Thong Chon Buri 10 5
TPARK Bang Phli (5 locations) Samut Prakan 18 38
Rojana Industrial Park - Prachin Buri Prachin Buri 8 1
Rojana Industrial Park - Ayutthaya Ayutthaya - &
Amata City Chon Buri Industrial Estate Chon Buri - 7
Logistic Park Khon Kaen Khon Kaen 12 -
Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate Rayong 11 -
TPARK Samut Sakhon Samut Sakhon 2 -
TPARK Lamphun Lamphun 9 -

*Note: Not including the areas pending for development

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform

53



54

Annual Report 2018

Business Operations by Product Types

1) Ready-Built Factory

The Company develops Ready-Built Factory of
international standard in order to facilitate demand
of manufacturers and companies who want to set up
a business in Thailand but do not want to own the
factories in order to reduce investment cost and
preserve business flexibility. The Company
develops factories in many strategic locations of
Thailand that can cater for manufacturers of
different industries. The Company also provides
other services related to setting up a business in
Thailand since more than 90% of tenants are foreign
companies.

The Company chooses locations of the factories
based on demand of existing tenants as well as
potential market demand in the near future. The
Company also considers other factors when
determining the locations including benefits under
promotional zones, accessibility to international
ports and airports, proximity to Bangkok as well as
quality of infrastructure of industrial estates and/or
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industrial parks.

The Company develops factories in Export Processing
Zone, General Industrial Zone as well as other
areas as required by the tenants. The demand from
tenants can be specific, for example manufacturer
who wants factories in Export Processing Zone
would also prefer to be within proximity of deep sea
port.

Factories of the Company is a single storey building
with mezzanine office, proper fencing and landscaping,
and with attached guard house, parking spaces and
truck loading area. The factories are of international
quality and can be customized to the tenants’
specific requirement. The sizes range from 550
sgm. to 12,000 sgm. Typical sizes of the factories
have been smaller over the years given rising
demand of tenants with smaller-sized business
operations. The factories have 1 - 3 tons floor load
and is built on steel portal frame which does not
require support from structural columns and hence
provides more useable areas.
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Leases between the Company and tenants are The Company also develops Built-to-Suit factories
largely within 3 years. The Company will approach for tenants who want customized designs. Such
tenants for renewal closer to expiry date. Tenants tenancy is beneficial to the Company as the rental
also have an option to re-locate to other factory period is longer at around 5 - 10 years.

locations offer by the Company or rent factories of

other sizes.

At the end of 2016, 2017 and as at September 30, 2018 the Company has occupied factory, and vacant factory
as followings;

2018
(2016 2017
Performance)
Leasable Area Leasable Area Leasable Area
399,780 Sq. M. 394,780 Sqg. M. 395,800 Sq. M.
155 Factories 153 Factories 153 Factories
510 57%
46%
13,850 16,700 18,180

215,275 194,450 168,615

Occupancy Rate

170,655 209,005 Secured Contract
Bl Available
B Contract

Note: The occupancy rate includes customers with pre-lease contracts.

The occupancy rate of TICON'’s factory at September 2018 was 57%, higher than 51% as at 2017. Demand of
factories have been driven by medium-size tenants under electronics industry, automotive industry and consumer
products. The popularity of factories in-demand locates in Eastern Economic Corridor (EEC).

As at September 30, 2018, breakdown of TICON’s customers by industries and by countries are:

——= Others 12.9% /—- Others 9.1%

7 Thailand 3.7%
e /
Auto parts 34.3% >—\
Textile 2.7% \

Germany5.8%

—= Japan 37.9%

/

Office supplies 3.0% +«—

Paper and Package 3.5% +~——

Drugand s———— China 9.2%

medical supplies 3.8%

Country/

Industry Region

isti i i 2%
Logistic service provider 5.2% Singapore 11.7%

Food & Beverage 5.7%
Electronics 28.9%

\
\__. Europe 22.6%

Note: The above calculation is based on rental and service income as at September 30, 2018.
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2) Ready-Built Warehouse

The Company’s wholly owned subsidiary TICON
Logistics Park Co., Ltd. (“TPARK”) is a leading
developer in ready-built warehouses of international
quality. Logistics is an essential business to
distribute goods and supplies to other parts of the
country and is a key to develop Thailand to become
ASEAN hub. Presently, majority of logistics
providers prefer to invest in technological software
and logistics system. This creates an ideal opportunity
for the Company to lease warehouses to these
logistics providers.

56

The Company’s warehouses are located in strategic
locations that are ideal to be distribution centers.
The warehouses are designed to suit modern logistics
management systems, with clear heights, wide
column spans, dock levelers, and sufficient floor
loads.

Typically, warehouse leases are around 3 years with
option to renew. Going forward, the Company
expects more contribution of Built-to-Suit warehouses
which has leases of more than 3 years. The average
term of Built-to-Suit contracts is 10 years. The Company
also offers Sale and Leaseback option for its
customers.

The Leading Provider of
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At the end of 2016, 2017 and as at September 30, 2018 the Company has occupied warehouse and vacant ware-
house as followings;

2018
(9 month
2016 2017 e
Leasable Area Leasable Area Leasable Area
682,567 Sq. M. 816,620 Sq. M. 731,314 Sq. M.
181 warehouses 216 warehouses 187 warehouses
74%
68%
- 72%
34,340

259,100 188,493

194,230

Occupancy Rate

523,180 538,281 Secured Contract
B Available
B Contract

Note: The occupancy rate includes customers with pre-lease contracts.

Occupancy rate of warehouse as at September 30, 2018 was 74%, higher than 68% in 2017 due to an increasing
in warehouse rent in Bang Phli and Kon Kaen.

For the year 2018, the Company reported net addition of 80,419 square meters mainly from demand of customers
particularly in logistics, electronic parts, e-commerce and food & beverage.

As at September 2018, breakdown of TPARK’s customers by industries and by countries are:

Singapore 1.8%
Others 2.7%

E-commerce 2.8% [ Retail 0.4% Australia 2.9%  «——

—' Others 1.5% France 4.0% «~———\

Construction material / .
and equipment 4.9% /] \
D d Logistic service \\
rug an ° . 1
rovider 54.4% \
medical supplier 5.4% p 419
ltaly 4.1% o——

Food and
agriculture 6.1%

—= Germany 29.9%

Switzerland 4.2% e——

China 6.0%

Country/
Region

Automotive 10.2% |

Industry

USA 7.4%

/
/

i 0
Japan 9.9% Thailand 27.1%

Consumables 14.3%

Note: The above calculation is based on rental and service income as at September 30, 2018.
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3) Built-to-Suit Factory and
Warehouse

The Company develops industrial property of which
its design meet customer’s requirement by focusing
on the usage of each business operator in different
industry. In addition, Built-to-Suit project could
maximize factory and warehouse efficiency includes
cost saving and to enhance productivity of business
production as well as warehouse storage. TICON
has a strategic location where ready to develop
Built-to-Suit project under industrial estates, industrial
parks, industrial promotion zones and others zone in
Thailand. Built-to-Suit project has a long-term
contract between 10 to 15 years which positively
affect occupancy rate in terms of driving a sustain
revenue whilst reduce expense and advertisement
cost.

During the year of 2018, TICON sold investment
property by delivering Built-to-Suit warehouse which
built in strategic location to customer, the project as
such could grab attention and spotlight TICON’s
customers. Besides, TICON has Built-to-Suit project
in pipeline for further development.

4) Investment and property
management business

The Company has a policy to invest in real estate
investment trust for not less than 20% of total investment
units to receive recurring investment return which is
in a form of annual dividend payment. In addition,
the Company is also a property manager that
manages property assets owned by TREIT. This
provides another source of stable income to the
Company in a form of property management fees.

5) Trust management business

The Company operates and manages real estate
investment trust TREIT through its 70% owned
subsidiary, TICON Management Co., Ltd. (TMAN).
TICON Converted 3 property funds; TFUND,
TLOGIS and TGROWTH into TREIT on 28 December
2017. Additionally, TREIT acquired assets from
TICON of 79,106 square meters, TREIT has
become the largest industrial real estate investment
trust in Thailand with total assets value of more than
Baht 32 billion. TMAN, as a REIT Manager,
receives management fee on annual basis and pays
dividend to the Company.
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6) Other services

* Modification of factory/warehouse building

The Company has an in-house design team, project
development team and project management team.
The Company is well positioned to assist customers
in design and modification work of factory/
warehouse as required by the customers.

* Procurement of utilities

The Company provides assistance to customers to
procure utility services and other related assistance,
as appropriate.

* Procurement of permits from the authority

The Company provides assistance to customers to
obtain relevant permits and approvals necessary to
commence manufacturing operations swiftly such as
operation permit. Moreover, the Company also
assists the customers to procure work permits for
any of their foreign employees and this is deemed
as one-stop service to customers from other
countries.

* Other services

As the Company has been in the business for a long
time and has good relationship with many business
partners in different industrial sectors, the Company
is in a unique position to provide other relevant
services to the customers e.g. introducing suppliers
or potential employees to the customers.

Benefits and Incentives from the
Board of Investment for the
Company and Operators in the
Promotional Zone

1) Benefits and incentives from
the Board of Investment (BOI) for
factory for rent business

Ready-built factories under selected areas of
Pinthong Industrial Estate, Amata City Chon Buri
Industrial Estate, Hi-Tech Industrial Estate, Hemaraj
Chon Buri Industrial Estate, Asia Industrial Estate,
Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate, Rojana
Industrial Park Ayutthaya, Rojana Industrial Park
Prachin Buri and Kabin Buri Industrial Zone were
granted investment incentives from the Board of
Investment, which are:

 Corporate income tax exemption for the period as



listed below:

- 8 years for the projects in Kabin Buri Industrial
Zone, Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate and
Rojana Industrial Park - Prachin Buri.

- 7 years for the projects in Amata City Chon Buri
Industrial Estate, Hi-Tech Industrial Estate, Pinthong
Industrial Estate and Rojana Industrial Park -
Ayutthaya and Hemaraj Chon Buri Industrial Estate
- 3 years for the projects in Asia Industrial Estate
Companies operating in the promotional areas can
also use losses incurred in prior years to deduct
from net profit for 5 years after tax exemption
period.

+ Dividend received from the business under tax
exemption is also exempted from income tax
throughout the period of tax incentive.

* Importing of skilled labors and/or specialists are
allowed with a certain cap where those labors can
only work in the specified position.

» Permission to remit foreign currencies

2) Benefits and incentives from the
Board of Investment for warehouse
for rent business

The Company’s logistic parks in Wangnoi 2,
Si Racha, Laemchabang 2, Eastern Seaboard 3
and Bang Pakong, Khon Kaen and warehouses in
Hemaraj Chon Buri Industrial Estate (Bo Win),
Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate and Amata City
Chon Buri Industrial Estate and Bangkok Free Trade
Zone were granted investment incentives from the
Board of Investment, which are:

» Corporate income tax exemption for the following
period:

- 8 years for TICON Logistics Park in Wangnoi 2,
Si Racha, Laemchabang 2, Eastern Seaboard, Bang
Pakong, Khon Kaen and warehouses in Laemchabang,
Eastern Seaboard, Khon Kaen and warehouse in
Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate

- 7 years for warehouses in Amata City Chon Buri
Industrial estate and Hemaraj Chon Buri Industrial
Estate

- 3 years for warehouses in Bangkok Free Trade
Zone

Companies operating in the promotional areas can
also use losses incurred in prior years to deduct from
net profit for 5 years after tax exemption period.

Annual Report 2018

 Dividend received from the business under tax
exemption is also exempted from income tax
throughout the period of tax incentive.

 Import duty is exempted for machines approved by
the Board of Investment.

3) Benefits and incentives for
operators in the industrial estate
of the Industrial Estate Authority
of Thailand (IEAT)

TICON has factories in the industrial estates which
are under supervision of IEAT and hence tenants of
those factories obtain certain benefits and incentives
granted by IEAT as follows:

» Tax incentives (Free Trade Zone) where import
duty, value added tax, and excise tax on imported
machines, equipment and raw materials for
manufacturing are exempted. Export duty is also
exempted for export goods.

» Non-tax incentives, for instance, permission to own
lands in the industrial estate under foreign entities,
permission to import skilled labors to Thailand within
the permitted period, service for visa requirement
and work permit as well as permission to remit funds
outside Thailand if those funds were used for
investment or relates to business outside Thailand.

» Other benefits such as applying for relevant
permits from BOI (normally, these permits are
granted by different authorities) including land-use
permit, construction permit, industrial business
operation permit. BOI also provides advisory
services on documentation and legal issues to
investors.

Market and Competition

1) Ready-built factory for rent

Ready-built factory for rent is a crucial part of foreign
operators setting up production base in Thailand
especially SMEs who may choose to rent factory in
order to save their operation cost, expedite
commencement of production and avoid risks from
uncertainties. Particularly, leased factory may offer
complete services for business operator.

The Leading Provider of
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Thailand is a hub to connect to other countries in the
regions especially to CLMV. With abundant skilled
labor and underlying infrastructure, Thailand attracts
investors from other countries including Japan,
China and European Countries to set up their
production base. Incentives and privileges offered
by the Board of Investment (BOI) and initiatives
relating to Eastern Economic Corridor (EEC) are
among efforts from the government to support
requirement of operators in industrial sector.

Competitors and Competitive
Landscape

Developers of ready-built factory for lease can be
classified into 3 categories as follows:

* Industrial estates/industrial parks providers who also
develop factory on their own industrial land e.g.
Hemaraj Land and Development Public Company
Limited, Amata Summit Ready Built Co., Ltd., and
Pinthong Industrial Park Public Company Limited

» Developers who develop factory on industrial land
purchased or leased from the industrial estate
provider such as Thai Factory Development Public
Company Limited, WHA Corporation Public Company
Limited

*  Other smaller developers which are not considered
direct competitors of the Company as their tenants
are SME businesses with limited rental budget.

Although, overall competition of factory for rent
business is quite intense, the Company remains the
largest player in this market with competitive advantage
in diverse strategic locations and complete services
e.g. application for permissions from the authority
and investment promotion from BOI.

The Company’s target customers of ready-built
factory for lease are those part-manufacturers for
large businesses particularly in automotive and
electronic industries. The risk of termination of lease
contract is low for factory tenants in industrial group
as they have to invest in facilities including machine
and production lines to be installed with the factory.

They therefore tend to renew the lease upon expiration
of the existing lease unless they want to cease their
production or seek for expansion of lease space.
The Company is able to offer other locations or
actory sizes according to the customer’s changed
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requirement. as well as the Company has more
variety of locations and factory sizes.

In addition, the Company also offers Built-to-Suit
service to target customer in medium to large of
industrial group with long lease term giving more
definite amount of revenue in the long run.

2) Ready-built warehouse for rent

Warehouse for lease plays an important role in
supporting logistics and distribution business.
Particularly, good logistics management is one of
significant factors attracting more foreign direct
investment in an effort to make Thailand as a hub
for regional distribution. Currently, warehouse for
rent are mainly located in Bangkok and perimeter,
distribution center in major cities in each region
of the country and Laemchabang Port and
Suvarnabhumi Airport.

Competitor and Competitive
Landscape

Developers for ready-built warehouses for lease can
be classified into 2 categories as follows:

» Developer of quality warehouse for lease e.g.
WHA Corporation Public Company Limited and
Hemaraj Land and Development Public Company
Limited, etc.

+ Other smaller warehouse developers which are not
considered direct competitors of the Company as
their tenants are SME businesses with limited rental
budget.

As far as the direct competitors are concerned, the
Company has competitive advantage in terms of
warehouse locations which are in many diversified



areas. The Company also has land banks for
development under Built-to-Suit.

The Company’s major customers include:

* Logistics providers which include domestic and
international leading companies holding managerial
capacity using software and other streamlined
management system. In general, logistic providers
do not invest in property and prefer to lease
warehouses.

« Distribution center and international procurement
office

» Large producers and retailers who want to set up
its distribution center to supply products to their
clients and consumers either in Bangkok or regional
area

* Import and export companies who want to use
warehouses located near the airport or seaport
especially those in free zone

* Online and e-commerce players, both domestic
and Foreign

» Other operators whose business can support
distribution and logistics activities e.g. shipment
service provider, packing service, loading and
unloading service, added value service provider
(quality inspection, labeling, repairing and
assembling/packing) as well as loading equipment
for rent, temporary workforce service etc.

The Company has a marketing strategy to establish
a direct contact to target customers, as well as other
networks including large manufacturers, government
agency, embassy, trading office, chamber of
commerce, industrial estate owner, property agency
and other intermediary. The Company also uses
other appropriate market communications and
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participates in the seminar, trade fair and related
meetings held in Thailand and overseas.

Industry Overview

Factory and warehouse for lease have been one of
the businesses that the government has given priority
and continual support. Thailand has faced with
intense competition by neighboring countries for
many years especially Vietnam, which has plenty of
young labor forces and lower wage rate. That has
attracted foreign business operator to shift their
production base out of Thailand to neighboring
countries. Therefore, in order to enhance Thailand’s
competitiveness, the Government has proposed the
policy on establishing Eastern Economic Corridor
(EEC), the strategic plan under the Thailand 4.0
scheme to enhance EEC as the world-class industrial
development area. It is expected that investment in
EEC will stimulate economic expansion for an
average of 5% per year, create labor demand in
industrial and service sector for at least 100,000 job
positions per year and attract investment for more
than 1.9 trillion baht especially into targeted
industries such as modern automotive, electronics,
digital Robotic and Automation and aerospace
sector.

In 2018, the overall market condition of factory and
warehouse for lease business has an improving
trend mainly from government infrastructure plan
throughout the year 2017-2021 with total investment
value of Baht 7,130 billion expecting a clearer
investment capital from both private sector and
foreign investment by the end of 2018. Export to US
Europe and China massively drives Thailand
economic which is in the same direction of investment
by private sector to support Thailand export sector.

Supply of factory for lease in 2018 slightly
decreased by 0.2% whilst demand increased by
1.9% due mainly to an improvement of MPI Index.
Automotive sector overall increased by 12.9%
reporting 16.2% YoY growth of domestic automotive
sales meanwhile Electronics sector boosted up by
4.3% driven by Hard Disk Drive and components.
Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) recorded growth of
76.7% YoY.

Warehouse for lease business, on the other hand,
still had constant expansion of demand and supply
in 2018 by 16% YoY and 15.3% YoY, respectively
from increasing demand of Third Party Logistics
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Provider or 3PL and expansion of E-Commerce
business against Digital Transformation. The
Kasikorn Research Center noted that warehouse
business would grow 5.3 - 7.0% in 2018. Although
supply of warehouse for lease increases, demand is
still expected to grow as these business operators
including logistic firms do not want to own
warehouse and prefer to get services by factory and
warehouse from lease provider.

Overall business strategies

1) To be a leading provider of
smart industrial platform

The Company is currently a leading developer in
Ready-Built factory and Ready-Built warehouse for
lease in Thailand with over 2.7 million square
meters under managed. The Company will continue
to develop Ready-Built factories and/or warehouses
in strategic locations and will manage speculative
risk by securing pre-lease contracts for future
projects or project under development.

The Company also plans to increase development
of Built-to-Suit factory/warehouse by applying
knowledge and experiences of the major
shareholder Fraser Group. Built-to-Suit project
requires working closely with the customers starting
from the design phase to ensure that customer’s
specific requirement is met. This includes design
which caters for new technology and green building
development under world-class standard e.g. LEED
and EDGE. Additionally, the Company invested with
partnership offering entire services of Data storage
along with co-working office in CBD locations giving
more choices to meet industrial customer demand.

2) Asset management strategy

The Company together with its major shareholder
Frasers Property Limited has set up a team to
actively manage assets of the Company. This
includes a complete analysis of all properties of the
Company to assess its return potential. Certain
assets of the companies can be modified, or
adjusted for different use e.g. converting warehouses
into factories or into Built-to-Suit development,
adjusting building dimensions to suit market
demand, or partnering with other business to
develop these assets into other real estate type and
sale of selected assets to other developers or
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industrial estate player.

The asset management strategy will help optimize
existing assets of the Company and increase
revenue to strengthen the liquidity or invest in other
future development.

3) Improve competitiveness of
factories and warehouses

The Company has a plan to improve competitiveness
of the Company’s factories and warehouses. In
addition to simple modification according to customers’
request, the Company is studying to apply new
technologies and innovations to its factories and
warehouses which include automation and Smart
Factory. This will also support initiative from the
government to promote industrial sector in Thailand
or Thailand 4.0 scheme.

4) Expansion to adjacent
businesses

The Company understands the importance of
expansion into adjacent business and is in the midst
of studying technology related business and data
center, robotics and automation, development of
industrial-led mixed-used real estate, Business
Park, trade center and logistic park. The Company
believes that these adjacent businesses will provide
a platform that further add value to the Company’s
existing business.

5) Expansion to other ASEAN
countries

The Company has a strategy to expand into other
countries in ASEAN in addition to Indonesia,
especially in CLMV. These countries have high
growth potential while labor cost could be lower than
Thailand. There is also strong demand for industrial
properties including factories and warehouses where
the Company can offer variety of products and
services.

Provision of Products or Services

1) Land acquisition

As a developer of factory/warehouse for rent, the
Company has a policy to acquire suitable land plots in



strategic location with easy access to transportation
system and has a possibility to obtain BOI privilege.
The land price must be justified and the land size
must be suitable for development of future projects.

Procedure/Criteria of Land
Acquisition

e Land where locates in strategic location,
convenience and easy to access to public
transportation, meet customer’s requirement
and advantage by BOI incentive.

«  Fair land price which the Company could offer
competitive pricing and generate rental return.

»  Project expansion and modification are taken
into account during land selection process with
flixiblity to cater for next customer’s requirement.

2) Development team/design team
and selection of contractor
process

The Company has an experienced in-house project
development team and design team. The Company
also hires external consultant, where relevant, for
business flexibility.

With respect to construction material such as steel
and concrete, the Company makes a direct order
from several major suppliers at similar price.

With respect to the selection of contractor, the
Company has adopted clear selection criteria with
guidelines on quality of products and services,
establishment of good relationship with key suppliers
and treatment of suppliers with fairness, transparency

Work in Progress
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and accountability. In addition, the Company also
benchmarks proposed prices with reference price
list to ensure that products or services are
reasonably procured.

Selection Criteria of Construction
Contractor

¢ Approved Vendor List is prepared with
information of qualified vendors, type of
products and services. The list is to be updated
from time to time.

e Qualified vendors are evaluated based on
profile, historical record and reputation on
project delivery (punctual and complete),
expertise, well-equipped with tools,
equipment and workforce, good in after sale
service.

e Bidding Committee is set to ensure the best
interest of the Company taking into account
referencing price list.

*  Procurement is approved by authorized person.

*  Procedures to evaluate the purchased goods

e Clear and transparent criteria for evaluating
vendor

« New vendor is allowed to offer products
and services to the Company.

As at September 2018, TICON had pre-leased contracts which are under work-in-progress amounted to:

Industrial Estate/Logistics Park/

No. of Factories/

Land Area (Rai) Rental Space

Industrial Park/Logistic Center Warehouses (Sq.M.)
Amata City Rayong 0 1,700
Amata City Chon Buri 9.1 9,880

Bang Phli

Total

43.1 45,880
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Technology Group

Business Overview

Thailand has great potential in the race to digital
transformation as demand for data center services
grow, which stands at the frontiers of progress
towards advanced stages of digitization, in conjunction
with broadband technology, cloud computing, big
data analytics and internet of things. Under the
Thailand 4.0 national agenda, the Thai government
has envisioned an economic model aimed at achieving
advanced levels of digitization and fostering an
incremental economic growth through a masterplan
2017-2021 that focuses on strategic ICT
investments to drive the widespread adoption and
usage of digital technology.

While the state of Thailand’s broadband infrastructure
remains competitive, the country is thriving on other
spheres of technology drivers especially the
adoption of big data analytics to harness data
streams from different sources, run analytics and
getting significant value-add to the business from
efficient information management. In an attempt to
address these challenges, next level evolvement is
gearing towards exploiting data center technology
as a crucial IT infrastructure underlying the success
of 4.0 industrialization era with an enhanced
capability for entrepreneur to integrate real-time
information and capture insights to win a competitive
edge. In 2018, TICON made a preemptive move into
the data center market via a strategic partnership
with ST Telemedia Global Data Centres (STT GDC),
a leading data center service provider headquartered
in Singapore with global expertise and knowhow in
data centre design, build and operations while
meeting international standards and the demands of
its customers.

Business Operations by Product
Types

Data center colocation services are deployed within
a data center facility, providing shared rental space
for organizations to bring in network servers and
other computing hardware. A data center operator
must ensure uninterrupted operations at its facilities,
including providing power back-up systems to avoid
downtimes in the event of power outages. In
addition, they provide cooling equipment to maintain
specific temperature conditions to prevent overheating
of the servers.
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Data center development projects must consider
location and infrastructure support, supported by a
pool of technical experts to ensure optimal design
and security. The ability to scale up is also a crucial
feature to cater to customers’ requirements in the
evolving digital marketplace.

As technology and internet activity continues to
develop rapidly, data centers play an increasingly
significant role in centering storage and connectivity.
Emerging technology over the last few years has
enabled data centers to take advantage of the better
performance and energy efficiencies of newer and
smaller IT equipment.

Marketing and Competition

Industry Overview

The growth prospects in Thailand data center
market present a robust trend with an ongoing
increase in market value by 15%-20% annually.
Currently prevailing data center service providers
comprise key players from telecommunication and
ISP operators including Advanced Info Services Plc.
(AIS), Interlink Communication Plc. (ILINK), CS
Loxinfo Plc. (CSL), Internet Thailand Plc. (INET),
WHA Corporation Pcl. (WHA), NTT Communications
(Thailand) Co.,Ltd, (NTT) T.C.C.Technology Co.,Ltd.
(TCC Tech), True Internet Data Center Co.,Ltd.
(True IDC), and Supernap Thailand Co.,Ltd
(SUPERNAP) which was formed by a collective
partnership among leading businesses. Rising
demand for data center service has been fueled by
ever-increasing volumes of data produced from both
consumers and businesses through massive
connectivity, and colocation providers are benefitting
from this growth. Potential customers for data center
services range from cloud service providers, internet
and media service providers, financial service
institutions, telecommunication operators, governments
and system integrators.

Overall business strategies

The Company set forth an objective to become a
data center service provider breaking new ground
into Thailand data center market with leading-edge
development and operation management to cater
for large-scale enterprise demand domestically and
internationally through a strategic partnership with
STT GDC, whose strength is in world class data
centre technology and global expertise while
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adhering to international standards in terms of
security and reliability. The Company is committed
to lay solid foundation in state-of-the-art operating
system and infrastructure development administered
by the professional partner to build trust and
confidence in service quality while sustaining an
eco-friendly and energy-efficient solution. By
leveraging on the existing business partner network,
the pre-marketing strategy has been employed to
solicit prospective clients particularly the large local
and transnational corporations in data-driven
service sectors seeking large-scale data center and
cloud computing capacity including universities,
medical centers, media operators, financial institutions,
etc. Alongside strong and expanding demand, the
data center market presents a robust future as
evident from many key organizations transitioning to
digital-centric ways of doing business and increased
in focus on efficient data process and data center
management, especially for the emerging industrial
sectors that utilize advanced digital technologies
favored by government policies.

Provision of Products or Services

Our purpose-built data centre is designed to offer
the highest level of reliability and comply with
industry best practices, offering customers a highly
resilient and secure hosting environment for their
racks and servers.

Partnering with STT GDC provides the data center
expertise as well as project funding to support the
design, construction and operations of the data
centre. In addition, optical-fiber cable network,
power system, back-up energy supply, along with
security features are crucial elements in an
outstanding data centre. The other major aspects
are the design of data center capacity based on
scale-up architectures in order to cope with
continuously growing requirements.

Work in Progress

The joint venture company has begun the development
phase of the data center project strategically located
on a 16-Rai site in Bangkok city with planned
investment for the project estimated at Baht 7.3
Billion, due for completion and service commencement
by 2020 under a phased approach. With the
state-of-the-art data center infrastructure, the
platform capacity can be leveraged and is scalable
to meet ramp-up demand and considered optimizing
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or expanding further in the new facility as the
industry continues to thrive with the mass adoption
of advances digital technology.

In addition, the Company has currently applied for
the incentives from the Board of Investment of
Thailand (BOI) for data center business operation
underlying IT infrastructure development activities in
accordance with benefit scheme stipulated in the
Investment Promotion Acts.

Smart Solution Group

Business Overview

Smart solution is a new business venture utilizing
advanced technology to enhance value proposition
from multi-service integration and connectivity

Business Operations by Product
Types

Co-working business provides rental service for a
shared workplace, often an office that differs from a
traditional commercial lease space usually
employed by small organizations, with key
distinctions in functionality and aesthetic design
principle that allows for flexibility and scalability
alongside high quality amenities to cater for variety
of needs across all organizations. Co-working space
is designed to accommodate a range of possible
alternative uses, offering customer the ability to rent
out only what you need either private meeting rooms
or a suite of office-like amenities such as a dedicated
desk, or ‘hot-desks’ which refer to a shared desk for
on-demand uses by tenants with flexible working
hours to maximize space efficiency.

co-created by a strategic partnership’s sharing of
resources, customer base, proprietary knowhow and
expertise. Currently, there is a growing trend toward
mixed-use development at the intersection of real
estate, technology and community, which fosters
combination of integrated features with modernized
application to address changing lifestyles of new
generation consumers. Fully embracing digital
technology to optimize business solutions, TICON
has taken further step to expand portfolio via
strategic partnering setup of its new joint venture
with JustCo, Southeast Asia’s largest premium
co-working space provider specialized in data
analytics, smart workplace technology and powerful
CRM with enlarged customer base in regional
countries.

Co-working is the new path of melding life and work
in a sustainable fashion. Many of the benefits
provided by an innovative fully-furnished facility
includes shared common areas offering recreation
space and café with barista, giving a sense of
community under an entertaining and refreshing
atmosphere to cater for the new generation
lifestyles. The co-working environment is conductive
to the truly organic collaboration and conversations,
encouraging interaction and networking with new
people to exchange ideas and expand business
leads, as co-working spaces often run a variety of
community events, workshops, and seminars for
their members through branched co-working offices
readily accessible for privilege member services
which greatly superseding the typical serviced office
model.



Through the strategic partnership with JustCo, the
Company has launched its first co-working service
facility located at the edge of Bangkok’s central
business district, AIA Sathorn Tower with a
combined space of 3,200 square meters. spreading
over two storeys, followed by the second venue
across 3,500 square meters occupying three levels
of the Capital Tower at All Seasons Place.

Marketing and Competition
Industry Overview

The rapidly growing startup community and small
enterprises has given rise to the high demand for an
innovative working space in a communal and
collaborative setting that encourage flexibility,
enhance productivity, as well as creating exposure
for networking opportunities, with high level of
amenity for occupants of the building through the
provision of state-of-the-art smart technology. As
co-working is becoming very popular in Thailand,
several regional and global players are jumping on
board such as GlowFish, The Hive, Hubba, Spaces,
The Great Room, Regus. The industry life cycle is
currently in its initial stage of development, with total
market size approximately 35,000-40,000 square
meters in 2017 and forwarding trend is on a steep
rise beyond 2020.

Overall co-working space has been evolving and
becoming an integral part of service office market in
Bangkok, with high growth potential driven by
increasing workforce in freelancers, independent
professionals, start-up entrepreneurs striving for
innovation, and small to medium enterprises (SMEs)
looking to enhance competency and competitiveness
in the transition towards 4.0 economic model
fostered by government. With coworking spaces
working so well, it's increasingly relevant for a broad
range of people and organizations and there has
been a recent adoption of co-working spaces by
larger organizations as well. Forward thinking
companies are already starting to utilize co-working
spaces where possible due to the benefits to their
employees, from increased happiness and
collaboration, to greater employees thriving in a
lively and dynamic atmosphere that inspires
productivity, with an opportunity to stay lean and
lower facility costs from maximizing space
utilization. Competitive landscape in co-working
industry is expected to become more intense, with
players now offering several co-working venues and
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enlarged service capacities as well as expanding
into metropolitan areas and lifestyle destinations.

Overall business strategies

Now a global phenomenon, sharing economy is
gaining higher popularity with wide-range of
products and services application across various
industries. A recognition of the significant opportunities
associated with the mega trends has reinforced the
company’s strategic investment in co-working space
to drive for potential growth and sustain business
portfolio expansion. Continuing on enhancement of
the shared space experience for the new generation
workforce, business traveler and enterprises across
all sizes, the co-working platform is designed to
provide a lively, energetic environment with a
collaborative spirit to encourage interactions and

innovations as well as promoting a healthy work-life
balance. To remain ahead of the curve, the Company
plans for continuous expansion of co-working
spaces in high-profile central business areas, with
an ambition to become the leader of co-working
space provider in Thailand and regional ASEAN
countries.

Through a strategic collaboration with JustCo, the
Company enhances its business solution with an
integrated platform of facility service for existing
industrial property clients, as well as fostering a
significant transition toward customer-centric ways
of doing business. With an emphasis on customer
experience, the Company adopts a functionally
responsive system powered by proprietary CRM
software and data analytics application to support
customer-centric workflow, create exposure and
widen networking opportunity for entrepreneurs.

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform

67/



68

Annual Report 2018

Provision of Products or Services

Co-working space is a capital-intensive business
with high investment required to grow the number of
co-working locations in prime area highly accessible
to public transport. From a site planning and
development perspective, typical scaled capacity for
individual premise usually ranges from a medium
site at 1,000-3,000 square meters to a large site at
3,000-8,000 square meters. The all-inclusive nature
of co-working office is enabled by well-managed
technologically-advanced solution that post a
challenge for facility operator, who needs to provide
professional back-up support for handling all
interactions, solving problems, maintaining service
levels, upgrading applications and software
components, as well as keeping costs well under
control.

Through various membership-based models including
options for monthly fees or annual fees over 1-3
year; costs vary and allow for flexibility based on the
type of space to suit most needs either a shared
desk or hot desk, a dedicated studio, a meeting
room, a lobby to organize community events,
workshops, café and recreation services. As
membership-based workspace, co-working model
provides a great fit to differing needs among
start-ups, entrepreneurs and freelancers.

Work in Progress

As of 30 Sept 2018, the Company has commenced
the second co-working space at Capital Tower with
service operation on a 1,800 square meters space
under phase 1, while the remaining construction and
decoration work for phase 2 is underway with target
completion by February 2019.

In addition, the Company has prepared for an
additional investment in its third and largest
co-working space in Thailand located at Samyan
Mitrtown on a 4-storey service area totaling 8,000
sg.m., with operation commencement by the end of
2019 upon the completion of Samyarn Mitrtown
construction.
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Risk Factors

1. Overall business risks

1.1 Risk from domestic economic and political
change

Since current situation of overall investment in
Thailand remains uncertain from political instability,
demand for factory or warehouse lease may be
sluggish or expand in subnormal rate. However, the
Company is aware of such risk and has managed to
diminish effects that probably occur to the Company
such as closely monitoring customer situation,
continuously and constantly strengthen relationship
with existing customers and foster new relationship
with potential customers. Besides that, the Company
has policies to control quantity of new factory and
warehouse construction to be in line with market
demand each period to prevent excessive vacancy
of buildings or space for rent.

The Company expects that the Eastern Economic
Corridor (EEC) project supported by the government
will enhance greater direct investment from foreign
countries in the future as well as driving domestic
demand of factories and warehouses.

1.2 Risk from interest rate fluctuations

TICON'’s nature of business is real estate developer
for industrial lease purposes which requires high
investment fund for land acquisition and construction.
A part of investment fund is drawn from bank loan
and the company’s debenture. Cost of those bank
loans is interest which fluctuates according to
money market movement. However, the Company
only has debt and debenture in Thai Baht currency.

The fluctuation of interest rates would impact most
to the company when debt service required for an
interest payment by floating rate. Over the past
years, the Company’s strategy was repayment of
loan from Financial institution to lower insterest
charged mostly in floating rates. In effect, the
Company issued debentures in different series with
differing maturity period. Majority of debentures
were fixed interest rate type for cost-effective
interest management which follow the Company’s
treasury policy. As of 30 September 2018, the
Company had only few outstanding debts, indicating
an exposure to interest rate fluctuation risk has
decreased significantly.



1.3 Risk from investment in future projects

The Company is exposed to risk from unsuccessful
in-the-future project investment which may cause
impact to revenue or financial stability of the
Company in the long term. At present the Company
manages such risks by increasingly providing
factories and warehouses customized to tenant
demand (Built-to-Suit), securing pre-lease contract
prior to factories and warehouses development,
limiting investment amount in each project to
minimize financial damage to the Company in case
of unsuccessful execution. Furthermore, the
Company has controlled an investment proportion
for each type of property development in each
province to be in line with market demand and to
avoid concentration risk in some specific area.

2. Risk related to property
development and asset management

2.1 Risk related to short-term lease agreement

As majority of the Company’s lease contract term is
3 years (with renew options), the shareholders might
be concerned for possible impact if the tenants had
not renewed lease term.

But normally once the tenants start production, they
frequently do not vacate from the factory. Moreover,
the Company’s factories and warehouses are spread
in diversified location and the tenants are
entrepreneurs in various business from various
countries which create good diversification of
contract cancellation risk. Our factories and
warehouses are designed and constructed with
international standard and located in popular area of
the tenants. In case of lease contract cancellation,
the Company can find new tenant without difficulty.
Based on the Company’s policy to control supply of
new factory and warehouse construction to be in
line with market demand each period, the Company
is able to extend lease term to be longer than
3 years.

2.2 Risk related to concentration of certain
tenants

As of 30 September 2018, 38% of the Company’s
factory tenants were entrepreneur from Japan, 34%
were auto parts manufacturer and 29% were
manufacturers in electronic parts and electrical
appliances. While 30% of the Company’s
warehouse tenants were entrepreneur from
Germany and 54% were logistics service providers.
Reduction of investment in the aforementioned

Annual Report 2018

industry especially for investment from Japan and
Germany might impact the Company’s revenue.

However, the Company believes that the impact of
such risk is limited. Even the manufacturers in the
electronic parts and electrical appliances sector had
moved their production to other countries where
labor cost are lower along with trade benefits not
available in Thailand; it was evident that customers
did not completely move out but selectively moved
only production line of parts and components that
are labor-intensive. Thai government has set forth
policies for investment promotion to encourage
foreign manufacturers who employ advanced
technology in production system to move
manufacturing and services base to Thailand. Those
industries will substitute electronic parts and
electrical appliances manufacturers who moved out
and increase new tenants to the Company’s vacant
factories. Moreover, automotive sector is another
industry on the rise trend following relocation of
major automotive parts manufacturers to Thailand
which brings about growing demand for automotive
parts in the future.

On top of industry sector concentration risk to
factories lease, major tenants of the Company’s
warehouses are logistics service providers.
However, the Company assessed that both risks for
industry and warehouse lease would have limited
impact since the concentration risk is mitigated by
diversification of products inventory and logistics
across variety of business such as automotive parts,
electrical appliances, electronic parts, consumer
products, documents, health and beauty products,
chemical substances, etc.

With Japanese entrepreneur ranks No.1 top investor
in Thailand, TICON as a major player in factories
and warehouses for rent market also has tenants
from Japan in the same proportion. The Company
perceives Thailand as one of the most attractive
investment destinations in Asia with superior cost of
production advantage. Hence the concentration risk
of tenants from Japan is acceptable. Moreover,
since the Company’s factories and warehouses
have common standard architecture, they fit
demands of entrepreneurs across industries and
countries.

2.3 Risk from uncollectible rental fee under lease
agreement

The Company puts in place preventive measures to
collect the rent with accounting staff assigned to
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monitor the collection. If the tenant does not pay the
rent, the accounting division will send a notice to ask
the tenant to pay an outstanding rent. If the tenant
still fails to pay the rent, the Legal Division will start
litigation against such tenant by giving a legal
notification to the tenant. Historically, the Company
has maintained a good relationship with the tenants,
and the Company also has a policy to select tenants
with good credit quality.

2.4 Risk from vacant factory and warehouse

Since early 2018, Thai economy tends to grow
continuously with key drivers from domestic and
international demands that result from exports and
tourism expansion in tandem with world trade
volume and economy of business partner country;
along with consumption and investment expansion
in private sector. The exports volume is growing
continuously in many products especially electronic
parts, automotive parts and processed agricultural
products in line with rising trend of world trade
volume and economy of business partner country.

Investment of private sector tends to grow as
exports while private sector consumption expands
from (1) Increase of production capacity rate in
many industry such as automotive, food and
beverage (2) Increase of capital goods and
machinery imports (3) Increase of demand in loan
for business sectors (4) More clarity of investment
plan in large organizations (5) Support measures for
low income people by government such as
Community Enterprise Support Project and
Agricultural Reform Project and (6) Constant
increase of value from obtaining investment
promotion incentives and clarity of government’s
mega infrastructure investment projects, including
Eastern Economic Corridor (EEC) and Public-
Private Partnership which help raise confidence to
business sectors, promote investment climate and
might attract more investment from foreign to
Thailand.

With factories and warehouses located in various
locations, the Company is capable of catering to
various demand by existing or new customer across
industry, covering producer for domestic and
overseas market. The Company is able to manage
those vacant factories and warehouses to stay
attractive to tenants, while the availability of
factories and warehouses for rent as well as land
bank for future development in Eastern Economic
Corridor (EEC) area presenting a competitive edge.

2.5 Risk from dependency on a few numbers of
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contractors

Employing only a few numbers of contractors to
construct factories or warehouses for the Company
is risky under the circumstance whereby an individual
contractor taking over a great portion of the Company’s
development work has encountered a difficulty, and
thereby delayed construction progress or leftover
the construction site leading to a severe impact to
the Company.

In facts, contractors with experience and expertise
in construction technology are essential for the
successful development of distinctive architecture in
many cases. For this reason, business priority
necessitates hiring some contractors with more
employment contracts than the others. However, the
Company realized aforementioned risk and
therefore set a policy not to hire any contractor for
contract value equivalent to 200 million Baht or
above which would add up to overall contract-
on-hand value of an individual contractor exceeding
50% of the Company’s outstanding total work to
complete construction.

2.6 Risk from natural disaster and accidents

In 2011, the Company was affected from heavy
flood in Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya Province and
Pathum Thani Province. The factories and
warehouses for lease which located in such area
were damaged, forcing the tenant to cease their
operation and unable to pay rent to the Company.
Several tenants chose to terminate the lease
agreements, and the situation had persisted for
years after the flood. In this regard, the shareholders
may have concern that the Company is exposed to
risk from natural flood in the future, which might
impact to vacancy of the factories for a certain
period of time.

To address the concern, the Company has
insurance on all properties with coverage for
physical damages and business interruption
amongst others to reduce impacts from such kind of
incident. Although insurance premiums use to be
more expensive, they had now lowered down to
normal level. In addition, The industrial estate and
logistic park developers in those provinces also
constructed concrete dikes to protect assets in the
area.

3. Risk related to investment in
property development and
management



3.1 Risk from overseas investment

Currently the Company has invested internationally,
leading to an exposure to foreign currency
exchange fluctuation risk. As of 30 September 2018,
proportion of overseas investment to total asset of
the Company was relatively low at approximately
1.3%.

Regarding long term investment in foreign countries,
the Company has policies to monitor foreign
exchange rate fluctuation on a continuous basis by
assessing the cost of financial instruments to protect
exchange rate risk in line with movement and trend
of the exchange rate in order to close the risk from
foreign currency fluctuation.

In 2015, the Company decided to invest overseas
with a 25% shareholding stake in PT SLP Surya
TICON Internusa via its subsidiary in Hong Kong
namely TICON (HK) Limited, with an objective to
develop factory and warehouse for lease in
Indonesia. Such investment resulted in the
Company holding assets in foreign currency, as of
18 January 2018, the associate company registered
in Indonesia with an authorized capital of 2,412.8
million Rupiah.

This associate company will develop factory and
warehouse for lease on average 50,000 - 51,000
square meters per year. The construction may be
deferred if the supply of ready-built factory and
warehouse exceeds customer demand in order to
mitigate vacancy risk as a result of economic
slowdown in Indonesia.

With respect to overseas joint venture risk, the
Company currently manages the downside by
selecting foreign partner with experience, readiness,
credibility, and integrity widely recognized by
general business community in the market. The
Company would firstly conduct a due diligence
process prior to proceeding with the investment and
also has a policy for selecting an overseas partner
who places emphasis on long-term relationship.

3.2 Risk from business competition with Trust

In addition to the Company, TICON Freehold and
Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust (TREIT)
also operates a similar business of factory and
warehouse for rent. The shareholder may have
concern for any potential competition between the
Company and TREIT.

According to TREIT mechanics, the Company has
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been engaged as TREIT Property Manager in
charge of finding new tenants and providing
services to existing tenants, similar to what the
Company manages its own properties. Such
engagement further strengthens the Company and
TREIT’s competitiveness as it increases the assets
pool available for customers and leads to higher
chance of securing customer deals.

3.3 Risk from new business investment

In year 2018, the Company set up TICON Technology
Co., Ltd.to run a data centre business, providing
modern data storage services with international
standard security to serve demand of big domestic
and oversea enterprises.

A joint venture between TICON Technology Co., Ltd
and ST Telemedia Global Data Centres — STT
GDC, world-class alliance who has expertise in data
centre business from Singapore, will emerge in
Thailand’s data centre business. The Company
plans to bring technology, knowledge and expertise
from both companies to develop the first biggest
data centre on the strategic area in the midst of
Bangkok metropolitan, expected for service
commencement within year 2020.

Besides that, the Company also jointly invest with
JustCo (Thailand 2) Pte. Ltd., an alliance from
Singapore, Southeast Asia’s top provider of
premium class co-working space. JustCo possesses
a strong expertise in data analytics, CRM and
workplace technology. The Company set up JustCo
Thailand Co., Ltd to run co-working office business
which has now opened for 2 branches in central
business district; the first one located at AIA Sathorn
Tower, South Sathorn road and second one is at
Capital Tower All Season Places, Wireless road.
Following the successful commercial launch, the
Company plans to open more branch targeted to be
ready for service in Q4 of year 2019.

Emerging risks from new business investment
include existing incumbent competitors and threat of
new entrants in the market, along with the dynamic
insights of customer demand for products and
services. Currently the Company mitigate these
risks by analyzing new business growth potential for
expansion, as well as selecting strategic joint
investors with experience, expertise, readiness,
reliability, and integrity widely recognized in the
regional Asia or world-class arena. The Company
has selection process for co-investor from overseas
who prioritize to long-term relationship with
protocols to gaining an understanding on potential
investors prior to joint venture agreements.
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Corporate Social

Responsibility

Corporate Social Responsibility: CSR

The Board of Directors are committed to lead the
Group company and its affiliates for a sustainable
growth, in parallel with responsibility to society,
environment and stakeholder group under the
principles published by the Stock Exchange of
Thailand; including organizational culture specifying
core competency and characteristics required for
everyone in order to lead the Company towards its
defined vision consisting of:

Fiom com comriTIRE"

CO-CREATE (CO) - To join in creation of work
with common purposes to create value to business
by working with customer, partner and colleague
through creative collaboration, problem solving,
development and improvement, enhanced efficiency
and innovation together.

RESILIENT (RE) - Capable to cope with changes
that is flexible, self-motivated, change acceptance
with adaptive behavior or working method to deliver
success and contribute to change management
among surrounders, along with an ability to apply
modern technology creatively.

STRIVE FOR RESULTS (S®) - Committed to the
specific target and strive for successful result,
accountable for work performance, self-challenging

and perseverant.

Business Conduct with Fairness

To operate a fair business, the Company codifies
personnel scope of standard practices which should
be complied in managing business operation
according to moral principle framework, underlying
creativity, equitable and fair treatment to lay a solid
foundation as an entity with sustainable growth
stipulated in Code of Conduct standard manual. The
Code of Conduct considers responsibility towards
society and all stakeholders: shareholders, business
partner, contractors, customers and competitors for
freedom of business conduct; accessibility to
appropriate, unconcealed and straightforward
information; as well as strictly complying to the law
and related regulations.

Practice Guidelines

* To treat business partner equally on a fair competition
basis with transparency to all business partners,
affiliated company or joint-venture and strictly follow
contractual agreement with no personal benefit
taken from other parties.
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- To manage an efficient, clear and verifiable
procurement process as well as continuously
keeping good image of the Company. The
procurement policy is set to prevent injustice in
procurement procedures and practices for business
partner to refrain from any misconduct which
violates anti-corruption policy

* To become a politically responsible entity with
neutrality and adherence to constitutional monarchy
regime. The Company will not allow usage of brand
or symbol of the Company to support any political
activity directly and indirectly, while personnel is
entitled to exercise political rights according to the
law.

* To respect rights in ownership of asset or
intellectual property for a smooth operation without
infringement of other's rights, the Company
supervises an information technology operation and
communication carefully, and paying respect to
copyrights of intellectual property owner, as well as
protecting trade secret and not disseminating
information which is morally and traditionally
inappropriate or illegal.



Anti-Corruption

The Board of Directors persist in running business
with transparency and aware that corruption can
happen anywhere anytime and might affect
business transactions with partners, hampering
competitiveness and innovative competency as well
as hindering development of economics, society and
public security. The Company is supportive to
oppose corruption and verified as a member of
Thailand’s Private Sector Collective Active Coalition
Against Corruption Council: CAC on 18 August
2017. As part of its Code of Conduct, the Company
stipulates an Anti-Corruption Policy for all personnel
including affiliated company and joint-venture to
follow under the supervision of the board of
Directors, audit committee, corporate governance
committee, risk management committee and
executive management.

Practice Guidelines

» Encourage to create consciousness, value and
attitude towards anti-corruption as corporate culture
to all personnel, so they will work honestly, clearly,
accurately and respect the laws and regulations.

* Impose all personnel not to demanding for bribery
or other benefit from other related party to the
Company except for occasional or festive season,
and those assets are not illegal. Personnel must not
seek benefit from the job position for oneself and/or
for the other improperly.

» Arrange audit process for operating procedure
including corruption risk assessment and proper
management of corrective measures.

* Provide adequate and proper internal control
system including development of system and
protocol to investigate, control and counterbalance the
use of power properly, clearly and efficiently
toprevent any corruption or any relation with
corruption.
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Arrange for communication and training to the
Company’s personnel to create a deep understanding
and practical knowledge about anti-corruption policy.

» Support activities held by other institutes or
organizations for the benefit of anti-corruption
prevention and promotion.

The Company prepared orientations for new
employee with Corporate Governance Code (CG
Code) and Code of Conduct which includes
Anti-Corruption measure and policy for understanding
roles and practices. Moreover, the Company held a
seminar in topic “Roles of Thailand’s Private Sector
Collective Active Coalition Against Corruption
Council member” on Monday 27 August 2018
honored by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) speaker
to narrate and review knowledge and understanding
in the role of member of “Thailand’s Private Sector
Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption
(CAC)". This seminar reinforced awareness of the
personnel’s roles including all stakeholders help
identify risk and corruption possibility in the
operating process and evaluate compliance to
anti-corruption policy as well as Corporate
Governance Code. Other than that, the Company
disseminated video to every employee to be a part
of corruption-free organization.

'CACY

/O CERTIFIED
o ) COMPANY

Human Rights Respect

The Company realizes human rights and respects
human resource as an important factor to create
value-added production, enhance competitiveness,
creditability and esteem which is fundamental to
corporate development. Therefore, the Company
sets a guideline to promote human rights compliance
which is the congenital fundamental rights
regardless of nationality, race, color, religion,
language, social status, law, custom, local tradition
of the relevant country with vested interest; as well
as aligning practices to universal human rights
principle.
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Practice Guidelines

* The Company’s personnel should truly understand
and comply to the law related to individual
role and responsibility. In case of working aboard,
the Company’s personnel should study law, custom,
tradition and culture of destination country, and
follow universal human rights principle without
contributing to business in violation of human rights.

» The Company sets up a whistle blowing policy
for corruption complaints including protection of
whistleblowers in case of doubt or suspicion
following the discovery of improper behavior against
the law or ethics and Code of Conduct in order to
prevent unfair practices, potential threats and
damages to reporter, source of information or
related person who unveils the clue report of
illegitimacy or unethical conduct.

» The Company requires annual internal audit
assessment to report the Board of Directors.

Fair Labor Practices

The Company gives priority to a fair treatment for its
employee which is considered a crucial resource in
any operation for utilizing knowledge, capability,
physical strength and spirit to achieve working
goals. The Company supports fair management of
employee practices in parallel with business growth
for a sustainable development. The Company does
not abuse child labor or forced labor; and provide
social protection, proper working condition,
healthcare and safety at work; as well as giving
opportunity, remuneration and benefit, designation,
transference and competency development for
employee thoroughly

Practice Guidelines

» Arrange fair employment conditions with proper
remuneration policy according to competency or
employment contract in line with industry standard
or standard of living both in the short term and the
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long term, including medical expense benefit,
uniform, provident fund, bonus which depend on
employee’s performance and the Company
performance, etc.

» Consider to employ or terminate employment
through proper review and decision-making process
with no discrimination or individual prejudice.

* Provide employee skill development training to
improve learning ability, as well as enhancing
opportunity for progress and promotion in due
course.

» Properly support working facilities to enhance
effectiveness of employee work.

- Employee has an opportunity to access or
acknowledge important information about the
Company’s performance and business direction, as
well as reaching communication channel to involve
in suggestion without interference.

The Company takes part in organization development
with close attention to employee’s living condition
and communication channel to publicize useful
information and news to employee such as motion
public relation signage or distribute information
through mobile application and encourage team
activities by allowing social club formation such as
badminton, football and volunteer; and consider
promoting good health by letting employee use
fitness service provided by the company everyday
as frequent as specified. Besides annual health
checkup, the Company arranges for recreation
activities both internally and externally to enhance
corporate unity, cooperation and encourage or
reward to employee consistent with organization
policy. The employee can participate in activities
and social activities held by the Company to
enhance relationship and social support. The
Company also gives priority to safety and
professional healthcare in working by taking new
employee orientation to acknowledge employee of
proper behavior in normal operating situation and
emergency situation such as working at height, fire
drill, fire extinction and how to use safety equipment
related to daily work.

Internal Personnel Development
Creating Learning Society for
Employee in 2018

The Company focuses on enhancing and supporting



personnel capability development by arranging for
variety of internal training course such as English
communications course for ASEAN to continuously
improve skills of foreign language. The Company
arranged free learning class with foreign teacher
and all levels of employee has rights to take a skills
pre-test for appropriate class grouping as well as
taking a post-test after the course finishes to evalu
ate learning progress which poses an opportunity to
advance individual career path. Training course
“Attitude adjustment for WIN-WIN working” is to
enhance understanding in working responsibility
towards the organization. The content is about
systematize working to obtain quality product and
service; understanding in psychology essential for
all related person at all level from a service
perspective; skill development emphasizing on
quality and efficient service; creating interpersonal
skill to collaborate; developing EQ-AQ; enhancing
positive attitude, teamwork value and good culture,
as well as emotional intelligence and work efficiency
through development of self-oriented and work-
oriented improvement strategy, and creating motivation
for goal achievement, etc. Employees are allowed to
attend seminar and training held by external
organization, totaling not less than 60 courses or
average not less than 3 hours per person per year
with a total cost of 4.36 million Baht in the past year

Sample of the Company’s training course list for
all level personnel in the past year (1 January —
30 September 2018) are as follows;

* Documents and filing management for efficient
working
* Management Development Program (MDP)
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» Roles of Thailand’s Private Sector Collective
Active Coalition Against Corruption Council Member

» Commercial Contracts for Drafting and Negotiating
Summit 2018

+ 1ISO 9001:2015

* Train the Trainer for TOpp SAP Success Factors
and Evaluation for SAP SuccessFactors

* Buzan Mind Mapping Workshop

* Venue Expenses for TICON Retreat 2018

Safety, Occupational Healthcare
and Working Condition

The Company is aware of operating measure for
safety and hygiene working condition. Hence, the
Company arranges for safety working environment
to safeguard employee’s life and asset, with
orientation training and dissemination of knowledge
and safety guideline to raise employee awareness,
as well as providing adequate and proper working
facilities consistent with related standard to prevent
work-related injury, illness and loss of life from
accident.

Practice Guidelines

e The Company considers operating safety,
occupational healthcare and working condition
directly responsible by directors and all levels of
employee. The Company allocates resources of
personnel, time and budget adequately and properly
to achieve objectives and goals.

* The Company will operate in compliance with the
law and related agreement of safety, occupational
healthcare and working condition; consider the law
requirement as a minimum standard in practice.

» The Company will operate in finding and determining
risk management measure and preventing all
operating activities under the responsibility of the
Company from any danger to create highest safety
to performer including the Company’s employee,
contractors, asset, environment and general public
by means of setting an annual operation plan.

e The Company will develop competency of
directors and all levels of employee continuously by
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providing a training of safety, occupational improve operation.
healthcare and working condition on a continuous

e This policy will be communicating to all level
basis. policy g

occupational in organization and ready to disclose to
» The Company opens for opinions from every party public all the time.
in policy formulation including operational safety,
professional healthcare and working condition, as
well as arranging for revision in proper timing to

In 2018, The Company summarized injury information
as follows;

2018 Annual Accident Statistic Summary

Accident
Severe Accident (Death) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Accident with Lost Time 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Accident without Lost Time 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Work-related Disease 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Number of Days Off 0 0 0 0 3 0 14 0 0 17
Total Accident 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 0 0 8
Working Hour 97480 93216 101744 82704 93216 95200 101744 99464 95200 859968
.F.R*(%) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.73 10.50 9.83 0.00 0.00 3.49
Injury Frequency Rate Number of injured workers in the period
_ . . X 1,000,000 hours
o u u W unit | |
LF.R = Number of total hours worked of that unit in the period

In 2018 Injury Frequency Rate of employee calculate in 1,000,000 hours unit equal to 5 times.

Injury Severity Rate Number of work days lost

ISR = Number of total hours worked of that unit in the period X 1,000,000 hours

In 2018 Injury Frequency Rate of employee calculate in 1,000,000 hours unit equal to 26 days.

Responsibility to Consumer

The Company realizes to keep standard of good
product and service and aims for first-class quality
development by emphasizing on usage behavior
research, appropriate service level, safety,

convenience, good hygiene, and rendering service Practice Guidelines

with sufficient information provided throughout

customer’s pre-and-post acquisition stage, as well * The Company is committed to developing quality
as concerning for a long term impact on consumer, product and service to serve customer’s need with
society, nature and environment in order to become reasonable prices and fair conditions.

an entity with good business ethics and responsibility

to customer, leading to sustained consumption and * The Company is committed to rendering fast,
highest satisfaction of customer. friendly and non-discriminated service.
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In the past year, the Company continued to keep
and develop quality of operation and service with
certified quality management system as ISO
9001:2015 superseding the previous ISO 9001:2008
under the scope of “The development of logistics
parks and the provision of warehouses on lease with
related maintenance and property management
services” from certifying agency UKAS covering a
total of 9 warehouses in the area of Wangnoi,
Bangna, Bangplee and Laem Chabang to guarantee
governance standard, from design, installation and
production development and service level including
risk analysis process and potential impact on
serviceability such as setting proper service time,
providing channel for service complaint, opening for
consumer’s comment, being helpful and supportive
to resolve disputes, providing maintenance or repair
product etc., altogether reflecting quality and
efficacy of internal operation that meets customer’s
requirement with good quality service.

Participate in Community, Society and
Environmental Development

The Company is aware of responsibility to all group
of stakeholder and concerns about possible impact
to society and environment, with an emphasis on all
operating activities within the organization and
outside interaction with the community, society and
environment. As a good citizenship, the Company
nurtures religion, preserves natural resources and
supports education and public services. The
Company never neglects surrounding livelihood of
its employee, nearby communities and other
stakeholders. The Company prioritizes in preserving
surrounded area of factories and warehouses for
people in community to live a normal daily life with
good quality; and gaining acceptance, trust and
confidence in the Company’s business operation.

Practice Guidelines

« Participate in social responsibility about quality,
safety, occupational healthcare and working
condition. Use internal or external resource for
highest benefit to organization and public community
under a favorable and sustainable co-existence.

» Cultivate consciousness about responsibility
to society and environment to all personnel level.
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TICON Morb Rak year 6 Activities

Continuing on social corporate activity of TICON for
6 consecutive years, “TICON Morb Rak” project is

aimed to share smile and happiness to community
and society across all distance, as well as creating
an opportunity to live a better life over the long term.
From 2017 throughout 2018, the Company research
found that Thai society still needed different ways of
development in many areas, leading to an initiation
of 2 main projects in the past year as follows;

TICON Morb Rak “Sang Rak - Baan Pak Hai Nong”

Based on fact finding, Thai children in remote area
still have difficulty in travelling to learn in school,
some of locations have enough potential for
development to support higher level of education for
children. From inconvenient commutation between
residence and school, the Company started
exploring sites in Chiang Rai, one of the Company’s
employee hometown, and initiated “Sang
Rak - Baan Pak Hai Nong” project by contributing to
dormitory construction for student of Poh Wittaya
School, Amper Wiangkang, Chiang Rai and sent
staffs andengineers to supervise until the
construction completed, together with donated
sports equipment and souvenir. On 25 May 2018,
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300 students joined a recreation event organized by
working group and volunteered employee of TICON
group company, led by Mr. Sopon Racharaksa the
President, which created a deep impression for
teachers and students.

TICON Morb Rak “Tor Yod Kan
Suksa — Pattana Chumchon”

After inspecting nearby factory and warehouse
locations and conferring to people and personnel in
the area, the Company found out that industrial
expansion in Ayutthaya led to population increase in
the area, mostly being labor who works at factories
and warehouses. The Company foresees and
supports quality of life development for people in
community by organizing TICON Morb Rak Project
EP.2 in the name “Tor Yod Kan Suksa — Pattana
Chumchon” in Tambol Utai, Amper Utai, Pra Nakorn
Sri Ayutthaya Province on 17 August 2019 which
was separated in 2 parts as follows;

1) Participated in robe offering ceremony donation to
build a multi-purpose hall as a district hospital to
promote healthcare in the community with donation
collected from TICON group company and employee
contribution. Formerly this place was just a small
public health center with limited service area
inadequate to meet some requirement such as annual
health checks up for inhabitants, or vaccination
program to a lot of people at once
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2) Donated computers with equipment and chairs to
Wat Jampa School to develop education for youth in
school. Since the Company found out that computer
and equipment is out of order and insufficient to
meet demand, the Company managed to set up
internet connection to the computers, so they can be
tools to search for useful data, at the same time the
Company delivered developmental toys to all
students and participated in skill enhancement
activity together.

Mangrove Forest Conservation Activity

As TICON is one of entrepreneurs that has serviced
industrial factories in Bang Poo industrial estate
area, so the Company joined in mangrove forest
conservation activity in Bangpu Nature Education
Center - Chaloemprakiet; and Bangpu Recreation
Center - Tambon Bangpumai, Amphoe Muang,
Samutprakarn by attending the seminar on principle
and rationale for natural preservation campaign
which was held by Bangpu Industrial Estate
Authority of Thailand. The Company’s volunteer
group joined the event of mangrove forest planting
and collecting the left-over garbage in the area
together with network of people who are stakeholders
from surrounding zone, including industrial
estate entrepreneurs, local authority, community
and school.
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Global Warming Alleviation Through Green
Buildings

TICON is moving forward to develop international
standard warehouses and distribution centers
continuously. The Company focuses and cares for
natural resource and environment including society
and community surrounding the Company’s
factories and warehouses. The Company aims to
develop green warehouses underlying the policy
requirement for LEED (Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design) certification applied to every
new development project to guarantee for
environmentally friendly warehouse quality
according to U.S. Green Building Council (USGBC),
a U.S. leading organization of green building
standard determination who adopts LEED
Scorecard Rating System for quality assessment of
ready-built facility for lease.

The latest distribution center development project
by TICON over a total area of 35,000 with target
completion upon the beginning of 2019, would save
energy consumption more than 53 percent
compared to a typical warehouse, and lower energy
costs more than USD 66,000/year or approximately
Baht 2.2 million/year (compare to standard of
ASHRAE) and reduce water consumption in the
building over 400 cubic meters/year. The green
building has a well-organized electrical system and
uses highly efficient LED light bulb to save more
energy as well as applying solar cell technology to
increase proportion of green energy usage. Besides
saving the expenses, the Green buildings also help
to improve quality of life and health condition of
those who work in factories or warehouses.
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Carbon Footprint for Organization Project

The Company realizes the importance of preventing
pollution, sustaining resource utilization, and being
adaptive to environment. For this regard, the
Company reviewed Carbon Footprint for
Organization: CFO to gather all greenhouse gas
emission data such as stationary combustion,
mobile combustion, fugitive emission and usage of
electricity, paper and water which is still on process
for collecting data during the period 2015-2018 for
analysis and preparation of report presentation
in the next year.
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Corporate Governance

30

The Board of Directors and the management team
are determined and realized the importance of
corporate governance for a sustainable growth
under good governance principles by conducting
business with responsibility to all stakeholder
groups, enhancing confidence and relationship to
all people, increasing director’'s understanding of
business context and expectation of stakeholders
including opportunities and risks affecting business
operation under the principle of transparency and
good governance, as covered by Ethics and Code of
Conduct. The Board of Directors regularly plan to
review corporate governance policies on a yearly
basis and follow up to disclose “Corporate
Governance Policies” on the website, http://www.
ticon.co.th. to acknowledge shareholders, investors
and all stakeholders.

In addition, the Company adds corporate
governance as part of new employee’s orientation
program, and communicates to all level of the
Company’s employee for acknowledgement and
adoption as a corporate value in parallel with
prudent management and operation corresponding
to objective, strategy and goal for sustainability
covering economic, society and environmental
responsibilities. The Company’s governance
practices encompass 5 sections which are
Shareholder’s Rights, Equal Treatment to
Shareholder, Roles of Stakeholders, Information
Disclosure and Transparency, and Responsibilities
of the Board of the Directors; along with key
principles stated in 2017 Corporate Governance
Guideline for Listed Company; which has been
adopted and executed throughout 2018 as follows:

1. Shareholders’ Rights

The Board of Directors realizes and emphasizes on
the significance of shareholders’ rights. The
Company encourages participation of shareholders
to exercise the rights through the shareholders’
meeting, with effective communication to
shareholders in matters related to the shareholders’
meeting so that shareholders freely and equitably
participate in decision-making on the Company’s
important agenda such as vote for election,
determination of director remuneration, appointment
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and determination of auditor remuneration, as well
as providing an opportunity for shareholders to
propose meeting agenda or question that need to be
answered at the meeting in advance along with
obtaining the Company’s news and information
quickly, completely and sufficiently across easy-to-
access channel, so that the shareholders can
participate in making decisions related to own rights
and benefits. The Company has a policy to support
and facilitate all shareholders including institutional
investors to attend the shareholders’ meeting.

The Company prioritizes the shareholders’ meeting
procedure to ensure a smooth, transparent and
effective proceeding of the meeting with equitable
treatment among shareholders. The Company
selects a meeting venue that is conveniently
accessible via the mass transit system and organizes
meeting time in the afternoon to spare enough
traveling time for shareholders. Meeting registration
documents will be sent to shareholders in advance
to shorten time for document verification in the
meeting day. Registration lane is also provided
specifically for each type of shareholder; individual,
juristic person and institutional investor with barcode
system used in registration and vote counting for
faster and better precision of both registration and
computation process.

The meeting invitation documents contain detailed
explanations of meeting agenda so the shareholders
will have complete information for vote consideration.
The Company also sends proxy form to shareholders
for voting in each agenda, and provides audit
committee information in the proxy form so the
shareholders can select a person to vote on their
behalf in case they cannot attend the meeting.
Beside the meeting invitation, the Company
attached its rules related to shareholders’ meeting
with information and detailed requirement for
documents to be used in shareholders’ meeting
attendance. The Company provides opportunities
for the shareholders to propose additional agenda
and to nominate qualified person to be appointed as
the Company’s director in advance, with clarification
on the process and method disclosed on the
Company’s website.



Participants in shareholders’ meeting consist of the
Board of Directors, Audit Committee, executive
management and auditor, with the Chairman of the
Company or person approved to be chairman by the
shareholders’ meeting will conduct for a transparent
determination and voting for each agenda item
respectively as stated in the meeting invitation.
Moreover, the Company would inform quorum of
shareholders attending the meeting and those who
assigned proxy to inform all shareholders in
advance prior to voting.

The Board of Directors ensures a comprehensive
minute of meeting is recorded with key points,
questions, and suggestions including number of
required votes in each agenda. The Company
prepares to complete the minute of meeting within
deadline as defined by law and arranges for
systematic filing system for reference and verification
thereafter. Indeed, the Company also records voting
result in the minute of meeting to include all
important information.

The Company discloses documents and related
information to shareholders’ meeting on the
Company’s website in both Thai and English
language including the meeting invitation
documents 30 days in advance, and publishes
minute of meeting within 14 days after the meeting
date including video recordings for fast and easily
accessible information to shareholders.

The Company held the 2018 annual general
shareholders’ meeting on 27 March 2018, 14:00
hours at Grand Ballroom, The Okura Prestige Hotel,
57 Wireless Road, Lumpini Sub-district, Patumwan
District, Bangkok, which was attended by 14
directors and executives.

2. Equal Treatment to Shareholders

The Board of Directors has a policy to treat all
shareholders equitably, fairly and sustainably
covering major shareholders, minor shareholders,
institutional investors or foreign shareholders, with
details as follows:

The Company has a policy to maintain all
shareholders’ rights in annual general shareholders’
meeting for 2018, chairman of the meeting conducted
the meeting according to the agenda order outlined
in the meeting invitation notice and no addition of
any other agenda without notifying shareholders in
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advance. The Company’s shareholders have rights
to nominate a person for taking a position of
Company’s director. All shareholders were entitled
to vote based on the number of shares held
whereby one share equals to one vote. The Company
allows the shareholders who could not attend the
meeting in person to appoint an independent
director of the Company or any other person to
attend the meeting and vote on their behalf. The
Company prepared proxy form as prescribed by the
Ministry of Commerce and attached it with the
invitation notice sent to shareholders for instructing
their votes accordingly.

The Company prepared the minutes of the 2018
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and
posted the video record of the meeting on the
Company’s website at www. ticon.co.th within 14
days after the meeting for fast and easily accessible
information to shareholders.

The Company supervises and manages conflicts of
interest that may occur to the Company and
executives, the Board of Directors, or shareholders;
as well as preventing misuse of asset, and
opportunity for business misconduct through various
measures such as imposing trading restriction of the
Company’s shares in a 1-month period prior to
public disclosure of operating performance to
prevent directors, executives and all employee of
the Company from insider’s trading based on
leakage of insight information that may affect shares
price and could be exploited directly or indirectly for
the benefits of oneself or others. Moreover, the
Company sets a monitoring procedure to control
and prevent violation of policy on internal
information usage, information security, confidentiality,
credibility and information availability.

3. Roles of Stakeholders

The Board of Directors realizes that the success of
business in achieving its objective, goal and
sustainability is derived from support of all
stakeholders, including employees, customers,
business partners, competitors, financial institution,
creditor, money-lender, community and society. To
enhance sustainability, the Company focuses on its
responsibility towards all group of stakeholders with
no violation of rights, and treat employees fairly and
equally, prioritize the safety and hygiene for employee,
fulfill contractual obligations with trading partners,
provide quality product for customers, be
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accountable for the products and after-sale services,
maintain confidentiality of customer’s information,
comply to loan terms of financial institution, compete
by the rules and refrain from using dishonest means
to harm competitors, as well as being responsible to
community and society, etc. The Company
considers to improve its treatment related to all
group of stakeholders in accordance with the
following policies:

3.1 Policy on Treatment of Each Group of
Stakeholder

(1) Shareholders: Disclose important information
to all shareholders correctly, completely and timely
through various channels such as SET, the
Company’s website, newspaper, public relation
bulletin or newsletter.

(2) Employee: Since employees are the most
important factor in running the business, so the
Company emphasizes on all employee without any
discrimination by treating everyone equally and
fairly with respect to human rights, law and related
standards concerning job opportunity, compensation
and other benefit, welfare, promotion and rotation,
career path, development of competency and
working skill, safety, occupation healthcare and
working condition.

(3) Customer: The Company is committed to
seeking solutions for serving customer’s need with
more effectiveness and efficiency. The Company
adheres to fulfill contractual obligations strictly by
delivering quality products with after-sale services
that meet customer expectation at fair price. The
Company emphasizes to keep customer’s
confidentiality without exploiting for improper
benefit, as well as alleviating and supporting
customer in troubles.

(4) Business partners, Creditors and/or
Debtors: The Company has an equal and fair
treatment towards business partners, creditors and/
or debtors, with consideration to the maximum
benefit of the Company based on a fair compensation
for both parties. The Company avoids any situation
that may result in a conflict of interest. The Company
also honors the commitments with business
partners, creditors and/or debtors.

(5) Competitors: The Company treats business
competitors according to universal practices without
violation of trade secrets or involve in any information
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fraud. The Company strictly respects fair business
practices, during last year the Company had no
dispute with competitors.

(6) Supply Chain: The Company strictly applies
efficient quality management system under ISO
9001 International Standard to the supply chain
processes and activities, by providing knowledge
and closely monitoring operations of its supply chain
to ensure that trading partners operate with
environmental consciousness and business
sustainability.

(7) Community and Society: The Company has a
policy to operate its business for the benefits of
economic and general public, aiming to create
balance of business growth and development of
community, society and environment.

3.2 Policy on Anti-corruption

The Board of Directors adheres to the principle of
conducting a business in a transparent manner
subject to the law, ethical principles and corporate
governance. The Company fully supports anti-
corruption practice and being aware of corruption
impacts to socio-economic development and national
security. The Company’s policies on anti-corruption
are as follows:

(1) The Company shall encourage to create
awareness, value and attitude to its employees to
perform their duties with honesty, transparency, and
in compliance with the laws and regulations, as well
as setting an anti-corruption mindset part of the
organizational culture, and managing business
according to good corporate governance practices.

(2) The Company’s employee shall not act in
demanding or accepting assets or benefits from the
others who have duties or business transactions
related to the Company, except for traditional
occasions or festivals, and such benefits shall not
be illegal, and not a result of abusing any power for
own and/or other’s benefits.

(3) The Company shall conduct the review process
for operating procedures, evaluate the risk of
corruption and manage to properly solve such
incident.

(4) The Company shall provide sufficient and
appropriate internal control system including



development of systems and mechanisms for
balancing power properly, clearly and efficiently,
in order to prevent any involvement in corruption.

(5) The Company shall provide communication and
training for personnel in order to understand
comprehensively about anti-corruption policy.

(6) The Company shall establish channels for the
complaint or a clue of suspicious matter with the
policy to protect informant or the whistleblower and
maintain such information on a confidential basis.
The Company shall also apply verification
procedures and define sanctions subject to relevant
rules and regulations.

(7) The Company should support activities held by
the agency or other organization for the purpose of
corruption prevention and support anti-corruption
practice.

The Company has been certified as a member of
the Collective Action Coalition (CAC) against
corruption since 18 August 2017.

3.3 Policy and Guideline on Non-infringement of
Intellectual Property

The Company respects and complies to the law
related to intellectual property and has a policy to
prohibit any violation of intellectual property rights;
which stipulates in the Company’s Code of Conduct
as follows:

(1) All employee is responsible for protecting and
keeping confidentiality of the Company’s intellectual
property in order to prevent information leakage and
exploitation of such information for personal gain or
any other person’s gain without permission.

(2) All employee must respect and honor others’
intellectual property. Employee is refrained from
exploiting others’ intellectual property, whether
in whole or in part, without the owner’s permission.

3.4 Policy on Compliance of Laws and Human
Rights Principles

The Company’s directors, executives and employee
are responsible for complying to the laws and human
rights principles regardless of race, color, gender,
language, religion, social origin, property, birth place,
political opinion, or other status. The directors,
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executives and employee are encouraged to
understand their duties and responsibilities towards
society and others, based on the following guidelines:

(1) The Company strictly complies with the laws and
human rights principles and does not support any
business which violates the human rights.

(2) The Company treats all employee equally in
terms of employment, remuneration, training,
promotion, termination and dismissal, without
discrimination of gender, race, color, religion, age,
marital status, pregnancy, political opinion, or
disability, etc.

(3) The Company allows all employee to enjoy equal
rights for work in accordance with rules, regulations,
notifications and orders of the Company.

3.5 Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility and
Sustainable Development

The Company’s operation considers the responsibility
towards society and environment for a sustainable
business growth, by emphasizing on transparent
and fair operation for mutual benefit and prosperity
of all stakeholders. The Company’s policies on
operation for sustainability are as follow:

(1) To lead the organization with the concept of
sustainable development using communication and
exchange of best practices with all stakeholders.

(2) To incorporate the sustainable development
concept into every aspect of works and decision-
making processes of the Company.

(3) To promote training, educating, and counseling
of employees according to sustainable development
guidelines.

(4) To support regional operation and cooperation to
achieve sustainable development.

3.6 Environmental Policy

The Company run services business by adhering to
environmental responsibility. The Company is
committed to environmental management based on
the following practices:

(1) Prevent and control pollution in compliance
with international standards and consider the
environmentalimpacts to customer, employee and
community.
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(2) Create employees’ awareness and promote an
efficient use of energy and natural resource.

(3) Perform duty in compliance with environmental
related laws and regulations.

(4) Review objectives and goals regularly to improve
the environmental management system.

(5) Publish environmental policy to the public and
related parties.

3.7 Whistle-blowing Policy

Objectives

(1) To encourage Company’s employees to operate
the business correctly, transparently and verifiably in
accordance with the principles of corporate
governance, ethical standards and the Company’s
Code of Ethics. The employees shall report in good
faith of any misconduct or suspected to be in
violation of the aforementioned principles to the
Company. The Company shall improve or modify
operations to be correct, suitable, transparent, fair
and consistent with the laws on protecting the
whistle-blowers to the Audit Committee.

(2) To ensure that the supervisors and the Human
Resources Department of the Company are
responsible for managing, providing advices and
monitoring the employee acts to be in compliance
with the policy. The complaints of suspicious or
corrupted acts shall be protected if they act in good
faith.

Scope of Notifying Suspicions or Complaints

(1) Doubtful actions which may violate the principles
of good practices including the followings:

1.1 Violation of compliance with the principles and
guidelines of Corporate Governance Policy

1.2 Violation of rules and regulations of the
Company

1.3 Experience of unfair treatment at work

1.4 Corrupted act

(2) Suspicious acts resulting in damage to the
Company

Channels of Notifying Suspicions or Complaints
for All Stakeholders
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1. Post
Addressed to: Audit Committee
TICON Industrial Connection Public
Company Limited Suite 1308, 13/1" Floor,
Sathorn City Tower, 175 South Sathorn Road,
Thungmahamek Sub-district,
Sathorn District, Bangkok 10120

2. E-mail: audit_committee@ticon.co.th

Process for Dealing with the Complaints:
1. Registration and submission of matters

1.1 The Complaint Coordinator records the
complaints and schedules the date to respond
back the progresses to the complainant, based
on the followings:

» For complaints seriously impacting the reputation
of the Company, the coordinator shall take an
action as urgently as possible.

* For other cases, the coordinator shall take an
action promptly.

* For general inquiries including questions about
share price, dividend payment, registration of
these inquiries is not required. These inquiries
shall instead be forwarded to the responsible
department to respond to inquirer.

1.2 The Complaint Coordinator records following
information from the complainant:

* Complainant's name - surname and
contact number

« Complaint date

* Name of person or cause incident of
complaint

» Other relevant information

1.3 After recording the complaint, the coordinator
shall classify the level of confidentiality based on
the nature of the matter (except for general
inquiries) and proceed as follows:

* The complaint is submitted to the relevant
person to supervise the investigation
according to their level of authority.

* The person who is responsible for the
complaint shall summarize the results and
report to the Audit Committee.

* The Audit Committee shall report the
resolution management of complaints to
the Board of Director.

2. Data collection, factual investigation and



command.

2.1 The person who is responsible for the complaint
shall collect and verify data or evidence.
If investigated result pointed out that the
respondent was committed an offence or found
guilty with imposition of disciplinary action, then
the person shall consult with the Human
Resources Department to ensure that punishment
is in accordance with the Company’s polices
and/or applicable laws. The results of the
investigation and punishment shall be submitted
to the Audit Committee for acknowledgement
and provide a copy to the coordinator to further
inform the complainant.

2.2 If the person responsible for that complaint
investigated and found that the respondent was
not guilty, or the matter arises from
misunderstanding, or the relevant person has
been given advices for proper behavior and the
case was closed, then the person responsible to
handle the complaint shall submit the matter to
their superiors for an approval to close the case.
A copy of the investigation will be submitted to
the complaint coordinator to further inform the
result to the complainant, and report to the Audit
Committee.

3. Result notification to the complainant and
improvements

3.1 The person responsible for that complaint shall
inform the Complaint Coordinator about the
progress of the results.

3.2 The Complaint Coordinator shall inform the
result to the complainant, record the result
progress of the complaint management and
report to the Audit Committee quarterly.

3.3 The Complaint Coordinator shall monitor results
of improvement (if any) and report to the Audit
Committee for acknowledgement.

Complaint in Bad Faith

For Company’s employees, if notification of
suspicions or complaints proves to be made in bad
faith, disciplinary action shall be imposed. For
outside parties whose acts caused damage the
Company, legal proceedings shall be taken against
that person.

Measures to Protect the Informers or
Complainants
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1. The Company shall keep the information including
the identity of the informers, complainants and
respondents confidential.

2. The Company shall disclose the information as
necessary, taking into consideration safety and threat
to the informers or relevant persons.

3. Any damage to the person shall be compensated
under a fair and proper procedure.

4. In case that the complainants or other persons
involving in the investigation are insecure or
potentially endangered, they can request for the
Company’s protection as appropriate. The
Company may also extend the protection
without the request of complainants or persons
involving in the investigation if the case is
deemed to cause any trouble or insecurity.

5. The Company shall not commit an unfair
treatment to the informers or the complainants,
including rotation their job or office, suspension
from work, intimidation, interference with work,
dismissal, termination of employment or any
other unfair action.

Punishment

Since the Anti-Corruption Policy and Measures are
parts of work disciplines of the Company, any
violation by the directors, executives, and employees
will be investigated and be punished according to
TICON'’s policies, as well as the Public Limited
Companies Act, Securities and Exchange Act and
other applicable laws.

3.8 Insider Trading Policy

The Company establishes policies and guidelines to
supervise the executives about the Company’s
insider’s trading for personal benefit as follow;

(1) Providing knowledge to the Board of Directors
and the executives about duty of reporting their
holding of the Company’s securities or any
shareholding change according to Section 59 of the
Securities and Exchange Act year 1992 and
penalties enforced by the mentioned law.

(2) The Company notify the executives that if any
personnel be informed of material internal information
which may affect to securities price, the person shall
restrain from the Company’s securities trading
instantly since the day he got informed and shall not
disclose the essential internal information to the
others. The violator shall be punished by law.
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(3) The Company shall clarify to shareholders and
invertors through the Stock Exchange of Thailand

instantly, in case of any news leakage to the public (4) The Board of Directors and the executives are
for both true and fake news in order to prevent prohibited from trading the Company’s securities
unfairness to shareholders and in during 30 days period before a release of the

Company’s financial statements to the public.

Report on Securities Holding of Director and Executive as of 30 November 2018

Number of share Change

Directors/Management

. . . 10 March 2017 30 November 2018 Increase/Decrease
Shares Held in TICON included holding by spouse
. . (shares)
and minor children

Director

1. | Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom - - -

7. | Mr. Chali Sophonpanich 36,232,635 - (36,232,635)*

9. | Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks - - -

Management

8. | Ms. Lok Cheng Yee - - -

4. Information Disclosure and For the Company’s information inquiries, please
Transpa rency contact the following person in charge of investor
relations.

For the transparent and equitable information
disclosure, the Company arranges to disclose Contact Name Contact Details
financial information, annual report, policies, CSR
activities, and registration statement (Form 56-1) on
its website at www.ticon.co.th, which the Company
posts a regular update of information. Besides that,
the Company also holds analysts briefing quarterly
to announce its operating performance to
shareholders, investors, analysts, fund managers,
and other interested persons. The Company’s
executives will clarify and respond to inquiries raised
by participants during the analyst briefing.

E-mail: anchalee.j@ticon.co.th;
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In addition to giving opportunities for company visit
to securities analysts and investors to meet
executives and inquire business performance, as
well as attending factories and warehouses of the
Company, organizing securities analyst meeting
together with press conference to declare business
overview and operating performance; the Company
also participates in the SET’s Opportunity Day
platform every quarter and joins investor conference
held by securities company. These activities support
information sharing and establish good relationships
between the executives and investors for better
understanding of the Company’s business.
Moreover. the Company also travels aboard to
provide information to overseas investors outside
Thailand.

In the period of the first 9 month of year 2018, The
Company presented the Company’s information to
foreign investors, institute investors, individual
investors and securities analysts as follows:

Presentation Activity Number of
Events

Opportunity Day )
Investors meet the Company’s management 13
Meeting of securities analysts and press 2
conference

Domestic investor briefing 41
Foreign investor briefing 3

The Board of Directors is responsible for the
Company’s financial statements and financial
information provided in the annual report. The
financial statements have been prepared in
compliance with generally accepted accounting
principles of Thailand, with appropriate accounting
policy uniformly applied in each fiscal year. The
Audit Committee is appointed to be responsible for
the quality of the financial statements and internal
control system, to ensure adequate disclosure of
material information in the notes to financial
statements, and accounting record accurately
keeping transaction correctly and completely for the
benefit of shareholders and investors. The annual
report also contains report from the Board of
Directors to present the results of business
operation and other important matters occurred
during the year for shareholders information.

In 2018, the Company has no violation against the
regulators in terms of non-disclosure or insufficient
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disclosure of information within the required period.

5. Responsibilities of the Board of
Directors

5.1 The Board of the Directors’ Structure

(1) The Board of the Directors’ structure consists of
9 qualified members who are the expert with
qualification of skill, knowledge and beneficial
experience to the Company, with capability to
perform duty efficiently, the quorum inclusive of
5 executive directors and 4 independent directors.

(2) The Chairman of the Board of the Directors, the
Chief Executive Officer and the President are not
the same person with separate responsibility from
each other. The Chairman elected by the Board of
Directors performs the duty by controlling the
meeting to run as outlined agenda, and encourages
every director to participate in meeting such as
asking question, commenting, providing advice and
suggestion to the executives and supporting the
Company’s business operation without interference
to the Company’s business management. The Chief
Executive Officer and the President perform duty to
manage the Company’s business and supervise the
Company’s operation in accordance with regulations,
resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting and the
Board of the Directors’ meeting, policies and the
Company’s business plan and related laws.

(3) The Board of Directors includes 4 independent
directors, in accordance with the proportion defined
by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
with responsibility of providing opinions on the
performance of management team independently.
The Company determines qualification of independent
directors according to minimum requirements of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and
the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET).

(4) The general directors’ tenure is three years, with
vacated director allowed to be re-elected. During the
annual meeting of shareholders, one-third of the
number of directors will vacate their office and may
be re-elected. If the number of vacating directors is
not one-third, the number nearest to one-third will
vacate the office.

5.2 Qualifications of Directors

(1) The Director shall be an expert with knowledge,
capability and experience that are beneficial to the
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Company’s operation. Performing duties with
integrity, honesty, and ethics for business operation
and spare enough time to fully perform the duty.

(2) The Director shall be well-qualified and not
possessing prohibited characteristics or lack of
reliability status as prescribed in the Public Limited
Companies law as well as in the regulation by
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and
the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET). The
Director's name shall enclose in director and
xexecutive name lists database of listed companies
issued by Capital Market Supervisory Board.

(3) The Director shall not operate any business
similar to the Company and competing with the
Company, or being a partner or the Directors in
other juristic person with same characteristic and
competing to the Company for individual benefit or
other’'s benefit, unless inform to shareholder’s
meeting before appointment resolution.

(4) The Director shall immediately notify the
Company, in case of being a direct or indirect
stakeholder in any contract made by the Company;
and either increasing or decreasing of the
Company’s or affiliated company’s shareholding.

(5) The Director shall convey opinion and use
independent discretion to consider strategy, policy,
management, Directors’ appointment and operating
measure, as well as being independent to oppose
any action of the Director or management in case a
conflict of interest affected equality of the shareholders.

5.3 Qualifications of Independent Directors
(Update New Definition as Capital Market
Supervisory Board Notice Tor.Jor 39/2559)

The Company has specified qualifications of
independent Directors as announced by the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and
the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) as follows:

(1) Holding shares of not exceeding 1% of total
voting shares of the Company, its parent company,
its subsidiaries, its associated companies, its major
shareholders, or its controlling persons, including
shares held by related parties to such independent
director.

(2) Not being or have ever been an executive
director, employee, staff, corporate advisor receiving
a regular salary, or being a controlling person of the
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Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries, its
associated companies, its same-level subsidiaries,
its major shareholders, or its controlling persons
unless the foregoing status has ended for more than
2 years prior to being appointed as Independent
Director. Such prohibitions exclude government
officer or advisor to any government agency who is
a major shareholder or controlling person of the
Company.

(3) Not being a person related by blood line or by
law in terms of father, mother, spouse, sibling and
child, including spouse of the children of other
directors, of management, of major shareholders, of
controlling persons, or of persons to be nominated
as directors, management or controlling persons of
the Company or its subsidiaries.

(4) Not being or have had a business relationship
with the Company, its parent company, its
subsidiaries, its associated companies, its major
shareholders, or its controlling persons, in the
manner that may interfere with his/her independent
judgement, or is not or has not ever been
asignificant shareholder or a controlling person of
any person having business relationship with the
Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries, its
associated companies, its major shareholders, or its
controlling persons unless the foregoing relationship
has ended for more than 2 years prior to being
appointed as an Independent Director. The term
“business relationship” aforementioned includes any
normal business transaction, rental or lease of
property, transaction relating to assets or services,
grant or receipt of financial assistance through
receiving or extending loans, guarantee, providing
assets as collateral, including any other similar
actions which result in the Company or his
counterparty being subject to indebtedness payable
to the other party in the amount of 3% or more of the
net tangible assets of the Company or 20 million
baht or more, whichever is lower. The calculation of
such indebtedness shall be in accordance with the
method of calculating the value of connected
transactions in accordance with the Notification of
the Capital Market Supervisory Board regarding the
criteria for connected transactions mutatis mutandis,
inclusive of debt incurred during the 1 year before
the date of business relationship with the same
person.

(5) Not being or have ever been an auditor of the
Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries, its
associated companies, its major shareholders, or its



controlling persons and is not a significant
shareholder, a controlling person, or a partner of an
audit firm which employs auditors of the Company,
its parent company, its subsidiaries, its associated
companies, its major shareholders, or its controlling
persons unless the foregoing relationship has ended
for more than 2 years prior to being appointed as an
Independent Director.

(6) Not being or have ever been any professional
advisor including legal or financial advisor who
receives an annual service fee exceeding 2 million
baht from the Company, its parent company, its
subsidiaries, its associated companies, its major
shareholders, or its controlling persons and is not a
significant shareholder, a controlling person, or a
partner of the professional advisor unless the
foregoing relationship has ended for more than 2
years prior to being appointed as Independent
Director.

(7) Not being a director representing Board member
of the Company’s, its major shareholders, or a
shareholder who is related to the Company’s major
shareholders.

(8) Not own/run any business similar to or material
competing with the Company or its subsidiaries, or
not being a significant partner in any partnership,
executive director, employee, staff, advisor receiving
regular salary, or holds more than 1% of total voting
shares of the company similar to or materially
competing with the Company or its subsidiaries.

(9) Have no any other characteristics which make
him/her incapable of expressing independent
opinions regarding the Company’s business.

After being appointed as a qualified Independent
Director specified in the above 1-9 items, the
Independent Director might be authorized by the
Board of Directors to make a collective decision to
execute business of the Company, its parent
company, its subsidiaries, its associated companies,
its same-level subsidiaries, its major shareholders,
or its controlling persons

5.4 Terms of Service of Directors

(1) At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders,
the directors must vacate one third of the positions.
If the number of directors is indivisible, use the
nearest number to one third. The directors who have
been in position for the longest time shall be considered
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retiring from the position, and the retired directors
may be re-elected.

(2) In addition to termination clauses stated in the
above agenda, the directors shall vacate position in
the following cases:

» Pass away

* Resign

* Not qualified or possessing the prohibited
characteristics prescribed in the Public Limited
Companies Act or in accordance with the
guidelines in the Notification of Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC)

* The shareholders’ meeting approved the
retirement with the votes of not less than
three-fourths of the total number of shareholders
attending the meeting and having the voting
rights. The number of shares held by the
shareholders attending the meeting and having
voting rights is not less than half.

» Court orders

(3) Any director resigning shall submit a resignation
letter to the Company with the resignation become
effective from the arrival date of the letter.

In the case where the position of the director
becomes vacant for any reason other than the
service term expiration, the Board of Directors shall
elect the qualified person to be the replacement for
the next meeting of the Board of Directors. Unless
the service term of the director is less than 2 months,
the person who is appointed as the replacement
member shall remain in position only for the
remaining term of the director who holds the
position before.

5.5 Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board
of Directors

(1) The Board of Directors consists of individuals in
the business circles and from many occupations
with leadership, vision, knowledge, ability and
experience in various fields and independent to
make decisions for the best benefit of the Company
and overall shareholders. The Board of Directors is
responsible for approving the Company’s vision,
mission, strategy, goals, business plan and budget.
The Board of Directors also supervises the
management to ensure that the business plan and
budget are efficiently and effectively implemented to
maximize the economic value of the business and
the highest stability for shareholders.
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(2) The Board of Directors has established a
Corporate Governance Policy and scheduled to
review at least once a year.

(3) The Company has developed a Code of Conduct
approved for implementation by the Board of
Directors. The Code of Conduct includes the
guideline of desirable behavior for directors and
executives and employees to interact with the
Company, colleagues, outsiders and society according
to good ethics principle. During the past, directors,
executives and employees have been well informed
and understand proper behavior and ethical
conducts necessary to perform their duties with
honesty and integrity in order to create confidence
for the shareholder and stakeholders including the
public and society.

(4) In consideration of transaction with a potential
conflict of interest, directors who have conflict of
interest will not attend the meeting and abstain
voting on that agenda.

(5) In terms of risk management, the Board of
Directors monitors and acknowledges the
Company’s risk management plan obtained directly
from the Risk Management Committee Report, as
well as the executive report from performance
review at every meeting of the Board of Directors.

(6) The Company provided the annual performance
evaluation of its Board of Directors, as well as
Director self-assessment, and sub-committee
self-assessment to allow each director to comment
on the performance of the Board of Directors and to
review problems and obstacles over the past year.

5.6 The Board of the Directors’ Meetings

The Board of the Directors’ meeting is held at least
once every quarter. The Company will inform The
Board of Directors meeting schedule in advance
every year, so that the directors can arrange the
timeslot and attend the meeting in unison. The
Board of Directors set a clear agenda with the
invitation letter and supporting documents sent to
the directors no less than 7 days in advance so that
the directors have sufficient time to study the
information before attending the meeting. The
executives attend the meeting to explain the details
and answer the questions of the Board of Directors.
The Chairman allows all directors to express their
opinions openly before voting and concluding
resolution of each agenda. The Directors who have
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a conflict of interest, whether directly or indirectly,
have no right to vote and must leave the meeting
during the consideration of the agenda.

During the fiscal year period 1 January - 30 September
2018, each director attending the meeting as
follows:

Number of Attendances
During the fiscal year
1 January - 30 September 2018
(Total 8 meetings)

Director Name List

1. Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom 8/8
2. Mr. Threekwan Bunnag 8/8
3. Mr. Chatchaval Jiaravanon 4/8
4. Mr. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai 8/8
5. Mr. Chali Sophonpanich 4/8
6. Mr. Chotiphat Bijananda 4/8
7. Mr. Chai Vinichbutr 68
8. Mr. Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi 48
9. Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks 7/8

" Refers to the number of attendance by the director through conference call

In every meeting of the Board of Directors, the
company secretary will be the meeting organizer to
prepare meeting agenda and document to send to
the Board of Directors before the meeting, and
record minute of meeting inclusive of essential
details and various comments, which shall finish
within 14 days after the meeting, as well as keeping
comprehensive meeting documents in an orderly
fashion; and advising the Board of Directors about
rules and regulations related to the meeting agenda.

5.7 Annual Assessment

(1) The Board of Directors Assessment

The Company provides annual performance review
and assessment of the Board of Directors. The
Company has adopted the performance assessment
guideline from the Stock Exchange of Thailand and
adjusted to fit the characteristics and structure of its
Board of Directors. The assessment results will be
used to develop the Board of Directors’ duties to
enhance effectiveness and efficiency of operation.
The Board of Directors assessment consists of 6
topics as follows;

1) Structure and qualification of the Board of
Directors



2) Roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors

3) Board of Directors’ meetings

4) Directorship

5) Relationship with the management team

6) Director’s self-development and management
development

The scores range from 0 to 4, from the very strongly
disagreed to strongly agree. The result of annual
performance assessment of the Board of the
Directors, for operating period during the fiscal year
January 1 - September 30, 2018, the Board of
Directors greatly agreed with the past operating
results, and that the Board of Directors have executed
and performed their duties exceptionally well.

(2) Top Executive Assessment

The Board of Directors evaluates the performance
of the Company’s senior executives based on the
Company’s operating results, implementation of
policies received from the Board of Directors
underlying overall economic and social situation.
The Board will use the assessment result to
determine remuneration of senior executives.

5.8 Succession Plan

The Board of Directors has set up reports on
succession plan for top executive positions and key
positions in the line function based on performance,
potential and readiness of the individual. The
company has prepared for the successor to develop
knowledge, capability and skills required by the job
in order to take the job when senior executives in
key positions are unable to perform their duties.

The Company has set a succession plan for executives
at various levels, especially the management and
positions in the key function, with priority to recruitment
of personnel from within the organization. The
promotion criteria will be determined each year to
develop personnel who have good performance and
potential to grow at a higher position in the hierarchy.
Underlying the dynamics of developing succession
plan for senior executives, the Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing the principles as well as
selecting the candidates who are competent and
qualified to take the position following maturity of
senior management’s tenure or retirement.
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For executives who have been designated as the
successor, in addition to possessing qualifications
and related work experience, a transfer of knowledge
and experience through job rotation in relevant
functions and attendance of training courses are
required to prepare for higher positions in the future,
and ensure a smooth transition for continued
operation.

For Human Resource Management, a comprehensive
system has been set up to properly allocate
resource, control, and monitor results, covering the
recruitment process to obtain qualified personnel as
needed, with appropriate and fair remuneration
system, clearly-defined responsibilities of staff,
personnel, operating performance, human resources
development and effective communication to
provide employees with the knowledge, ability, as
well as enhancing the Company’s human resources
management effectiveness and appropriateness,
focusing on competency development and
performance appraisal clarity which lead to
appropriate remuneration in line with capabilities
and deliverables.

5.9 Development of Directors and Executives
1) Training for Directors and Executives

The Board promotes and facilitates the attendance
of directors and executives in the training or seminar
for the development of their performance on a
regular basis. Trainings are provided by both
in-house and by the third-party covering range of
topics. All directors are required to attend the
training in order to understand the role of director.
the Company’s directors completed the following
training courses with the Thai Institute of Directors
(IOD) such as Director Certification Program (DCP),
Director Accreditation Program (DAP), Board
Performance Evaluation, the Role of Chairman
(RCP), Audit Committee Program and Role of
Compensation Committee (RCC)

Attendance of Training Course for Directors and
Executives organized by Thai Institute of Directors
(IOD)
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Directors Courses

Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom . The Role of Chairman in Leading Strategic Risk Oversight 2560
. The Role of the Chairman Program (RCP 33/2557)
. Financial Institutions Governance Program (FGP 3/2554)
. Directors Accreditation Program (DAP 63/2550)
Mr. Threekwan Bunnag . Advance Audit Committee Program (AACP) 27/2560
. Director Accreditation Program 2549
. Director Certification Program 2544
Mr. Chatchaval Jiaravanon . Director Accreditation Program 2551
Mr. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai . Financial Institutions Governance Program (FGP 3/2554)
. Director Certification Program (DCP Year 2543)
Mr. Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi . Director Certification Program (DCP 46/2547)
. Director Accreditation Program (DAP 10/2547)
. Finance for Non-Finance Directors (FND 10/2547)
Mr. Chotiphat Bijananda . Director Certification Program (DCP 155/2555)
Mr. Chali Sophonpanich . Corporate Governance for Capital Market Intermediaries (CGl) 7" class of Year
2558
. Director Accreditation Program 1 2548
Mr. Chai Vinichbutr . Director Accreditation Program (DAP 10/2547)
. Finance for Non-Finance Directors (FND 10/2547)
Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks . Boardroom Success through Financing & Investment (“BFT”) by 10D

Attendance of Development and Training Course of each Director during fiscal year 1 January — 30 September

2018

Directors

Mr. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai

Details

Seminar of “Roles of member of Thailand’s Private Sector Collective Active Coalition”

organized by the Company

2) Orientation for New Director

The Board of Directors set guidelines for the
orientation of newly appointed directors. The
Company shall arrange documents or briefings
session to enhance new directors’ understanding in
the business and the roles and duties of the Director
and the Board. The Board of Directors has assigned
the Company Secretary to be responsible for
orientation of the newly appointed directors by
organizing a meeting with Directors and/or
executive and/or related staff to explain and answer
the questions. The Company follows the guidelines
by providing information briefing and the orientation
document packs for the newly appointed directors
such as the Company’s information, manual of the
director of the listed company, corporate
governance, Code of Conduct, authority and duties
of the Board, meeting schedule for that calendar
year, etc. The Company also arranges the director
to attend the courses as suggested by the Office of
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Securities and Exchange Commission held by the
Thai Institute of Directors (IOD).

5.10 Sub-committees

The company has established 6 sub-committees to
monitor and closely supervise the operations and
report to the Board regularly, comprising the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Compensation
Committee, Corporate Governance Committee, Risk
Management Committee and Executive Committee.

(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of 4 independent
directors who are the sub-committee of the Board of
Directors under good corporate governance
principle. The qualified members have experience in
accounting, finance, business administration and
law. Being independent and qualified to perform
their duties to review the reliability of financial
reporting according to the requirements by the Stock



Exchange of Thailand (SET); Holding no more than
1% of the total voting shares of the Company, Not
being or used to be a managing director, an
employee, a consultant who receives regular salary
or a controlling person of the Company, including its
parent company, its subsidiaries, its associated
companies, its major shareholders or its controlling
persons. The Audit Committee is obliged to comply
with the Audit Committee Charter in compliance with
the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) regulations
fully and independently, with an emphasis on
complying to the principles of good corporate
governance, having a good internal audit system,
and promoting for a preventive inspection approach
which covers risk management and protection of all
stakeholders’ interest on an equal basis.

During the fiscal year period 1 January - 30 September
2018, each Audit Committee attending the meeting
as follows:

Number of Attendances
During the fiscal year

Director Name List 1 January - 30 September 2018

(Total 6 meetings)

1. Mr. Threekwan Bunnag 6/6
2. Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom 6/6
3. Mr. Chatchaval Jiaravanon 4/6
4. Mr. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai 6/6

Note: All 4 members of the Audit Committee have knowledge and experienced in
reviewing financial statements of the Company.

Currently, Senior Vice President of Internal Audit is
the secretary of the Audit Committee and supervising
the activities of the Audit Committee, organizing
meeting, preparing agenda and related documents
of the meeting, submitting the agenda to the Audit
Committee, as well as recording minute of meeting
and filing meeting documents.

(2) Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises 4 members
appointed by the Board of the Directors. Their
responsibilities are to determine the Company’s
business strategy and investment plan both financial
and non-financial part. The Executive Committee
also handles other matters as assigned by The
Board of the Directors, for the benefits of the
Company.

During the fiscal year period 1 January - 30 September
2018, each Executive Committee attending the
meeting as follows:
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Number of Attendances
During the fiscal year

Director Name List 1 January - 30 September 2018

(Total 1 meeting)

1. Mr. Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi 0'1
2. Mr. Chai Vinichbutr 0'/1
3. Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks 1M
4. Mr. Sopon Rajraksa 7m

™ Refers to the number of attendance by the director through conference call

(3) Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee of the Company
consists of 3 directors appointed by the Board of the
Directors. The Committee is responsible to ensure
that the compensation of the directors and the
management as well as the welfare of the employee
are fair and transparent. In considering the
compensation, the Compensation Committees will
take into account several factors, including comparison
with industry benchmark, the Company’s operating
performance, and related roles and responsibilities.

During the fiscal year period 1 January - 30 September
2018, each Compensation Committee attending the
meeting as follows:

Number of Attendances
During the fiscal year

Director Name List 1 January - 30 September 2018

(Total 3 meetings)

1. Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom 3/3
2. Mr. Chatchaval Jiaravanon 2/3
3. Mr. Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi 2/3

(4) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises 3 directors
appointed by the Board of the Directors. The
Committee is responsible for setting criteria and
method for selecting the Company’s directors,
Sub-Committees’ members, Chief Executive Officer
and the President to ensure transparency of the
selection process.

During the fiscal year period 1 January - 30 September
2018, each Nomination Committee attending the
meeting as follows:

Number of Attendances
During the fiscal year

Director Name List 1 January - 30 September 2018

(Total 1 meeting)

1. Mr. Chatchaval Jiaravanon 17
2. Mr. Threekwan Bunnag 17
3. Mr. Chotiphat Bijananda 0'1

 Refers to the number of attendance by the director through conference call
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(5) Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises 4
members appointed by the Board of the Directors.
The Committee is responsible for evaluating and
monitoring risks of the Company. The Committee
also reviews guidelines and tools regularly for
proper risk management and efficient business
transaction of the Company.

During the fiscal year period 1 January - 30 September
2018, each Risk Management Committee
attending the meeting as follows:

Number of Attendances
During the fiscal year

Director Name List 1 January - 30 September 2018

(Total 2 meetings)

1. Mr. Chotiphat Bijananda 2/2
2. Mr. Threekwan Bunnag 2/2
3. Mr. Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi 02
4. Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks 2/2
5. Mr. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai 2/2

© Refers to the number of attendance by the director through conference call

(6) Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee comprises 4
members appointed by the Board of the Directors.
The Committee is responsible for setting the
Corporate Governance Policy, advising the Board of
Directors to monitor and review business operation
to ensure compliance with good corporate
governance principle. Corporate Governance
Committee members are also responsible for
proposing policy and work procedure for
Sustainability Management (SM), which focuses on
society, community, and environment (Corporate
Social Responsibility or CSR) to the Board of
Directors, as well as preparing, reviewing, advising
and evaluating results related to anti-corruption
operation for the Company.

During the fiscal year period 1 January - 30 September
2018, each Corporate Governance Committee
attending the meeting as follows:

Number of Attendances
During the fiscal year

Director Name List 1 January - 30 September 2018

(Total 1 meetings)

1. Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom 7
2. Mr. Threekwan Bunnag 17
3. Mr. Uten Lohachitpitaks 1M
4. Mr. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai 17
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5.11 Nomination and Appointment of Director and
Senior Executive

(1) Independent Director

The Company determines the proportion of directors
qualified to be independent directors not less than
one-third of the existing number of directors and
must not be less than 3 persons. The qualifications
of independent directors are in accordance with the
criteria of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET).

(2) Nomination of Director and Senior Executive

2.1 Nomination of Director

The Nominating Committee will consider nomination
of a person to be appointed as directors to replace
the resigned or retiring director following maturity of
tenure, taking into account the qualification of
directors in accordance with the rules, related
regulations, the Board Structure, necessity of the
organization, knowledge, capability, experience that
are beneficial to the Company and able to devote
time to perform duty for the Company.

For Directors structure, the Company determines the
proportion of directors qualified to be independent
directors to be not less than one-third of the existing
number of directors and must not be less than 3
persons. While the number of representatives of
major shareholders will be proportionated to the
respective shareholding of the Company for an
appropriate balance of power. In addition, the Board
will listen to suggestions from minority shareholders
who nominate qualified persons to be elected
as directors or independent directors of the
Company. The shareholders also have opportunity
to nominate candidates for election to be Directors
at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
according to criteria set by the Company. As
described in the Article Number 1: Rights of
Shareholders

The criteria and procedure for election of directors
by the shareholders are as follows

1) In voting for election of directors, each shareholder
shall have one vote per share.

2) In the election of directors, each shareholder must
use all the votes he or she holds as stated in item
1 to elect one or several persons as directors.
However, it is not possible to share the voting rights
for anyone.



3) The person receiving the highest number of votes
in descending order of votes will be appointed to be
the directors equal to the number of directors to be
appointed or elected at that time. In case the person
who is elected in the next order has the same
number of votes exceeding the number of directors
required or elected at that time, the Chairman of the
meeting shall have a casting vote.

If the position of the director is vacant due to any
reason other than maturity of the director’s tenure,
the Board shall consider appointing a qualified
person not subject to legally prohibited characteristics
to become a substitute for the next Board meeting.
Unless the term of directors from office is less than
two months, the person to be appointed as the
replacement director shall remain in the position of
the respective director for the remaining term of the
director whom he or she replaces. The Board
resolution to appoint a substitute for director must
receive at least three-fourths of vote counting for the
remaining directors.

2.2 Nomination of Senior Executive

To recruit senior executives (eg, Chief Executive
Officer), the Nomination Committee will conduct a
primary assessment to screen for qualified persons
with the knowledge, ability, skill and experience that
are beneficial to the Company’s operations and
understand the business of the company very well,
capable of managing to achieve the objective and
goal set by the Board of Directors. Then the
Nomination Committee will propose the qualified
candidate to the Board of Directors for approval.

6. Supervision of Operation of
Subsidiaries and Associates

The company has sent a representative to hold the
position as a director, an executive, a controlling
person in subsidiaries and associated companies
proportionated to its shareholding to supervise the
operation of its subsidiaries and associated
companies.

The directors and executives of the Company must
be approved by the Board of Directors to be the
directors, executives, controlling persons of its
subsidiaries and associates, with required
qualification according to the regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the
Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET), and related
authorities.
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Persons appointed as directors, executives,
controlling persons in subsidiaries and associates of
the Company have a duty to perform in the best
interest of its subsidiaries or associated companies.
For important matters requiring Board approval, the
appointed persons must be approved by the Board
of Directors prior to voting or exercising the rights in
making a material decision in the subsidiaries and
associates. In case of a subsidiary, the person
appointed by the company shall supervise the
subsidiary to keep the information and accounting
record for the Company to audit and timely collect
for preparation of consolidated financial statements,
as well as governing the connected transaction of
the subsidiary to be executed according to the
Company’s framework.

7. Remuneration of Auditors

(1) Audit Fee

The audit fee for KPMG Phoomchai Audit Limited
for the fiscal year of January 1, 2018 to September
30, 2018 was not more than Baht 1,300,000.

(2) Non-audit Fee

The legal consultancy service provided by KPMG
Phoomchai Business Advisory Limited amounting to
Baht 1,660,173 and the tax consultancy service
provided by KPMG Phoomchai Tax Limited
amounting to 160,500 baht.

Compliance with Good Corporate
Governance Principles in Other Matters

The Company has complied with the principles of
good corporate governance for listed companies in
accordance with the guidelines set by the Stock
Exchange of Thailand (SET) in other matters such
as the attendance of directors in the Board of
Directors’ and Sub-committee’s meetings.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company is not the same person and there is a clear
separation of duties and responsibilities between the
Board and executive management. The Chairman of
the Board is responsible for administering the Board
of Directors to perform their duties independently
under the roles, duties and responsibilities assigned.
The Board is responsible for overseeing the operation
of the executive management team. The Chief
Executive Officer is the chief of executive management
who conducts business operation according to
corporate policy, objective and target.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

96

The Company has an efficient, adequate and
appropriate internal control and risk management
system for both management level and operating
level. These are considered to be the Company’s
key business fundamentals which lead to an
efficient operation and create a rational confidence
in the Company’s ability to achieve its business
objectives and vision with sustainable returns in the
long run, as well as ensuring that the Company’s
financial and operational details are accurate and
complete in compliance with laws and related
regulations to prevent possible risks. On 19
November 2018, the Board of Directors meeting has
considered the assessment result on adequacy and
appropriateness of the Company’s internal control
systems, as reviewed and presented by audit
committee with reference to “Adequacy of Internal
Control Questionnaire” issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). The Board of
Directors have an opinion that the Company has
adequate and appropriate internal control suitable
for current situation covering 5 areas: the
Company’s organization and control environment,
risk management, operational control, information
and communications system and monitoring system.
Summary of key contents are as follows:

1. Organization and Control Environment

The Company has strengthened an internal control
environment by setting clear and measurable
business targets in form of earnings per share for
the year. The operating result of each year has been
compared with the target, if the target was missed,
the Company would analyze the causes to find room
for performance improvement in the following year.
In addition,. the Company’s organizational structure
clearly illustrates line of command with delegation of
authority to the management for certain actions
where any member with potential conflict of interest
will not be authorized to approve such matter. The
responsibilities for approving transactions and
accounting records are strictly separated from
assets monitoring for check and balance purposes.

The management structure includes 7 committees,
comprising the Board of Directors, the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Compensation
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Risk
Management Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee. Each committee holds
responsibility towards shareholders in terms of
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supervising the Company’s management and
operations in order to maximize shareholders’
benefit under the framework of business ethics and
fair treatment to all stakeholders. The Committees
also promote and follow up development progress of
good corporate governance and corporate social
responsibility by revising the Company’s Corporate
Governance Ethical Standards and Business Code
of Conduct Handbook as well as providing
guidelines and other constructive suggestions to the
Company.

As the Company is verified a member of Thailand’s
Private Sector Collective Active Coalition Against
Corruption Council (CAC), it managed to implement
policy and internal control system to be in line with
corresponding risk in business corruption. This
policy and system are complying to business
operation principle with honesty, transparency and
fairness under the framework of law, morale and
good corporate governance.

2. Risk Management

As one of the Company’s key policies is to emphasize
on risk management, the Company has set up the
Risk Management Committee consisting of 5
Directors to regulate and monitor risks associated
with risk-prone functions identified by corporate
assessment results. Those risks may arise from
internal or external factors; with common external
factors that cause risks including economic and
political condition, natural disaster, construction
material price, domestic interest rate, exchange
rate, rules, regulations and law; while internal risk
factors covering investment project management, lease
terms, concentration of tenants, and new business
venture etc.

The Company also evaluates materiality of risks
based on their impacts scale to the Company’s
objective and business operation and assigns the
person in charge of that risk in relevant department.
The Company also held all executives accountable
for risk management plan to formulate risk management
procedure, monitor risk management of each
internal department and report monitoring results to
the Risk Committee for acknowledgement by the
Board of Directors. In addition, the Company
arranges for knowledge training to all employee for
understanding and awareness of risk management
importance on a continuous basis.



3. Operational Control

The Company’s internal control activities are
suitable for organization’s specific risks and properly
cover important procedures, for example, setting up
financial management policy, budgeting policy,
procurement procedure; as well as reviewing
documents about delegation of management
authority to approve corporate transaction consistent
with organization structure, alongside segregation of
responsibilities between approval of accounting and
IT record transactions, and managing control over
assets for check and balance purposes. In 2018 the
Company employed the expert from external, E.Y.
Corporate Services Co.,Ltd to advice on operation
development including standardized internal control
activities, and the Company assigned the President
Office and Center of Excellence to supervise all
department to strictly follow the policy and related
procedure.

The Company arranges to have operation procedure
and supervision on development, maintenance, and
security of technology system in compliance with
international standards. In 2018, the Company
adopted state-of-the-art information technology
system to increase operation efficiency and tighten
control over each function such as Salesforce
system for sales processing and marketing
promotion, SAP Success Factor system for human
resources management, and K2 system to support
procurement process including monitoring of the
Company’s budget expenses.

The Company usually keeps update information
regarding major shareholders, directors, the
management as well as related people and parties,
in order to monitor and review connected transactions
or transactions that may cause any conflict of
interest. When considering to approve the connected
party transactions, the Company makes decision on
an arm’s length basis with consideration of
maximum benefits to the Company, treating the
transaction as if it was done with outsiders. The
person who is a stakeholder is unable to involve in
the approval process to prevent any exploitation of
opportunity for an individual gain. In effect, the
Company follows the laws and SET rules about
Disclosure of information and listed company
practices concerning the connected transactions
with complete and adequate public information
disclosure. For affiliated company, the Company
has monitoring process for operations including
provision of execution guideline for the directors and

Annual Report 2018

management to follow and periodically report to the
Board of Directors so as to help achieve the
Company’s investment target.

4. Information and Communication System

The Company emphasizes on information system
as well as internal and external communication
especially for performance and financial reports to
ensure that the decisions of the Board, the
management, shareholders and relevant parties are
made on the basis of adequate, correct, complete,
up-to-date, and reliable information, in order to
enhance the Company’s competitiveness.

The Company sufficiently provides important
information to the Board for making decisions by
preparing analytical reports to compare principle
and reason, with supporting facts and all necessary
information for consideration of the matters sent to
the Board of Directors 7 days prior to the meeting.
The Company Secretary is responsible for providing
advices regarding rules and regulations to the
Board, as well as managing the Board’s activities,
coordinating with others to follow the Board’s
resolution, and centering storage along with filing
important corporate documents, i.e. registrar of
directors, notifications and minutes of the Board of
Directors’ meetings and the Shareholders’
meetings, so that the shareholder can examine
the appropriateness of directors’s duty performance.

The financial reports were managed systematically,
including a filing process for generate financial
reports preparation verified and examined by the
Company’s auditor, as well as consideration and
revision by the Auditor Committee in compliance
with the generally accepted accounting principles
and applicable to the Company’s business
characteristics. Indeed, the Board of Directors
revision of financial reports prior to public disclosure
will ensure the accuracy of reports and incorporate
completeness and transparency into an information
disclosure

5. Monitoring System

The Company has implemented the monitoring
system of both management level and operating
level to achieve the business goal, for any deviation
from target the Board of Directors and the
management will solve problems and provide clear
directions. In case of any significant issue that may
have impact to the Company, a responsible person
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will be assigned to report revision of the operating
plan, prepare root cause analysis and participate in
resolution within the timeline as the Board of
Directors has agreed, with follow-up report of
implementation progress and results.

Furthermore, the Company assigned Audit
Committee to examine internal control system
compliance to ensure that the Company has proper
and adequate internal control for operation to
mitigate the risks in main business operation. In
2018, the Audit Committee agreed to permit internal
audit department procure and deploy leading audit
programs for internal audit operation, including Audit
management program and Data analytics to
enhance the Company’s internal audit operation
efficiency as international standard. These
programs are compatible and supportive to big
volume of complicated data as well.

The internal audit department evaluated overall risk
of organization to prepare the 2018 audit plan and
proceed with examination as planned. The internal
audit department examined procurement system,
real estate for investment management system,
information technology system and cyber-security to
recheck security of information and effectiveness of
communication network. The audit examined the
operation process and system to comply with
internal control guideline and other related rules and
regulations, as well as providing advices and
recommendations to improve operation process for
each department to be more appropriate and
efficient according to international standard, along
with monitoring implementation of those
recommendations. The internal audit directly reports
to Audit Committee for the examination result, and
monitors progress of recommendations from
previous quarter.

Internal audit supervisor and the Company’s
operation compliance supervisor

The Audit Committee assigned Mrs. Marasri
Sophastienphong as Head of Internal Audit
Department since 2017 because of her over 20
years’ experience in operation of accounting,
financial and internal audit of similar business and
industry to the Company. She was trained for
relevant internal audit course and well-understood
the Company’s activities and business operation.
The committee agreed that she is well-fitting to
perform the aforementioned position. The
consideration and approval of assigning, demoting,
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and transferring a person holding the Internal Audit
Department Head position must be approved or
agreed by the Audit Committee.

The Company assigned Mr. Peeradon Poolpipat as
Head of Operation Compliance to supervise other
department in the Company to comply with the
authority regulation related to business operation of
the Company.
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1.1 Normal

and/or general practice of connected transaction
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Entity who may have Relationship Nature of Transaction
conflict of interests transaction amount (Million
Baht)
1. Bangkok Club Co., Ltd. A member Food & Beverage 0.57
of the Board of Directors | charge
is also director of
the Company.
2. TCC Hotel Asset Manage- | Director relates to the Meeting room charge, 1.38
ment Co., Ltd. major shareholder of the | Food & Beverage
company. charge
&, TCC Luxury Hotels & Director relates to the Meeting room charge 0.58
Resort Co., Ltd. major shareholder of the
company.
4. TCC Hotels Collection Co., | Shareholders relate to Meeting room charge 0.05
Ltd. the major shareholder of
the company.
5, Horeca Management Co., | Director relates to the Food & Beverage 0.1
Ltd. major shareholder of the | charge
company.
6. Tonic International Co., A member of the Board | Meeting room charge, 0.11
Ltd. of Directors is also Food & Beverage
director of the Company. | charge
7. Food of Asia Co., Ltd. Director relates to the Food & Beverage 0.11
major shareholder of the | charge
company.
8. TCC Technology Co., Ltd. | A member Computer rental fee, 5.16
of the Board of Directors | Program and computer
is also director of system, Internet fee
the Company.
9. Golden Land Property A member Staff accommodation 0.03
Development PLC of the Board of Directors
is also director of
the Company.
10. Southeast Capital Co., Ltd. | A member Car rental fee 1.11

of the Board of Directors
is also director of
the Company.
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Item Entity who may have Relationship Nature of Transaction
conflict of interests transaction amount (Million
Baht)
11. Big C Supercenter PLC Director relates to the Miscellaneous goods 0.57
major shareholder of the
company.
12. NCC Management & A member Activity funding 0.1
Development Co., Ltd. of the Board of Directors
is also director of
the Company.
13. TCC Assets (Thailand) A member Interior/architect 0.60
Co., Ltd. of the Board of Directors | consultant
is also director of
the Company.
14. North Sathorn Hotel Co., A member Room charge, Food & 0.17
Ltd. of the Executive Beverage charge
Management is also
director of the Company.
15. Fraser Suites River Valley | Director relates to the Room charge 0.17
Singapore Pte. Ltd major shareholder of the
company
16. Frasers Property A member Air ticket, and 0.24
Corporate Services Pte. of the Board of Directors | Accommodation
Ltd. is also director of charge
the Company.
17. Pacific Laser (Thailand) Director relates to the Air ticket, and 1.12
Co., Ltd major shareholder of the | Accommodation
company charge
18. Sathorn Supsin Co., Ltd. Director relates to the Room charge 0.78
major shareholder of the
company
19. Amarin Printing and Director relates to the Media and Publishing 0.18
Publishing PLC major shareholder of the
company
20. F&B International Co., Ltd. | A member Food & Beverage 0.35
of the Board of Directors | charge
is also director of
the Company.
21. Oishi Group PLC. Director relates to the Food & Beverage 0.0002
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2. Necessity and Reasonableness of Transactions

The above-mentioned connected transactions were carefully managed under the Company and shareholders most
beneficiary. All connected transactions of the Company are under normal course of business operation or deemed
necessary and reasonably support normal course of business in the best interest of the Company, and was
transacted at fair and reasonable prices with similar services and conditions generally applied to comparable type
of customers.

3. Measures or Procedures for Approving Connected Transactions

The Company sets the general commercial agreement of transactions among its subsidiaries, Board of Directors
and management or related persons taken into consideration potential connected transactions that may arise in
the future. Therefore, Board of Director has approved in principle to grant management an authority to approve
connected transactions which are in accordance with generally accepted commercial agreement with no conflict of
interest and influence exerted from the Board, management and related persons. The Company complies to
connected transaction principles according to guidelines and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

In case the Board of Director, executive committee and management have conflict of interest on connected
transactions, those stakeholders do not have an authority for approval. The Company will arrange for an independent
expert to give recommendation of those connected transactions to support the Committee, the Audit Committee or
shareholders’ decision making. The Company will disclose significant connected transactions in its notes to
audited financial statements.

4. Policy or Potential Connected Transaction in the Future

The Company has policy to govern existing and potential connected transaction among related parties based on
general market practices. The price of commercial agreement is set to be fair and comparable with the market
according to a prudential and transparent approval process under good corporate governance principle, company
regulation and corporate authority index applicable for approving connected transaction.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group has changed the accounting period from
1% January to 31% December of every year to the
period from 1% October to 30" September of the
following year, starting from the period ended 30"
September, 2018 onward. The statement of income
and statement of cash flows for the period ended
30th September, 2018 have been prepared under
this new accounting period, presented from 1°
January, 2018 to 30" September, 2018.

For the benefit of the users in comparing and
analyzing the financial information, the Group has
prepared the supplementary information in the form
of the consolidated and separate statements of
income and comprehensive income, cash flows and
segment information for the period from 1% January,
2017 to 30" September, 2017 in note 41.

1. Operating Results
1.1 Revenues
1.1.1 Rental and service revenue

In the period from 1% January to 30" September of
2017 and 2018, rental and services income were
Baht 1,043.3 million and Baht 1,150.9 million
respectively, representing an increase of 10.3
percent. Cost of rental and services for such periods
were Baht 317.4 million and Baht 343.5 million
respectively. This resulted in gross margin of 69.6
percent and 70.1 percent respectively.

The growth in rental and services revenue in such
periods, which were driven by higher demand in
factory and warehouse segments, increased 10.3
percent comparing with the same period of last year
owing to an increase in net new leases for both
factories and warehouses. The average of net new
leased area for factories and warehouse increased
16.9 percent.

1.1.2 Revenue from sales of properties to
property funds/trust

In 2017, there was no revenues from sales of
properties to TFUND, TLOGIS, TGROWTH and
TREIT due mainly to the sufficiency of the increase
of capital injection from selling of shares to FPHT for
business expansion. For the 9-month period in
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2018, the selling price of properties to TREIT was
Baht 1,693 million which was recorded in statement
of income amount of Baht 1,569.2 million, or 41.1
percent to the total revenues, and the rest of this
selling price was recorded as unearned land rental
income in the statement of financial position. In
2018, sales of properties to TREIT was according to
the condition of the conversion of the property funds
(TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH) into TREIT.

Sales of properties to TREIT freehold basis for both
land and factory/warehouse buildings were recorded
the whole amount as income from sales of
properties in the income statement. Meanwhile,
sales of properties to property funds/trust in
leasehold basis, such sale of land on leasehold
basis was recorded as unearned land rental income
in the balance sheet statement, which will be
realized as rental income throughout lease
agreements. The sales of factory/warehouse
buildings under leasehold arrangement were recorded
as income from sales of properties presented in the
income statement, according to TAS 17 (revised
2014) which defines the long-term leasing of
buildings as financial lease.

1.1.3 Revenue from sales of properties to other
parties

In addition to revenue from sales of properties to
funds and TREIT, the Company had revenue from
sales of properties to its tenants and/or other third
parties on an opportunistic basis. From 1st January
to 30th September, 2017 and 2018, the Company
made the revenue from selling land and factories/
warehouses to third party investors to the amount of
Baht 148.6 million and Baht 640.4 million
respectively.

As stated, revenue from sales of properties to the
tenants is on an opportunistic basis and depends on
the tenants’ decision to exercise their options to buy
as set forth in lease agreements. Gross margin of
such sales would vary by age, size, specification
and location of the properties. Sales of land are also
on an opportunistic basis and depend on agreed
pricing.

1.1.4 Income from and related to associated
companies (TREIT, SLP and TRA) and joint



ventures (TPARK BFTZ and JustCo)

1) Share of profit from investments in TREIT, SLP,
TRA, TPARK BFTZ and JustCo.

Share of profit from investments in TREIT, SLP,
TRA, TPARK BFTZ and JustCo depend on the
proportion of investment by TICON and its stake in
such investments.

From 1% January to 30" September of 2017 and
2018, share of profit from investments in associated
companies and joint ventures were respectively
Baht 173.6 million and Baht 195.6 million, increasing
by 12.7 percent, or Baht 22.0 million. This mainly
resulted from the TREIT’s higher occupancy rate of
factory/warehouse and increasing of investment in
TREIT by the Company.

2) Management income from property funds and
REIT

From 1% January to 30" September of 2017 and
2018, property management income and REIT
management income were Baht 146.3 million and
Baht 226.9 million respectively, increased by Baht
80.6 million, or 55.1 percent, mainly resulting from
the increase of REIT management income from
converting its investments in property funds (TFUND,
TLOGIS and TGROWTH) to TREIT in December
2017 which caused higher of the management fee
income, and commission fee income from finding
customers to TREIT.

3) Realized additional gain on sales of properties to
the funds/REIT

The Company may realize additional gain from
sales of properties to TREIT when these TREIT sell
such properties to a third party or when the
Company reduces its investments.

From 1% January to 30" September, 2018, realized
additional gain was Baht 2.7 million because TREIT
sold some of its land and factories to third parties.
However, the Company had no such sales of
properties to TREIT and no reduction of its
investments in the same period in 2017.

1.1.5 Other incomes

In addition to the income mentioned above, the
Company had other income as follows:
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1) Revenue from construction services

The Company generated this income from providing
construction or madification of factory and
warehouse services to its tenants. Normally, such
income is a minor part of total revenues.

2) Revenue from utility fees

The Company generated this income from providing
utilities for factory and warehouse for its tenants.

From 1% January to 30" September of 2017 and
2018, the income from utility fees was Baht 28.8
million and Baht 16.0 million respectively, decreased
by Baht 12.8 million, or 44.5 percent, mainly due to
transferring some of water and electricity meter to
the tenant to pay the utility fee by itself.

3) Other income

Most other income occurred from land and property
tax income amounting to Baht 51.8 million and
profit from sales of office in Shanghai amounting to
Baht 21.0 million.

From 1% January to 30" September of 2017 and
2018, other income was Baht 37.6 million and Baht
95.4 million respectively, increased by Baht 57.8
million, mainly due to changing accounting method
in recording of land and property income tax and
also profit from sales of office in Shanghai.

1.2 Expenses

1.2.1 Distribution costs and administrative
expense

From 1* January to 30" September of 2017 and
2018, distribution costs and administrative expenses
were Baht 550.2 million and Baht 795.4 million
respectively; an increase of 44.6 percent.

Majority of distribution costs and administrative
expenses were expenses related to employees,
depreciation of vacant factories/warehouses. These
expenses were calculated approximately to 61.3
percent and 53.4 percent of the total distribution
costs and administrative expenses in 2017 and
2018 respectively.

For the 9-month period of 2018, distribution costs
and administrative expenses were Baht 795.4
million; an increase of Baht 245.3 million, or 44.6
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percent higher compared to the same period of the
previous year arising from 1) the business growth
which effected 98.6 percent higher employee
expenses, and 2) changing accounting method in
recording of land and property income tax. However,
depreciation of vacant factories/warehouse
decreased resulted from increase of new tenants.

1.2.2 Finance costs

From 1% January to 30" September of 2017 and
2018, finance costs were Baht 445.5 million and
Baht 415.0 million respectively, representing a
decrease of 6.9 percent mainly due to payment of
matured debentures using proceeds from the new
capital injection in early 2017.

1.2.3 Unrealized gain on sales of properties

From 1% January to 30" September, 2018, unrealized
gain from sales of properties, recognized as the
proportion of the Company’s shareholding in TREIT,
was Baht 102.0 million which is shown in deduction
from the profit from sales of property to TREIT.
Meanwhile, there was no such transaction in the
same period of last year.

1.3 Profit
1.3.1 Gross profit

Gross profit margin from its operations in rental of
factories/warehouses from 1% January to 30"
September, 2017 and 2018 was 69.6 percent and
70.2 percent respectively, that was similar to the
same period in 2017.

From 1% January to 30" September of 2017 and
2018, gross profit margin from sales of properties
was 60.0 percent and 27.9 percent respectively,
decreased by 32.1 percent. This resulted from, in
2018, some part of sales of properties to TREIT was
sales of properties on leasehold basis. Additionally,
for the 9-month period of 2018, some of sales of
properties to third parties were sales of land only.

1.3.2 Net profit

From 1* January to 30" September, 2017 and 2018,
consolidated net profit of equity holder of the
company, calculated on the equity method, were
Baht 244.9 million and Baht 657.3 million respectively.
Earnings per share were Baht 0.14 and Baht 0.36
respectively.
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The increase of net profit owing mainly to increase
in profit from sales of properties, rental and related
service income and management fee income. The
increase of management fee income was mainly
from converting its investments in property funds
(TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH) to TREIT in
December 2017 as previously mentioned.

2. Statement of Financial Position

2.1 Assets

As of 30" September, 2018, total assets were Baht
42,999.1 million; 67.5 percent of which were
investment properties, 20.4 percent of which were
cash and cash equivalents, and 9.8 percent of which
were investments in associated companies and joint
ventures.

Total assets increased by Baht 2,016.8 million, or
4.9 percent, due mainly to an increase in cash and
cash equivalents.

2.1.1 Investment properties

Investment properties comprised properties under
development, properties available for lease, and
leased properties. Investment properties were Baht
31,526.2 million on 31* December, 2017 and Baht
29,038.4 million on 30" September, 2018.

As of 30" September, 2018, investment properties
decreased by Baht 2,487.7 million, or 7.9 percent,
compared to the ended 31* December 2017, due
mainly to (1) sales of investment properties to
TREIT and other parties in the 9-month period of
2018 and (2) the record of disposal groups classified
as held-for-sale in current assets.

2.1.2 Property, plant and equipment

As of 30" September, 2018, properties, plants and
equipment had decreased by Baht 30.5 million to
Baht 119.3 million, or by 20.4 percent, from 31
December, 2017 as mainly resulted from the sales
of office in Shanghai.

2.1.3 Cash and cash equivalents and Current in-
vestments

As of 30" September, 2018, cash and cash equivalent
and current investments were Baht 6,447.9 million;
an increase of Baht 3,828.2 million compared to 31
December, 2017. These consist of fixed deposit with



commercial banks (period from 3-12 months) and
certificate of deposit (period from 3-12 months)
which were a low-risk investment and deemed as an
alternative for financial management with higher
return than savings with commercial banks. Cash
and current investment are planned to invest in the
business expansion in early of 2019.

2.1.4 Trade accounts receivable-net

As of 30" September, 2018, trade accounts
receivable (net) was Baht 72.8 million, or increased
by Baht 11.2 million due mainly to an increase of
unbilled operating leases receivable of Baht 8.8
million.

To mitigate credit risk of the tenants and potential
breach of agreement, the Company has a policy to
hold security deposits equating to three to six
months of rental and monthly service fee.

2.1.5 Other current liabilities

As of 31% December, 2017, there was a capital
reduction from converted property funds (TFUND,
TLOGIS and TGROWTH) to TREIT in late December
last year of Baht 544 million, recorded in other

Unit : Million Baht

COMPANY NAME TYPE OF COMPANY'S

OWNERSHIP
RELATIONSHIP INTEREST
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current liabilities account. There was no such
transaction in the same period of 2018.

2.1.6 Dividends receivables

As of 31% December, 2017, there were dividends
receivables from converted property funds (TFUND,
TLOGIS and TGROWTH) to TREIT in late December
2017 of Baht 328.1 million. There was no such
transaction in the same period of 2018.

2.1.7 Disposal groups classified as held-for-sale

As of 30" September, 2018, investment properties
to be sold to TREIT by December 2018 were recorded
in current assets amounting to Baht 1,000.7 million.
There was no such transaction in the same period
of 2017.

2.1.8 Investments in subsidiary/associates/joint
ventures

As of 30" September, 2018, investments in
subsidiaries, associated companies and joint
ventures were as follows:

INVESTMENT  INVESTMENT
UNDER TO TOTAL

INVESTMENT INVESTMENT INVESTMENT
UNDER EQUITY TO AFTER NET
CONSOLIDATED ALLOWANCE

ASSETS (%) FOR

COST-NET ASSETS METHOD
METHOD (%)

IMPAIRMENT

1. INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY
1.1 ECO Industrial Services Company Limited Subsidiary 99.99% 12.50 0.03% - - -
1.2 TICON Logistics Park Company Limited Subsidiary 99.99% 11,515.00 27.15% = = =
1.3 Shanghai TICON Investment Manage-

Subsidiary 100.00% 65.39 0.15% - - -
ment Company Limited
1.4 TICON Management Company Limited Subsidiary 69.99% 7.00 0.02% - - -
1.5 TICON (HK) Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 575.08 1.36% - - -
1.6 TICON International Pte. Ltd. Subsidiary 100.00% 5,740.49 13.53% - - -
1.7 TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real

Associate 23.43% 6,033.61 14.23% 3,524.94 8.20% -
Estate Investment Trust
1.8 PT SLP Surya TICON Internusa Associate 25.00% 414.16 0.98% 354.65 0.82% -
1.9 TRA Land Development Company Limited Associate 50.00% 0.50 0.001% 0.32 0.0007% -
1.10 TICON Demco Power 6 Company Limited Joint venture 51.00% 2.55 0.01% 2.90 0.01% -
1.11 TICON Demco Power 11 Company

Joint venture 51.00% 2.04 0.005% 2.37 0.01% -

Limited
1.12 TPARK BFTZ Company Limited Joint venture 59.99% 210.00 0.50% 211.18 0.49% -
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COMPANY NAME

TYPE OF COMPANY'S

OWNERSHIP

INVESTMENT  INVESTMENT INVESTMENT INVESTMENT INVESTMENT

RELATIONSHIP INTEREST UNDER TO TOTAL UNDER EQUITY TO AFTER NET
COST-NET ASSETS METHOD CONSOLIDATED ALLOWANCE
METHOD (%) ASSETS (%) FOR
IMPAIRMENT
2. DATA CENTRE
2.1 TICON Technology Company Limited Subsidiary 99.99% 1.00 0.002%
3. SMART SOLUTION
3.1 JustCo (Thailand) Company Limited Joint venture 51.00% 108.89 0.26% 110.87 0.26%
4. OTHER
4.1 The Bangkok Club Related company 0.11% 0.26

2.1.9 Prepaid land rental

As of 30" September, 2018, prepaid rental expenses
were Baht 629.0 million, a decrease of Baht 24.5
million from the end of 2017. Prepaid land rental are
long-term leases of land for warehouse development
which will be gradually realized as expenses in
profit and loss statement throughout the lease terms.

2.1.10 Deferred tax assets

As of 30" September, 2018, the Company had
deferred tax assets of Baht 197.4 million, an
increase of Baht 15.0 million. This was mainly due
to the deferred tax of unrealized gain on sales of
properties to TREIT in August 2018.

2.2 Liabilities

As of 30" September, 2018, total liabilities were
Baht 17,618.8 million, an increase of Baht 1,579.6
million, or 9.8 percent from 31" December 2017.

Majority of the Company’s total liabilities was
external loans which represented 85.0 percent of
total liabilities. The increase in total liabilities
resulted from;

2.2.1 Loans

Total loans as of 30" September, 2018, were Baht
14,980.5 million, an increase of Baht 1,660.5 million,
or 12.5 percent compared to that of 31" December
2017. This was mainly due to the debenture
issuance in the early of 2018 to support the Company’
s investment plan in the future and the appropriate
of interest rate of issuing debenture in that period.

As of 30" September, 2018, the Company’s
remaining of debentures were Baht 14,220 million
with the maturity period from 3 to 10 years.
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The major covenant of existing loan and debenture
is to maintain debt/interest-bearing debt to equity
not exceeding 2.5-3.0 times. The Company has
never breached the said covenant.

2.2.2 Trade accounts payable

As of 30" September, 2018, trade accounts
payable were Baht 99.0 million, an increase of Baht
5.4 million, or 5.8 percent compared to 31 December
of the previous year. Almost all of trade payables
were related to construction cost.

2.2.3 Income tax payable

As of 30" September, 2018, corporate income tax
payable was Baht 3.6 million, a decrease of Baht 0.8
million compared to 31% December, 2017, resulting
from lower net profit of the Company’s subsidiaries.

2.2.4 Provision related to sales of properties

As of 30" September, 2018, the Company had
provision related to sales of properties amounting to
Baht 24.2 million resulting from the minimum
revenue guarantee of the sales of properties to
TREIT in August 2018.

2.2.5 Non-current provisions for employee
benefit

As of 30" September, 2018, the Company recorded
Baht 40.0 million under long-term employee
benefits, estimated based on the Company’s
obligations to pay for retirement compensation.

The Company has adopted TAS19 - Employee
Benefits since 2011, and hence has recorded an
accumulative amount of benefits until the end of 2010
as liability, and has since recorded provision for
employee benefits incurred each year as expenses.



2.2.6 Unearned land rental income

As of 30" September, 2018, the company had
unearned land rental income of Baht 1,400.9 million,
resulting from leasing of land for a period of 28-30
years to TGROWTH and TREIT in 2013 and 2018,
respectively. The rental income was realized in the
income statement on a straight-line basis throughout
the lease term period.

2.2.7 Deferred tax liabilities

As of 30" September, 2018, deferred tax liabilities
were Baht 264.2 million, an increase of Baht 35.0
million, most of which resulting from the difference in
tax calculation between accounting basis and tax
basis on the revenue from leasing of warehouse
buildings to TREIT in August 2018.

2.3 Shareholders’ equity

As of 30" September, 2018, total shareholders’
equity was Baht 25,380.3 million, an increase of
Baht 446.0 million, or 1.8 percent from increasing of
retained earnings.

2.4 Appropriateness of the Company’s capital
structure

The primary objective of the Company’s capital
management is to ensure an appropriate capital
structure that can facilitate its business and
maximize shareholder value.

In the past, the Company used operating cash flow,
shareholders’ capital injection, and loans from financial
institutions as main sources of funds for factories
and warehouses development. Over the last 10
years, the Company also raised funds from sale of
properties to TFUND in 2005, TLOGIS in 2009,
TGROWTH in 2013 and TREIT in 2014. Proceeds
from sales of properties to these property funds
have reduced reliance on borrowings and capital
increases which had higher costs. Nevertheless,
TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH have already
been converted to TREIT in December 2017.

The Company also issued debentures with tenors of
3-10 years in order to diversify its source of funds.
Debenture is typically cheaper than long-term loans
from financial institutions.

2.5 Liquidity

From 1% January to 30th September, 2018, the
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Company had net cash flow from its operating
activity of Baht 3,107.6 million, net cash flow from
investing activity of Baht 282.2 million and net cash
flow from financing activity of Baht 1,024.9 million.

The Company had more liquidity compare to 2017
(revised version). The Company views that the
current ratio is not appropriate to measure the
Company’s liquidity because the Company has no
inventory. Most of the Company’s assets are lands
and buildings under non-current assets while land
acquisition payables and construction cost payables
were recorded as current liabilities. This resulted in
low current ratio.

As of 30" September, 2018, the Company had an
interest-bearing debt to equity ratio calculated from

(Loans and borrowings +
Liability under financial lease)

Total shareholders’ equity

equal to 0.59 times, which rose from 0.53 times in
2017. nterest-bearing debt (net) equal to 0.34 times,
or an, which decreased from 0.43 times in 2017.
This was resulting from issuing of debentures in the
early of 2018 due to the appropriate interest rate at
that time, and some debentures were redeemed at
their maturity. The proceeds had been used for the
business expansion. The low interest-bearing
liabilities to equity ratio is an opportunity for the
Company to capitalize on strong equity for future
business expansion.

As of 30" September, 2018, there was an interest
coverage ratio which was calculated from:

(Net profit + Interest expenses +
Corporate income tax
+ Deferred gain on sales of properties
to associated companies)

Interest expenses

The Company had interest coverage ratio of 2.93
times, which increase from 1.83 times in 2017 due
to an increase of net profit from sales of properties
to TREIT in 2018. This reflects the Company’s
strong ability to pay financial costs. The Company
has never defaulted on interest payment.

As of 30" September, 2018, there was a debt
service coverage ratio which was calculated from:
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(Net cash flows from operating activities +
Interest expenses)

(Repayment of long-term loans and debentures
+ Dividends + Interest expenses)

The Company’s debt service coverage ratio was
0.75 times, which increased from 0.2 times in 2017
due to an increase of net profit from sales of properties
to TREIT in 2018, showing the improvement of the
Company’s debt service coverage.

3. Future Prospects

Direction of Thailand Property Industry has been
growing relatively to the GDP growth of Thai
economy, mainly driven by the recovery of global
economy and higher investment in Asia, leading to
a positive economic outlook in Thailand over the
year which is projected to expand according to
target, with domestic interest rates remaining low
and export sector on the rise. While forward looking
trend over the next year, Thailand is foreseen to be
promising with positive factors from government
infrastructure investment project which serves as a
catalyst for accelerating an economic growth,
especially the Eastern Economic Corridor Project or
“EEC” posting a bright prospect after the Eastern
Special Development Zone Act B.E. 2561 took
effect, alongside the government incentivized
benefit scheme to draw foreign direct investment
(FDI); altogether raising investor confidence and
attracting greater investment to the country. These
positive factors are expected to drive demand for
factory and warehouse spaces, coupled with
Thailand 4.0 economic model that fosters
digitization across key industrial sectors, the year
2019 will be a transition to ride out the new cycle of
sustainable growth.

In the past year, we have prepared for the rising
dynamics of Industrialization 4.0 through investing
on the new global-trend industries under the
roadmap to be number one in “Smart Industrial
Platform” with “Total Dimension” strategy execution
to enhance competitiveness, by focusing on customer
needs, optimizing products and services to address
changing preferences, utilizing new technology and
innovation as well as adopting an international
standard and operating process to maximize overall
efficiency.In 2019, Thailand economic outlook is on
the rising trend and TICON will continuously invest
to expand strategic projects locally, in CLMV and in
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ASEAN. Based on the strong position, TICON
remainsfinancially healthy with a robust funding
mechanism from TREIT, which serves as TICON'’s
strategicfinancing vehicle to expand and invest in
the long run. We aim to support TREIT in sourcing
for high quality asset in order to generate good
return to the unitholders and at the same time attract
new investors from both local and abroad.

Moving forward, TICON will expand its portfolio to
an “Integrated Platform” by strategic partnership
model with a strong business network to generate
new sources of income and add value to the current
business for “Industrial Property” which utilizes
advanced technology to improve infrastructure,
service quality and bringing more variety to product
offerings. Now TICON is ready to support the “New
S-Curve” industries with proper functionalities and
up-to-date technologies. The new investment is
categorized into “Data Centre” and “Smart Solution”
business, together with the current “Industrial
Property”, altogether TICON 3 major business seg-
ments will support each other and promote for a
sustainable growth:

¢ For Industrial Property, TICON implements “Asset
Enhancement Initiatives” or “AEls” to improve
current asset quality and enhance utilization by
bringing in new technologies such as automation,
smart factory and smart warehouse to add value to
the facilities and services, with a sustainable drive
towards green industry platform

 For Data Centre, TICON has jointly invest with “ST
Telemedia Global Data Centre” or “STT GDC”, the
world leading data centre provider from Singapore.
STT GDC has many years of expertise in
international level. We plan to build the first
large-scale data centre in the heart of Bangkok with
highest regard to stability and security under a
scaled-up architecture to cope with demands from
large enterprises domestically and internationally.

* For Smart Solution, TICON has created a new
business model following “Digital Disruption” trend.
This segment of business will increase TICON
capability to be a “Total Solution Provider”. TICON
has joined force with “JustCo”, ASEAN largest
premium co-working space provider; with the first
co-working office opened for service at AIA Sathorn
Tower, and the second branch at Capital Tower All
Season Place, with more locations planned over this
coming year.



Annual Report 2018

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities Concerning the
Company’s Financial Report

The TICON’s Board of Directors had the management prepare financial statements to reveal the Company’s finan-
cial position and operating results of the year 2018 in accordance with the Public Limited Companies Act B.E.
2535. (A.D. 1992)

The Board of Directors is well aware of its duties and responsibilities as the directors of a listed company in the
Stock Exchange of Thailand to ensure that TICON’s financial statements are accurate, complete, and transparent
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, while providing adequate information to safeguard the
Company’s assets from unlawful conduct and abnormalities which is for the benefit of shareholders and investors
to have true and fair information.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the consolidated financial statements of TICON and Subsidiaries for
the year 2018 reviewed by the Audit Committee in collaboration with the Management and the external auditor,
KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd., were presented in a complete, true and fair manner in compliance with the general-
ly accepted accounting principles and all governing rules and regulations, with appropriate and consistent account-
ing policies and adequate information disclosure.

/

e

N

(Mr. Chainoi Puankosoom)
Chairman of the Board
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited
Opinion

I have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of TICON Industrial Connection Public
Company Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and of TICON Industrial Connection Public Company
Limited {the “Company™), respectively, which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial
position as at 30 September 2018, the consolidated and separate statements of income and comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018, and notes,
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In my opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Group and the Company, respectively, as at 30 September 2018 and their
financial performance and cash flows for the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018 in accordance
with Thai Financial Reporting Standards {TFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statemenis section of my report. I am independent of the Group and the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions that
is relevant to my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, and I have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe that the audit evidence | have obfained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audii Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my audit
of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming my
opinion thereon, and [ do not provide a separate opinion on these matlers. g
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Classification of investments in associate

Refer to Notes 4 and 11 to the consolidated and separate financial statements.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in the andit

The Group had changed its proportionate of
investment as well a8 retarn from the REIT.

The classification of mvestment requires
management’s judgment on power, retum and
linkage between power and return. Consequently,
this is an area of focus in my awdit.

The andit procedures in this area included the

followings:

» assessing the process
classification of the Group.

« assessing whether an investor has control over
an investee by evaluate whether investor has
power or has rights to returns from ils
involvement with the mvestee,

» assessing the legal documents associated with
investment.

s gvaluating the adequacy of disclosures of the
financial statements in accordance with Thai
Financial Reporting Standards.

of  investment

Valuation of investment pm]irerties

Refer to Notes 3 and14 to the consolidated and separate financial statements.

The key andit matier

How the matter was addressed in the andit

The investment properties were located in highly
competitive areas, which affects the occupancy rate
and rental rate of cach investment properties, This
may impact to a decline in its recoverable amount
and derive from the expectation.

The recoverable amount of the investment
properties involves the management’s judgements
to evaluate the results of external expert engaged
by the Group. Such estimation is subject to the
related assumptions, therefore, this is an arca of
focus in my audit,

The audit procedurcs in this area included the

followings:

« paining and understanding of the process of
impaimment assessment and evalvating the
reasonableness of impairment indicator.

= aining and understanding of the process and
valuation methods of investment properties
including  assessing the independence,
competency, professional qualifications and
experience of the external expert.

+ testing the accuracy of the calculation of the
recoverable amount of the assets and consulted

with KPMG valuation specialist when
considering the appropriateness of key
assumptions used by the Group.

e performing an observation of investment
properties, on a sampling basis as well as

examining the relevant documents.

s evaluating the adequacy of disclosures of the
financial statements in accordance with Thai
Financial Reporting Standards. 4
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ther Matier

The Group and the Company changed its financial year end from 31 December to 30 September as described
in note 2(e). Conscquently, the consclidated and separate statement of income and comprehensive income,
changes in equity, and cash flows for accounting period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018 comprise
only nine months whereas the comparative information for the year ended 31 December 2017 is information
of twelve months, which were andited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 19 Febroary 2018, which results in the periods presented being not comparable. Therefore,
supplementary information in note 40 has been prepared by the Group and the Company as additional
information in the form of unaudited consolidated and separate statement of income and comprehensive
income, cash flows, and sexment information for the period from 1 January 2017 to 30 September 2017. 1
have not audited the supplementary information and do not express any audit opinion on such information.

Other Informeation

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements and my
auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to me after the date of this auditor's
report.

My opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and I
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, my responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or my knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements in accordance with TFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or emror.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, maagement is responsible for assessing the
Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group and the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's and the Company’s financial

reporting process. A
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemenis

My cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with TSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from frand or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with TSAs, 1 exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform avdit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficicnt and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Ohbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 1o design andit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s and the Company’s internal control.

s  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the andit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 1 am required to draw attenlion in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated and separale [inancial statements or, if such disclosures arc
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to
cease 10 continue as a going coneern,

s Hvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

& Obtain sufficient appropriate andit evidence regarding the financial information of the entitics or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated (inancial staterments. I am responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit
opinion.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matiers, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement thal 1 have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 4
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, I determine that a
matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

.. Vt—

(Patamavan Vadhanakul)
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 9832

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.
Bangkok
19 November 2018

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform

120




THCON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of financial poail.iun

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Current investments

Trade accounts receivable

Oiher receivables

Short-lerm loans to related parties

Current portion of financial lease receivables

Dividend reccivables

Withholding tax deducied at source
Oither current assets

Disposal groups classificd as held for salc

Total current assefs

Non-current assely

Restricted deposits af finaacial institutica
Investments in associates

Investmenis in subsidiaries

Invoatmenis in joint venres

Invesiment in related party

Financial lease receivables

Unbilled operating lenses receivables
Long-torm loans to related parties

Investment propertics under development ard

availahle for rentfsale
Invesimenl properties for rent
Froperty, plant and equipment
intangible asseis
Defirred tax assets
Withholding tax deducied al source
PFrepaid land rental
Other non-current assets

Tatal aon-covrent assets

Total asseis

Nove

43

4.7
4.8

I

H
12
if

M (a)
14(8)
16
17
i8

13
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Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 September 31 Decamber 30 September 31 December
2018 2007 2018 217
{irr thewsand Babi)
5,932,966 1,318,173 3,741,093 1,395,514
514,962 1,101,562 450,000 1,080,000
72 808 61,580 14,967 8816
199,073 38 B0Y 4% 490 645,941
143,663 144 B55 . s
16,480 15,779 - g
g 328,117 = 328,117
- 2,038 - -
08,057 43,203 3,300 5,551
1,000,663 E SRY9.957 "
7,948,672 3,904,204 6,547,812 3,463,939
240 240 - -
3,879,917 3,633,607 204,859 06,856
i 5 17,916,457 17,626,397
327321 215.002 103,885 =
257 257 257 257
ARA087 295,152 - -
169,073 145,069 14,211 7841
- - 10,703,500 12,658,500
14,487,361 16,605,408 4,521,659 5,194,750
14,551,072 14,920,772 1,957,841 2,321,772
119,312 149,818 9,694 12471
26,191 11,1455 14,898 6,280
197,395 182,363 - )
343,076 242 451 92312 76,992
628,950 653,400 - -
37.149 23 386 20,703 15,268
35,050,401 37,078,110 35,565,276 38,127,484
42999073 40,982,314 42,413,088 41,591,423
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of financial position

Consolidated Separate
Mnancial statements financial statements
30 September 31 Decomber 30 September 31 Docomber
Liabilities and equity Nate 2018 2017 2018 2017
{in thousand Bahi)

Current linbilities
Trade accounts payable 21 99,011 93,572 24, 32% 19,631
Other payabies £ 22 280020 PIR195 188,405 214819
Current portion of long term loan from

financial institution 19 126,749 - - -
Current portion of finance lease liabilities 19 235 1628 - =
Current portion of debentures 18, 20 1,600,000 4, 100, 000 1,600 000 4,100 (00
Income tax payable 1614 4,428 - -
Current portion of uneamed land rental income 4 55,803 50,194 12,749 18,235
Other current liabilities 4 11 138,501 408,163 17,412 20,763
Liabilitics included in disposal proups

classificd as held for sale I 47,284 - 30,758 -
Total current liabilities 2,351,217 4,896,152 1,873,712 4,373,448
Mow-current Babilities
Long term loan from financial institution i9 633,747 - - o
Financial lease labilities 9 - 202 = =
Debentures 19, 20 12,620,000 9,220,000 12,620,000 9,220,000
Delerred wx linbilities i8 264,189 229 144 168,078 148 464
Mon-current provisions for employee benefit 23 40,000 10,566 23,260 25,620
Customer depozits 364 587 400,374 123,977 136,460
Uncamed land rental income 4 1,345,049 1,262,604 314,799 379,370
Total non-current liabilitics 15,267,572 11,151,890 13,250,114 9,909,514
‘Total liaghilities 17,618,789 16,048,072 15,123,826 14,283,362
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TICON Indusirial Connection Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of financial position

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 Ecptember 31 Deccmber 30 September 31 December
Liabilitics and equity Nose 2018 w7 2N 2017
(in thausand Bakt)
Equity
Share capital 24
Authorised share capital 21,751,214 2,751,214 2,751,214 2,751,214
Issued and paid-up share capital 1,834,142 1,834,142 1,834,142 1,834, 142
Premium on ardinary shares 24 19,838,380 1% 838,380 19,838 380 19,838,380
Retained earnings
Appropriated
Logal reserve 25, 24 275,121 273,738 275,121 213138
Linapproprinted 3,441 884 2569, 584 5341610 5361801
Cher components of equity 25 (23,201) 10,447 - -
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 25,366,326 24,926,291 27,289,262 27,308,061
Mon-controlling interesis iz 13,058 7,051 . -
Total equity 25,380,284 24,934,242 27,289,262 27.308,001
Total Kiabilities and equity 42999073 40982314 42413088 41591423
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of income

Eevenune

Rental and related service revenuc
Revenys from rendering of services
Tevenue from sales of propertics
Utilities revenue

Management fee income from associates
Dividend income

Interest income

Fealised gain on sales of properties
Other income

Total revenue

Expenses

Cost of rental and related services
Cast of rendoring of services
Cost of salcs of proportics
Utilities costs

Distnbution costs

Adminisirative expenses
Depreciation

Finance costs

Total cxpenses

Share of profils of associates and
Joint venfures

Unrealised gaing on sales of
properiies to associates

Profit before income tax expense

Tneome tux inemme (expenses)

PBrofit for the period / vear

Frofit attributable to:
Onwners of the parent
Mog-controlling interssis

FProfat for the period / vear

Hasie carnings per share fin Sahi}
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Hi
4,27

I

1w,

37

13

33

Copsolidated foancial stalecments

Scparale financial stalements

For the For the
period from For the period from For the
1 January 2018 year ended 1 January 20158 year ended
to 3 September 31 December to 30 September 31 December
A01E 2007 JiH L0107
{in thousamnd Raht)
1,150,863 1,372,603 295 804 357,055
55 5%1 80,843 22385 29,349
2,209,565 194,354 503,196 166,358
15,984 36,504 4,708 7,120
226,857 239,153 141,916
- .z 55,800 2,772,540
50,286 103,246 450752 504,082
2,693 48,302 - -
95,384 60,004 138,360 61,065
3,817,253 2,135,143 1,480,074 4,033,585
33,530 400,829 52,277 59,283
42,308 55,657 19,053 0,578
1,593,529 77,269 419,063 73,747
11,432 31,933 3,554 5,602
32,058 36,228 10,266 9379
Gl2973 530,934 330448 J10,780
150,407 219,443 45,367 69,552
414,952 370,914 199,721 580,787
3,201,186 1,933,203 1,285,729 1,129,658
195,564 275416 - =
{102,005) . . -
T09.626 477356 194,345 2,903,927
(41,963) 5,045 (29,7300 43,664
66T, Gihd 482401 164,615 2,047,501
657,349 A80,0046 164,615 2,047,501
10,315 2,393 “ -
667,664 482 401 164,615 2,947,591
.26 0.27 009 1.63
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of comprehensive income

Profit for the period / year

(ther comprehensive ineome

Ttem thad will be reclossified
subsegquently fo profit or loss

Exchange differences on translating
forelgn operations

Total item that will be reclassified

subsequently Lo profit or loss

Trems that will not be reclassifTed
subseguently to profit or loss

(ain on measurement of defined benefilt plan

Income tax relating o item that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

Total items that will not be reclassitied
ta profit or loss

Oher comprebensive ineome for
the period f vear, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for

the perind / vear

Total comprehensive income attributable fo:
Owners of the parent
MNon-comtrolling interests

Total eomprebensive ineome for
the period { year

)

13

Consolidated financial statements Separate hinancial statements
Far the period For the period
from For the yvear from For the year
§ lanuary 2015 cnded 1 January 2018 ended
tor 30 September 31 December to 30 Septamber 31 December
2018 27T 2018 207
{in thousand Baht)
667,664 482,411 164,615 2,047,591
{33,648) {57,500} - -
{33.648) {57,500y - -
- 10,504 - 6,054
- 2,101y - (1,211)
— 8,403 . 4343
{33,648} (49,097) - 4,843
634,016 433304 164,615 2,952,434
623,701 430,909 164,615 2,952,434
10,315 2,393 - -
634,016 433,304 164,615 1,95;&35"
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TICON Industrial Coanection Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of cash flows
Consatidaied Bepirale
fisancial statements financinl statements
For the period For the period
from from
1 Janamary TS Fo the ez [ Jamesary 2018 o the year
10 30 Sepramber  ended 31 Degemsber 1o 20 September ended 31 December
2018 i 2018 2017
{in thousand Bahy)
Ot fTows fronn aperatlug aceleliler
Prodit for the penicd / year 567,564 82 401 164 615 3,547,501
Adfustmeerds bo reconcile peafit B owli reveipts (prpmants)
T (i ncname) expenss 41,962 (5,045) 29,730 (43,6643
Finance costs 414,952 5514 399,721 580, TR
Deprecuation end amoriisation A BTT 530,674 78491 108,955
Tmpadrment loss on mvédtment properies 20,195 L34R 15325 2,548
Impairment loss on invesmeant in sobsidiary - = 6430 13,563
{Risversal off) non-curmenl prosisions lor emplayee bensfit Laga 8186 {1.212) 4519
Prorvision ralated b sales of properiics 0,532 = 2 5
Cost of mles of propertics 1 AFT 853 72913 2 530 59538
Recogmition of urwamed kaod renial ineeme {146,501) (54,384) (T005T) (21,0443
Roceguition of propid land reatal 27,004 0,792 i e
Share of profits of associates and jrint vermares, met of tax {195,564 {275,418} -
‘Bad and deubtfl debis expense - K10 - T2
Writz-afi withholding tax dedueted at sowrce 4 682 1,138 - 1,046
Healised gain on sales of properties (2693} (48,202) -
Unrealiced pains an sales of propertiss o asseciales 102,005 - -
{Crain) loss on disposa] ol buibding ind equipment {20.975) g {1,341 {1,089
Ciain on sales of investments in associanes - {5,029 {6.408)
Interest income {60,285) (103,2a5) {458,752 (504,082)
Divideands incomes e - {55,899 (2,772,640}
4775269 1,205,936 10, 580 380,722
Chommgies in Opereling aneels and [abiies
Trade accounts receivables and usbdlled operaling
lzases receivables {33479 {5.026) HLTIT (2,500
(her recsivables (51,130) {63,969) {237, T28) 35,593
Financial leass raceivables 11,364 {32,397} =
(iher current assets. [24,824) 102,395 2,351 {1746}
Oiher non-coment assety (11363 ) 15,3353 121
Trde sccounts payalde T 231 - -
Ot payables 73608 28577 5,600 36,568
Frovisions (2.586) . -
Oither curront liakilities (293 878) JEH2] {3,351) 2 B63
Emgioyes benelit paid {1,14%) {114) {1,148) (57
Cistomer deposis 11497 AT 18,274 1,266
Urearn Land réatal income 4 A58 M - =
Hechange differences on tranalating Forcign operations 49046 {704} -
et cush generated Gom operting 2 0w 305 1,585,899 266,524 dsd 410
Taxes paid (126012 £64,158} {25 434} {30,581
Mel ensh from operating sctivities L.563,293 1.521.741 241,085 423809
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of cush Mows

Caske florwes fram investing eetivitles

Decrense {(increnss) in clrment imestments

Proceeds fom disposal of investment in associates

Increass in invislaments i assnciile

Decrease (incrasie) in investmeris in subsfdianies

Inzresse in imvesfments m ot venbures

Proceeds fom repayment of short-lerm loen fo related party

Paymment for shoet-term loan 1o relared pany

Procesds from repayment of long-term loan to related party

Payment for long-term Loan to related party

Procends fram capital redluction

Acquisition of investment progerties under development
end nvailable for remt/sale

Procesds lrom sales of bublding and equeipmeni

Acquizitions of praperty, plant and equipment

Acquisitions of intongible assets

Interesd roceived from subsidinnies

Dhiviclends recaived

Interest received

Met cash from (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from fimancing activiiies

Procesds from ssee of shares.

Roegayment in short-terem boans

Repayment of short-term loans from reladed party
Repayment of leng-term loans from releted pany
Proceeds froom long-terr loan

Repayments of long-termn laans

Proceeds from debentures

Bedemplions of debeniures

Mividends paid to avwner of the Company
Enterest paid

Nt cash from financing sctivites

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cush aned eash equivelenis af the beginning of the pereed | vepr
Cash and cash equivalenis ai the ending ol the periad / year

Annual Report 2018

Comsoliduied Sepnrule
financial statemcnis financial stalcments
For the peniod For the pened
Tram Faor the: year from Fuw the year
1 January 2018 ended 31 Decamber 1 Januasy 2014 ended 11 Dacember
o M Seplember 07 e M Scplember 07
{im thoveand Bakn)
TEGG00 (1,079 418 630,000 [ 1.080,000
75,528 - 75528
{437 1643) (1.734,716) (1,734, 716)
(2301) TRTS BT
{108 885} (200 4000 {108, B83) -
- 20,400 - -
{71 R g
- - 2AT0, 000 240,000
- . (515,000 (12,181 ,5000
349,251 1923 A4, 131 1923
(478 522} (1,256,811 (31,773 {X3,178)
53 pbt 1,304 1,034 1,343
{5,452} (11,593 (2,029 4917
{16, 084) {B423) (®008) (5085}
- - A14, 667 433,500
526 350 ELE Rk 84 016 2 444 373
36,817 10227 41,646 69456
816,573 (3,818,001} 3,813,683 (3,886 471)
- 13,298 000 = 12,230,000
= {2 030 000 . (2050, 000)
3 (1,065,000} 11,060,000}
& {783,768} N
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(a)

These notes form an integral part of the interim financial statements.

The financial statements issued for Thai regulatory reporting purposes are prepared in the Thai
language. These English language financial statements have been prepared from the Thai language
financial statements, and were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
19 Movember 2018,

General information

TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited, the “Company™ is incorporated in Thailand
and has its registered ofTice at No. 175, 13/1* Floor, Sathorn City Tower, South Sathorn Road, Bangkok.

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand on 13 June 2002,

The uliimate parent company during the financial period was TCC Assets Limited, which was incorporated in
British Virgin Islands, United Kingdom.

The Company’s major shareholders during the financial period were Frasers Assets Company Limited
(48.52% sharcholding) and Frasers Property Holdings (Thailand) Company Limited (40.95%
shareholding). Both were incorporated in Thailand.

On 23 March 2018, at the extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders of Rojana Industrial Park
Public Company Limited, the resolution was passed to approve the sale of all shares held m the
Company totalling 478,699,619 shares, representing 26.10% of total issued and paid up shares capital
of the Company at the price of Baht 17,90 per share to Fraser Asset Company Limited.

In addition, on 4 April 2018, Fraser Asset Company Limited summited the tender offer to the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, which intended to acquire all ordinary shares of the Company totalling
1,355,442 756 shares, at tender offer price of Baht 17.90 per share. The ordinary shares totalling
411,153,659 share were acquired after the tender offer expired on 17 May 2018, representing 22.42%
of total issued and paid up shares capital of the Company.

As a result, Fraser Asset Company Limited had 48.52% sharcholding of the Company. The Company
registered the change of its sharcholders’ list during the year 2018,

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries, the “Group™, ar¢ industrial real estaie
development business, which comprises the development of factories and warehouses, mainly for rent
and occasionally for sale, and the provision of service related to rental business.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS);
guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions (“FAP™); and applicable rules and
regulations of the Thai Securities and Exchange Commission.

The FAP has issued new and revised TFRS effective for annual accounting period beginning on or afler
1 January 2018. The initial application of these new and revised TFRS has resulted in changes in certain
of the Group accounting policies. These changes have no material effect on the financial statements.
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(&)

(d}

In addition to the above new and revised TFRS, the FAP has issued a number of new and revised TFRS
which are not yet effective for current periods. The Group has not early adopted these standards in
preparing these financial statements. Those new and revised TFRS that are relevant to the Group's
operations are disclosed in note 38,

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for defined benefit
obligation, which have been measured at their present value as explained in note 3(n).

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are prepared and presented in Thai Baht, which is the Company’s functional
CUrTEncy.

Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilitics, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
eslimates are recognised prospectively.

(1) Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following note:

Nate 11 Classification of investments in associates and joint ventures
Note 19 Leases: whether an arrangement containing a lease

(i)} Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumption and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the
following noics:

Note 10 Determining the fair value of less cost to sell of the disposal group on the basis of
significant unobservable mpuls;

Note 14 Impairment test: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts:

Note |18  Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable pmf' t against which tax
losses carried forward can be used;

Note 23 Measurement of defined benefit ubhgatians: key actuarial assumptions
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fe)

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This
includes a valuation team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial officer.

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third
party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the
valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to suppaort the conclusion that these
valuations meel the requirements of TFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the
valuations should be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Group’s Audit Committee.

‘When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inpuis
used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

» [evel 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
imputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be categorised in different levels
of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hicrarchy as the lowest level input that is significant (o the entire measurement.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

* Note 14 Investment properties; and
» Note 35 Financial instrument.

Change in accounting period

At the annual general meeting of the sharchelders of the Company held on 27 March 2018, the
shareholders approved the amendment of the Articles of Association of the Company regarding the
change of accounting period from starting from 1 January and ending 31 December to be starting from
1 October and ending 30 September. The Company completed the registration with Department of
Business Development, Ministry of Commerce and obtained an approval from Revenue Department for
this change, which has an effect on the Company’s first change of accounting period of the Company
ended 30 September 2018, Consequently, the consolidated and separate statement of income and
comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for accounting period from | January 2018 to
30 September 2018 comprise only nine months whereas the comparative information for the vear ended
31 December 2017 is information of twelve months, which results in the periods presented being not

comparable,
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Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) and the Group's interests in associates and joint ventures.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which
control ceases.

Non-cantrolling interests

At the acquisition date, the Group measures any non-controlling interest at its proportionate interest in
the identifiable net assets of the acquiree.

Changes in the Gronp’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions.

Loss of conrol

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related nan-controlling interests and other components of equity. Any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss, Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair
value when control is lost.

Intevests in equity - accounted investees
The Group’s interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates and a joint venture,

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over the financial and operating policies. A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint
control, whereby the Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets
and obligations for its liabilities.

Interests in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially
recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated
financial statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
equity - accounted investees, until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.
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(b)

(c)

Transactions eliminared on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income or expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees
are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised
losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence
of impairment.

Foreign currencies
Foreign currency fransactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated (o the respective functional currencies of Group enltitics
at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencics are translated to the functional
currency af the exchange rate at the reporting date.

Non-monetary asseis and liabilities measured at cost in foreign currencies are translated to the functional
currency at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in profit or loss.
Foreign aperations

The assets and ligbilities of foreign operations are translated to Thai Baht at the exchange rates at the
reporting date.

The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated to Thai Baht at rates approximating the
exchange rates at the date of the transactions.

Foreign exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
translation reserve, except to extent that the translation difference is allocated to non-controlling interest,

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, significant influence
or joint control 15 lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation
is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal, If the Group disposes of part of its
interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is
reatiributed to non-controlling interests. When the Group disposes of only part of an associate or joint
venture while retaining significant influence or joint controel, the relevant proportion of the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss,

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither
planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, exchange gains and losses arising from such a monetary
item are considered to form part of a net investment in a forcign operation and are recognised in other
comprehensive income, and presented in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity until disposal
of the invesiment.

Cash and covh equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows comprise cash balances, call deposits and
highly liquid short-term investments.
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(h)

Trade and other accounts receivable
Trade and other accounts receivable are stated al their invoice value less allowance for doubtful accounts.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is assessed primarily on analysis of payment histories and future
expectations of customer payments. Bad debts are written off when incurred.

Financial lease receivables

Financial lease receivables are stated at net realisable value, which consists of the contract value net of
deferred interest income and allowance for doubtful accounts.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held for sale if
it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily throngh sale rather than through continuing
use. Such assets, or disposal group, are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less cost to sell.

Investments

Investmenis in associaies, subsidiaries and joint ventures

Investments in associates, subsidiaries and joint ventures in the separate financial statements of the
Company are accounted for using the cost method. Investments in associates and joint ventures in the
consolidated financial statements are accounted for using the equity method.

Investment properties

Investment properties are propertics which are held to earn rental income, for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes.

Investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property. The
cost of self-constructed investment property includes the cost of materials and direct labour, and other
costs directly attributable to bringing the investment property to a working condition for its intended use
and capitalised borrowing costs,

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
property. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Land improvements 30 years
Factory and warchouse buildings 30 years or the same as land lease agreement
Common assets 30 years

No depreciation 1s provided on land and investment propeties under construction.
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Property, plant and eguipment

Recognition and measurement

Chwned assels

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any other cosis
directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use. Purchased
software that is infegral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment,

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate ilems (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gains and losses on disposal of item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property. plant and equipment, and are
recognised in profit or loss.

Leased assels

Leases in terms of which the Group substantially assumes all the risk and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Property, plant and equipment acquired by way of finance leases is
capitalised at the lower of its fair value and the present valve of the mininum lease payments at the
inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to the
prafil or loss,

Subseguent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow
to the Group, and its cost can be measured reliably, The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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W

Depreciafion

Depreciation is calculated based on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount
substituted for cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
component of an item of property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 30 years
Tools and equipment 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment Jand5 vyears
Vehicles 5 vyears

Mo depreciation is provided on frechold land or assets under construction,

Depreciation methods, wseful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

Intangible assels

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisation

Amortisation is based on the cost of the asset. or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.
Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated wseful lives of
intangible assets from the date that they are available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Computer software 3,5and 10 years

Mo depreciation is provided on software under installation.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at cach financial vear-end and
adjusted if appropriate,
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(m)

(n)

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each reporting datc to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are
cstimated,

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit cxcecds
its recoverable amount, The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Caleulation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of a non-financial assct is the greater of the asset’s value in use and fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of moncy
and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset thal does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. i

Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of a {inancial assct is reversed if the subsequent increase in récoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods in respect of non-financial assets are assessed at each
reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed il there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assel’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

Imterest-bearing liabilitiey

Interest-bearing liabilities are recogniscd initially at fair value less attributable transaction charges,
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing liabilities are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings on an effective interest basis,

Trade and other accounts payahle

Trade and other accounts pavable are stated at cost.

Employee henefits

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the rclated service is

provided.
Defined benefit plans
The Group’s net abligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for cach plan by

estimating the amount of future beneflit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount,
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)

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, actuarial gain or loss are recognised immediately in
OCI The Group determines the interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result
of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement
accurs,

Short-term emplovee benefitn

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related serviee is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it 15 probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability, The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost.

Revermue

Revenue from sales of properties

When the contract meets the criteria for a sale of goods, or if control and significant risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred to the buyer.

Revenue from rental and services

Revenue from rental and services comprises rental and service income relating to investment properties.
Rental income from investment properties is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income
in the accounting period in which they are earned. The recognised revenue which is not yet due per the
operating lease agreements has been presented under “*Unbilled operating leases receivables™ at the end
of reporting period.

Unbilled operating leases receivables are recognised as revenue over the term of the lease.

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform

141



142

Annual Report 2018

TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

(@

(r)

(s)

Tnvestments
Revenue from investmenis comprises dividend and interest income from investments and bank deposits.
Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues,
Finance costs

Interest expenses and similar costs are charged to profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial periods of time to be prepared for its
intended use or sale.

Lease payments

Payments made under operating feases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the
remaining term of the lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.

Inecome tax

Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacled or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in
a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss; and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures to the extent thal it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The measurement of deferved tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of
uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Group believes that
its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors,
including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and
assumptions and may involve a series of judgements about future events. New information may become
available that causes the Group to change its judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liahilities;
such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assels and Liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable night to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income laxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultancously,

A deferred tax asset is recopnised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Future taxable profits are determined
based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary
differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted
for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered, hased on the business plans for individual

subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax assels are reviewed at each reporling date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Negment reporiing

Segment results that are reported to the Group’s CEO (the chief operating decision maker) include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated
items comprise mainly other income, distribution cost and administrative expenses, share of profits of
associates and joint venture, finance costs, other assets and other liabilities.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if the
Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or joint control the party or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group
and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related partics may be
individuals or other entities.

Relationships with associates and joint ventures and subsidiaries, are described in notes 11 and 12
Relationship with key management and other related parties were as follows:

Name of entities Country of  Nature of relationships
incorporation/
nationality
Frasers Assets Company Limited ‘Thailand Major shareholders, 48.52%

shareholding, and directors
are representatives of the

Company
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Name of entities

Frasers Property Holdings
{Thailand) Company Limited

PT SLF Internusa Karawang
PT Surya Semesta Internusa Thk
PT Surya Internusa Timur

Rojana Industrial Park Public Company Limited
Rojana Industrial Park Prachinburi

Company Limited

Rojana Industrial Management Company Limited
F & B International Company Limited

Oishi Group Public Company Limited

TCC Hotel Asset Management Company Limited
Berli Jucker Logistics Company Limited

M S & K C Development Company Limited
T.C.C. Technology Company Limited

Horeca Management Company Limited

Hotels World 7 Company Limited

Southeast Capital Company Limiled

North Sathorn Hotel Company Limited

T.C.C. Commercial Property Management

Company Limited

TCC Hotel Collection Company Limited
N.C.C. Management And Development

Company Limited

BIG C Supercenter Public Company Limited
Southeast Life Insurance Public Company Limited
Southeast Insurance Public Company Limited
North Park Golf and Sports Club Company Limited
Toni¢ International Company Limited

Asia Plus Securities Public Company Limited
Asia Industrial Estate Company Limited

SVI Public Company Limited

Sathorn City Tower Property Fund

Thai Beverage Logistic Company Limited

TCC Luxury Hotels and Resort Company Limited
Food of Asia Company Limited

TCC Assets (Thailand) Company Limited
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Key management personnel

The Leading Provider of
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Country of
incorporation/
nationality

Thailand

Indonesia
Indonesia

Indonesia
Thailand

Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand

Thailand
Thailand

Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand

TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Nature of relationships

Major shareholders, 40.95%
sharcholding, and dircctors
are representatives of the
Company

Held by associate

Shareholder of associate

Subsidiary of sharcholder
of aszociate

Common directors

Common directors
Common directors
Common directors
Common directors
Common directors
Common directors
Common direclors
Common directors
Common directors
Common directors
Common directors
Common directors

Common directors
Common directors

Common directors

Common directors

Commeon directors

Common directors

Common dircctors

Common directors

Common directors

Commeon directors

Common directors

Common directors

Common directors

Common directors

Common directors

Common directors

Directors are in the same family

Fersons having authority and
responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the
activities of the entity, directly
or indirectly mcluding any
director (whether executive
or otherwise) of the Group.
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The pricing policies for transactions with related parties are explained further below:

Transactions Pricing policies

Revenue from sales of properties Based on contractually agreed prices

Rental and service revenue Based on contractually agreed prices

Land rental income Based on contractually agreed prices

Management fee income Based on contractually agreed prices

Revenue from rendering of services Based on contractually agreed prices

Other income Based on contractually agreed prices

Dividend income Based on dividend declaration

Interest income Rate as mutually agreed with reference interest rates
quoted by financial institutions

Rental and related service expenses Based on contractually agreed prices

Management fee Based on contractually agreed prices

Utilities expenses Based on conlractually agreed prices

Distribution costs Based on contractually agreed prices

Interest expense Rate as mutually agreed with reference interest rates
quoted by financial institutions

Other expenses Based on contractually agreed prices

Common arca service fee Based on contractually agreed prices

Provision related to sales of properties Based on contractually agreed prices

Significant ransactions for the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018 and for the year ended
31 December 2017 with related parties were as follows:

Consolidated Separate
financinl statements financial statements
For the For the
period from period from
| January For the 1 January For the
2018 to year ended 2018 to year ended
30 31 30 31
September  December  September  December
2018 2017 2018 2017
{in thousand Baht)

Subsidiaries
Revenue from the sale of properties - - 140,802 -
Land rental income - - 3,879 5,249
Management fee income - - 91,261 10,189
Revenue from rendering of services - - - 656
Cither income - - 13,357 16,005
Dividend income - - 48,952 2,090,800
Interest income - - 414,496 431,507
Management fee - - - 5346
Associates
Revenue from the sale of properties 1,569,169 - 122,255 -
Land rental income 46,324 61,579 11,020 15,149
Management fee income 226,897 239,153 - 140,320
Revenue from rendering of services 15,944 17,062 3,236 3,773
Dividend income - - 198,233 681,840
Other income 1,291 4,485 1,291 4,485
Provision related to sales of properties 20,522 - - -
Common area service fiee 16,484 21,432 50 67
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Notes to the financial statements

For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Joint ventures
Management fee income
Interest income

Other related parties

Rental and service income
Management fee income

Interest income

Other income

Rental and related service expenses
Utilities expenses

Distribution costs

Interest expenses

Other expenses

Key management personnel
Key management personnel compensation
Short-term employee benefit
Post-employment benefit
Total key management personnel
compensation

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
For the For the
period from period from
1 January For the I Januvary For the
2018 to year ended 2018 to year ended
30 31 30 31
September December September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
(in thousand Baht)
3,384 5413 - -
= 60 = 2
58,772 04,001 - -
6,200 - . -
2,430 3,737 2.064 3,179
6,493 343 8 -
14,856 19,057 14,856 19,057
2,568 3,507 2,054 2,801
182 - 382 -
- 2,795 - 1,491
14,045 13,573 5,590 10,309
85,054 88,804 69,813 67,111
(295) 4,910 (1,290) 3,243
84,759 93,714 68,523 70,354

Balances as at 30 September 2018 and 31 December 2017 with related parties were as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

Other related party

Trade accounts receivable - related parties

Other related parties

The Leading Provider of
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Consaolidated Separate
linancial staltemenis financial statemenis
30 3t 30 3l
September  December  September  December
2018 2017 2018 2017
(in thousand Baht)

137,254 149,006 32,301 30,947
Consolidated Separale
financial statements financial statements
30 3l 30 3l
September  December  September December
2018 27 2018 2017
fin thousand Bahi)
5,917 - - -
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Notes to the financial statements

For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Oiher receivables - relmted parties

Subsidiaries
Associates

Joint ventures
Other related parties
Total

Dividend receivables

Associates

Loans to relafed
parties

Interest
rate

30 3l

September  December
2018 2017

(% per annum)
Shart-term loan
Other related party 10 10

Long-term loans
Subsidiaries 448-488 378-4384
Summary of loans to related parties
Short-term loan

Long-term |loans

Total loans to related parties

Consolidated Separate
financial statemenls financial statements
30 31 30 31
September  December  September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
fin thousand Balt)
- - 15,463 4. 886
40,607 575,723 781 518,870
2,015 2,203 21 -
3,642 753,500 2,144 75,500
48,264 653,426 18,400 629,256
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 31 30 3
September  December  September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
{in thousand Bahi)
- 328,117 - 328,117
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 31 30 31
September December September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
fin thousand Baht)
143,663 144,855 - -
- - 10,703,500 12,658,500
143,663 144,855 - -
- - 10,703,500 12,658,500
143,663 144 855 10,703,500 12,658,500
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Movements during the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018 and for the year ended
31 December 2017 of loans to related parties were as follows:

Loans to related parties

Shovrt-term foan

Oiher related party

At 1 January

Increase

Decrease

Exchange differences on translation
At 30 September/ 31 December

Long-term loans
Subsidiaries
AL 1 January

Increase
Decrease

At 30 September/ 31 December

Restricted deposir af financial institution

Other related party

Other non-curren! assels - related pariies

Other related parties

The Leading Provider of
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Consolidated Separate
financial sitatements financial statements
Faor the Far the
period period

from from
1 January For the 1 January For the
2018 to vear ended 2018 to year ended
30 31 30 il
September  December  September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
{in thousand Bali
144,855 108,669 = -
- 71,860 - -
= (20,400) - -
(1,192) (15,274) . -
143,603 144,855 - -
- = 12,658,500 717,000
- - 515,000 12,181,500
: - _(2,470000) _ (240.000)
= 5 10,703,500 12,658,500
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 3l 30 31
September  December  September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
fire thowsand Baki)
240 240 - -

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements

30 31 30 31
September December September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
{in thousand Baht)

s.m7 7479 8,001 7403
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For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Other payables - related parties

Subsidiarics
Associales

Other related partics
Total

Provision related io sales of properiics-
related party

Associate

Consolidated Scparate
financial statements financial statements
30 3l 30 3l
September  December  September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
{in thousand Bali)

- - 5469 183
2,751 3 128 -
1,663 37,741 1,190 37.606
4,414 37,744 6,787 37,789
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 31 30 31
September  December  September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
fin thousand Baht)
24215 - - -

Movements during the period from | January 2018 to 30 September 2018 and for the year ended
31 December 2017 of loans from related parties were as follows:

Loans from related parties

Nhori-tarm loans

Other related party

At 1 January

Decrease

At 30 September/ 31 December

Long-term loans
Other related party
At 1 January
Decrease

At 30 September/ 31 December

— . RS, s

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
For the For the
period period

from trom
1 January For the 1 January For the
2018 to year ended 2018 to year ended
30 31 30 31
September  December  Seplember December
2018 2017 2018 2017
{in thousand Baht)

- 1,060,000 - 1,060,000

- { 1,060,000) - (1,060,000}

- 783,760 - -
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Motes to the financial statements

For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 Scptember 2018

Unearned land rental incomie

Subsidiary
Current portion

Associate

Current portion
MNon-current portion

Taotal

Cormmitmenty with related parties

Future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable aperating leases

Within one vear

After one year but within five years

Total

Significant agreements with related parties

Loan from related party

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 31 30 31
September  December  September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
fin thousand Bahi)
s 1 = 3,281
55,803 50,196 12,749 14,954
1,345,049 1,262,604 314,799 379,370
1,400,852 1,312,800 327,548 394,324
1,400,852 1,312,800 327,548 397,605
Consolidated Separate
financial statemenis financial statements
30 3l 30 31
September  December  September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
fin thousamd Baly)
19,144 8,534 10,253 4,571
33,503 - 17,943 -
52.647 8,534 28.19%6 4,571

As at 30 September 2018, the Group and the Company had unutilised credit facilities with a related party
tetalling Baht 4,594,064 million and Baht 330 million, respectively (37 December 2017 Bahi 4,594.64

million and Bakt 330 million, respectively).

As at 30 September 2018, investment properties under development and available for rent/sale,
investment properties for rent, land and buildings of a subsidiary with a book value of Baht 2.374.73
million {31 December 2017: Baht 2,025.55 million), have been pledged as collateral for such credit

facilitics.

Shart-term loom agreement

On 6 December 2017, a subsidiary entered into a short-term loan apreement with a related party.
The loan bore intcrest rate at a rate of 10% per annum and will be repayable in December 2018.

On 20 August 2018, the subsidiary and the related party entered into the side agreement for such loan

agreement to waive the interest for the loan.
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Long-term loan agreemenis

The Company entered into unsecured long-term loan agreements with subsidiaries. The loans bore
interest rates at the rates of 4.48% to 4.88% per annum (2017 3.78% to 4.84% per anmum) and will be
repayable in a full amount within June 2023,

Office rental and service agreements

The Company entered into office rental and related service agreements with a related company. The
Company committed to pay rental and service fees of Baht 19 million per annum. The agreements were
for a period of 3 years commencing from July 2018 to June 2021,

Undertaking

The Company has issued a letter of undertaking to a financial institution with respect to the indebtedness
of 25% of a subsidiary, PT SLP Surya TICON Internusa, which is the proportion of the Company’s
shareholding in the indirect subsidiary. The undertaking is effective from 29 Octaber 2015 to 29 October
2021.

REIT management and praperty management agreements

In December 2017, TICON Management Company limited, a subsidiary has been appointed by TICON
Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trost (“REIT™), an associate as REI'T manager. The fees
are summarised as follows:

{1y REIT’s property management fee at a rate of 3% of REIT"s net rental and service income.

(2) Incentive fee at rale of 5% per annum of REITs operating profit.

(3) Commission fee calculated in proportion to the period of rental and service of new lease but not
over 3 months of rental and service rates,

{(4) Commission fee from buying, selling, transferring leasehold and/or receiving leaschold at a rate
of 3% of the value.

In addition, the subsidiary entered into a management agreement with REIT to provide management
services. The remuneration will be paid monthly at a rate of 0.25% per annum of total asset value of
REIT (see details of REIT in note 11,

Rental agreements

The Company and subsidiaries entered into various land and building rental agreements with REIT.
REIT committed to pay rental fees as specified in the agreements. The agreements were for periods from 28
years to 30 years and will expire in August 2048,

Agreements with REIT

On 21 August 2018, the Company and a subsidiary entered into a purchase and sale agreement of land and
construction thereon with REIT whereby the Company and the subsidiary agreed to sale assets to REIT

totalling Baht 1,466.78 million under the terms and conditions as specified in the agreement.
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Noies to the linancial siatements

For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

On 24 August 2018, the subsidiary entered into building and construction lease agreement with REIT
whereby the subsidiary agreed to lease out land and construction to REIT with a lease terms of 30 years
starting from the registration date, REIT committed to pay rental fee over the term of lease under the term
and conditions of the agreement. The Company and the subsidiary agreed to compensate for lease and
service income of vacant or vacant parts of the sold and leased properties to RELT for the period of 12
months from registration date, transferred date, or starting from registration date or transferred date to the
date which REIT entered into lease agreement with new tenant, The guarantee rental rate was the agreed
rate as specified in the agreement.

Cash and cash equivalents
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 3 30 31
September  December  September  December
2018 2017 2018 2017
(in thousand Baht
Cash on hand 1,156 1,081 164 114
Cash at banks - current accounts 1,021 92 224 80
Cash at banks - savings accounts 225,789 157,000 35,710 35,320
Highly liquid short-term investments 5,705,000 1,360,000 5,705,000 1,360,000
Total 5,932,966 1,518,173 5,741,098 1,395,514
Other investments
Consolidated Separate
financial statemenits financial stalements
30 31 30 k1|
September  December  September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
(in thousand Bahtj
Current invesintenis
Short-term deposits at financial institutions 64,962 21,562 - -
Certificate of deposits 450,000 1,080,000 450,000 1,080,000
Total 314,962 1,101,562 450,000 1,080,000

As at 30 September 2018, current investmenis represented short-term deposits at financial institutions and
certificate of deposits totalling Baht 514.96 million (31 December 2017: Baht 1,101.56 million), which had
maturity during 3 months to 5 months (3] December 2017: 3 months to 6 months) and bore interest rates at
the rate of 0.9% to 1.45% per annum (31 December 2017: 1.0% to 1.5% per annumy.
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MNotes to the financial statements

For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

T Trade accounts receivable

Note

Related parties 4
Other parties
Total
Lesy allowanee for
doubtful accounts
Net

Bad and doubtful debt expenses
for the period/year

Aging analyses for trade accounts receivable were as follows:

Related partics
Within credit terms
Owverdue:

Less than 3 months

Other parties
Within credit terms
Overdue;
Less than 3 months
3 - 6 months
- 12 months
Ower 12 months

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 31 30 3
September December September December
2018 2017 2018 nz
(in thousand Baht)

597 = = =
87,025 81,714 27,110 20,959
92,942 81,714 27,110 20,959

{20,134) (20,134) (12,143) _(12,143)
72,808 61,580 14,97 8,816
Congolidated Separate
financial statemenis financial statemenis
For the For the
period from period from
1 January For the 1 January For the
2018 o vear ended 2018 o year ended
30 31 30 il
September December September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
{in thousand Baht)
- 910 - 742
Consolidated Separate
fnancial statements financial statements
30 31 30 31
September December September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
{in thowsand Baki)
2,482 - - -
3.435 - . .
59017 - - -
2,285 - 1,762 -
24,584 31,300 9,649 4,139
659 - - -
20,519 20519 12,143 12,143
48,347 51,819 23,554 16,282
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Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 il 30 31
Sepiember December September December
2018 2m7 2Mm8 2m7
(in thousand Baht}

Unbilled operating leases receivables 38,678 29895 3556 4,677
Total 92,942 81,714 27,110 20,959
Lexe allowance for doubtful acconnts {20,134} (20,134) {12,143) {12.143)
Net 72,808 61,580 14,967 8,816

The normal credit term granted by the Group is 30 days.
B Finance lease receivables

Consolidated financial statemenis

Current portion Non-current portion Total
30 il 30 31 30 31
September December  September  December September  December
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
{in thousand Bakht)
Finance lease
receivables 35,003 35,003 403,734 429 602 438,737 464,605
Less deferred
interest income (18523)  (19224)  (120,647)  (134450)  (139,170)  (153,674)
Net 16,480 15,779 283,087 295,152 299,567 31 I'II‘}SI

Aging analyses for finance lease receivables (net of deferred interest income) were as follows:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 31 30 k]|
September  December  September  December
2018 2017 2018 2017
fin thousand Baht)

Other partics

Within credit terms 295 054 310418 - -

Overdue:

Less than 3 months o 518 513 - -

299,567 310,931 - -
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For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

As at 30 September 2018 and 31 December 2017, the future minimum lease payments under finance
lease contracts together with the present value of minimum lease payments are as follows:

Consolidated financial statements

30 September 2018 31 December 2017
Future Future
minimum lease minimum lease
payments under  Present value of payments under  Present value of
finance lease minimum finance lease minimum
contracts lease payments contracts lease payments
(in thousand Baht)
Within one year 35,003 16,480 35,003 15,7580
After one year but within
five years 137,959 74,719 137,959 71,197
After 5 years 265,775 208,368 291,643 223,954
Total 438,737 299,567 464,605 310,931
Less: deferred interest
income (139,170) {153,674)
Lease payments uander
finance lease contracts
- et 299,567 310,931
9 Other receivables
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 31 30 31
September December  September  December
Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
(in million Bahi)
Related parties 4 48,264 653,426 18,409 629,256
Other parties
Prepaid expenses 67,384 25,663 15,654 13,365
Accrued interesi income 6,189 2,720 6,006 2,720
Other receivables 54,834 2.194 1,494 704
Accrued income 23,039 5,442 7.469 528
151,446 36,019 30713 17317
Total 199,710 689,445 49,122 646,573
Less allowance for doubtful accounts {837} (637)  (632) (632)
Net 199,073 688,808 48,490 645,941
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10  Disposal groups classificd as held for sale

Investment properties under development and available for rent/sale and investment properties for rent
are presented as a disposal group held for sale following the commitment of the Group’s management
on 11 June 2018 to convert assets into capital for business expansion. The Group expected o sell the
assets by December 2018,

On 30 August 2018, the Group and the Company sold part of disposal groups classified as held for sale
of Baht 1,569.17 million and Baht 12225 million, respectively, fo an associate.

As at 30 September 2018, the disposal group classified as held for sale of the Group and the Company
comprised of assets value amounting to Baht 1,000.66 million and 589.96 million less habilities of Baht
47.28 million and 30.76 million, respectively.

Details of the disposal group classified as held for sale as at 30 September 2018 was as follows:

Consolidated Separate

financial financial
Note statemenis statements
fin thousand Bahy)
Assets
Unbilled operating leases receivables 197 197
Investment properties under development
and available for rent/sale 1 fa) 74,137 44,926
Investment properties for rent M 926,329 544 834
1,000,466 389,760
Total 1,000,663 589,957
Liability
Customer deposits 47,284 30,758

Cumulative income or expense recognised in other comprehensive income

There is no comulative income or expense recognised in other comprehensive income relating to the
disposal group.
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11

Measurement of fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The non-recurring fair value measurement for the disposal group of the Grovp and the Company
amounting to Baht 1,731.11 million and Baht 1,216.01 million, respectively, has been categorised as a
Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valvation technigue used.

Valuation technigque

The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of the disposal group.

Properties type
Land
Land, factory and warchouse
buildings for rent

Valuation technique
Market price comparison.
Income approach: Discounted cash flows; The wvaluation model
considers the present value of net cash flows to be generated from the

property, taking into account expected rental growth rate, occupancy
rate and long-term growth in real rental rates. The expected net cash
flows are discounted vsing risk-adjusted discount rates.  Among other
factors, the discount rate estimation considers the quality of factory and
warehouse buildings and its location, and lease terms.

Construction in progress

Cost method.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

Associates

Al 1 January

Share of net profits of associates
Acquisitions

Disposals

Dividend income

Reduction of unit capital

Exchange differences on translation
At 30 September/ 31 December

Deferred gains on sales of properties
At | January

Increase

Decrease

At 30 September/ 31 December

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements

For the For the

period from period from
| January For the 1 January For the
2018 to year ended 2018 to year ended
30 31 30 31
September December September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
{in thousand Beaki)

5,252,226 4,582,154 206,856 4,532,517
192,130 274,654 - -
437,166 1,734,710 - 1,734,716

- (70,5007 - {3,214,120)

{(198,233) (681,840) - -
(54,917) (546,257) (1,997) (546,257)
{36,804) (40,701) . -

5,591,568 5,252,216 204,359 206,856

(1,630,299) (1,678,601) - -

(102,005) - - -

2,693 48,302 - -
_(1,729611)  _ (1,630,299) - -
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Consolidated Separate
fMinancial statemenis financial statements
For the For the
period from period from
1 January For the 1 January For the
2181to year ended 2018 to year ended
30 3l 30 31
September December September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
{in thousand Bahi)
Unrealised expenses on provision
related to sales of properties
At 1 January 11,680 11,680 - -
Increase 6,280 - - -
At 30 September/ 31 December 17,960 11,680 - - -
Net 3,879,917 3,633,607 204,859 206,856
Joint ventures
At | January 215,002 4,840 - -
Share of net profits of joint ventures 3,434 162 - -
Acquisitions 108,885 209,400 108,885 -
At 30 September/ 31 December 327,321 215,002 108,885 -
Total
At 1 January 5,467,228 4,586,994 206,856 4,532,517
Share of net profits of associates and
Jjoint venlures 195,564 275,416 B -
Acquisitions 546,051 1,944,116 108,885 1,734,716
Disposals - (70,5000 - (5,514,120}
Dividend income (198,233) (681,840) - -
Reduction of unit capital (54917 (546,257) {1,997} {546,257)
Exchange differences on translation (36,804} (40,701) - -
At 30 September/ 31 December 5918,889 5467228 313,744 206,856
Deferred gains on sales of
properties
At 1 January (1.630,299) (1,678,601) . -
Increase (102,005) - - -
Decrease 2,693 48,302 - -
At 30 September/ 31 December (1,729.611) (1,630,299) - -
Unrealised expenses on provision
related to sales of propertics
At 1 January 11,680 11,680 - -
Increase 6,280 - - -
At 30 September/ 31 December 17,960 11,680 - -
Net 4,207,238 3,848,609 313,744 206,856
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

The deferred gains on sales of properties to TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust
(“REIT™) are calculated in proportion to its investments in the REIT which is considered as deferred
pains and presented as reductions on costs of investments in the statement of financial position and
reductions against gain on sales of properties to associates in the statement of income for the period as
incurred.

The increase in deferred gains on sales of properties and unrealised expenses on provision related to
sales of properties during the year resulted from the Company's sales of properties to the REIT, while
the decrease in the deferred gains on sales of properties and unrealised expenses on provision related to
sales of properties reflected the REITs sales of properties to third parties, as well as the Company’s
lower stakes in the REIT.

Acguisilion

During the second quarter of 2018, a subsidiary made an additional investment in 1.01% of the 1ssued
and paid up capital of the REIT, an associate of the Group, for a consideration of 26.10 million units
amounting to Baht 293,37 million, resulted the Group’s total interest in the REIT from 21.93%
to 22.94%.

During the year 2018, a subsidiary made an additional investment in 0.49% of the issued and paid up
capital of the REIT, an associate of the Group, for a consideration of 12.75 million units amounting to
Baht 143 .80 million, resulted the Group’s total interest in the REIT from 22.94% 1o 23.43%.

On 6 July 2018, the Company entered into Join Venture Agreement with JustCo (Thailand 2) Pte. Ltd.
(*“TustCo™), a company incorporated in Singapore to operate businesses related to the Co-Working office
and other related businesses in Thailand. The Company invested in such company amounting to Baht
108.86 million, representing 51% sharcholding. The Company registered such company with the
Ministry of Commerce on 1 August 2018.

On 29 March 2017, the extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders of TPARK BFTZ Company
Limited, a joint venture of the Group, the shareholders approved an increase in the company’s registered
shares capital from Baht 1 million to Baht 350 miltion. The subsidiary paid for the increase in share
capital totalling Baht 209 million. The joint venture registered the increase in share capital with the
Ministry of Commerce on 30 March 2017,

Reduction of unit capital

Diuring the first quarter of 2018, the REIT has reduced the value of fund unit by Baht 0.0929 per unit, by
decreasing the par value from Baht 9.6323 per unit to Baht 9.5394 per unit. The capital reduction was
refunded to the Group amounting to Baht 53.03 million,

During the year 2018, the REIT has reduced the value of fund unit by Baht 0.0031 per unit, by decreasing
the par value from Haht 9.5394 per unit to Baht 9.5363 per unit. The capital reduction was refunded to
the Group amounting to Baht 1,89 million,
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Conversion of property funds into REIT

At the Board of Directors meeting held on 8 September 2017, the Board approved the conversion of
property funds into the trust with the support of the conversion of TICON Property Fund (TFUND),
TPARK Logistics Property Fund (TLOGIS), TICON Industrial Growth Leasehold Property Fund
{TGROWTH) into TICON Frechold and Leaschold Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT™) (“the
conversion of property funds™) in addition the Board approved to grant the Right to Invest in asscts
subsequent to the conversion of property funds and Right of First Refusal to the REIT, as detailed belows.

I. Right to Invest - The Company agrees that it shall procure the amount of assets under Right to Invest
to have a total investment value of not less than Baht 3,500 million. If the REIT intend to invest in
those assets, it shall complete the investment transactions by 31 December 2018.

2. Right of First Refusal - The REIT has a right to first decline to enter into a transaction in the event
where the Company and/or its subsidiaries intend to sell, dispose, transfer or lease in all or part of
assets used in the business operation of warchouse and factory for rent, of which the Company and/or
its subsidiarics have ownership or are entitled to lease to any person who wishes to come by the said
assets as an investment, under certain conditions.

On 20 December 2017, the REIT received the transfer of assets and liabilities of TFUND, TLOGIS and
TGROWTH and issued frust vnits to TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH in a total amount of
2,035,587,048 trust units together with Baht 3,499,839,010 cash in exchange of assets and liabilities of
TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH transferred to the REIT. In addition, the REIT has swap the its trust
units together with cash for investment units of TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH according to the
Swap Ratio as follow.

- At the rate of | investment unit of TFUND to 0.9874 trust units of the REIT with Baht 1.6977 cash
per unit.

- At the rate of | investment unit of TLOGIS to 1.0129 trust units of the REIT with Baht 1.7415 cash .
per unit.

- At the rate of 1 investment unit of TGROWTH to 0.8673 trust units of the REIT with Baht 1.4911
cash per unit.

As a result, the unitholders of TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH have become unitholders of the REIT.
TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH were dissolved on 21 December 2017.

The management of the Company considered that the Company has no control over the REIT by
assessing the power, rights to variable returns from REIT and linkage between power and returns to the
Group.

Furthermore, in accordance with Trust Deed, changing in the REIT manager requires an ordinary
resolution from the majority of unitholders who attending the meeting and entitled to vote at the
unitholders’ meeting. The aggregate economic interest of the Group from the REIT will be governed by
the REIT management and property management agreements (see note 4).

On 27 December 2017, the Company entered into an Agreement for Investment in Share Capital whereby
the Company agreed to transfer 550 million units of imvestment in the RETT to TICON International Pte.
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, for subscribing for the capital increase (see note 12).
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

None of the Group’s associates and joint ventures are publicly listed and consequently do not have
published price quotations, except for TICON Frechold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust
(“REIT") which is listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Based on the closing price of Baht 11.80
at 30 September 2018 (31 December 2017: Bahe 10.40), the fair value of the Group's investment in

REIT was Baht 7,193.96 million (31 December 2017: Baht 5,936.32 million}.

As at 30 September 2018, the investment units of REIT of 12.84 million units, with the value under the
equity method amounting to Baht 74.22 million, and the market value amounting to Baht 151.47 million,
were pledged as collateral for trust receipt, letters of credit, letters of guarantee and short-term loans

facilities.

Associates and joint ventures

The following table summarises the financial information of the associates and joint ventures as ncluded
in their own financial statements, adjusted for fair value adjustments at acquisition and differences in
accounting policies. The table also reconciles the summarised financial information to the carrying

amount of the Group’s interest in these companies.
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Motes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

12 Investmenis in subsidiaries

Separate
financial statement
For the
period from
1 January For the
2018 to year ended
30 September 31 December
2018 2017
(in thousand Baht)
At 1 January 17,626,397 20,070,807
Acquisitions 296,490 5,600,653
Decrease - (8,037,500)
Allowance for impairment (6,430) (13,563)
At 30 September/31 December 17,916,457 17,626,397

Aeguisitions

At the Board of Directors of the Company held on 30 March 2018, the Board approved the establishment
of TICON Technology Company Limited, which has principal businesses of investing and providing
services related to data center and other related technology businesses with the registered capital of Baht
1 million, divided into 100,000 shares at Baht 10 per share. The company completed its registration on
18 April 2018.

On 30 March 2018, TICON International Pte. Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company registered an increase
in share capital from 225.88 million ordinary shares to 225.93 million ordinary shares at par value of
SGD 1 per share, amounting to Baht 1.20 million. The Company fully paid for the increase in ordinary
share capital of the subsidiary during the first quarter of 2018.

On 28 September 2018, TICON International Pte. Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company registered an
increase in share capital from 225.93 million ordinary shares to 238.45 million ordinary shares at par
value of SGD 1 per share, amounting to Baht 294,29 million. The Company fully paid for the increase
in ordinary share capital of the subsidiary during September 2018,

On 23 March 2017, TICON (HK) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company registered an increase in share
capital from 11,62 million shares to 16.13 million shares at par value of USD 1 per share, amounting to
Baht 161.65 million. The Company made payment for the share increase.

On 12 October 2017, the Company established TICON International Pte. Lid., a new subsidiary in
Singapore, to be a vehicle for the Company’s overseas investment in the future, with the initial registered
capital of 1 ordinary share at SGD 1 per share. On 27 December 2017, the subsidiary increased registered
capital from 1 share to 225.9 million shares by an issuance of 225.9 million shares, The Company
subscribed such capital increase by transferring of units of TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate
Investment Trust (“TREIT™), representing 10056 of shareholding of the registered shares capital (see
note 11}.
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Capital reductiom

At the annual general meeting of sharcholders of TICON Logistics Park Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company, held on 29 March 2017, the shareholders approved a reduction of the registered share
capital of the subsidiary from Baht 19,500 million to Baht 11,500 million by reduced of number of shares
registration. The subsidiary registered the reduction of its registered share capital with the Ministry of
Commerce on 2 May 2017.

Atthe annual general meeting of shareholders of ECO Industrial Services Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company, held on 29 March 2017, the shareholders approved a reduction of the registered share
capital from Baht 50 million to Baht 12.5 million by reduced of number of shares registration. The
subsidiary registered the reduction of its registered share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on
3 May 2017.

Dividends

Al the annual general meeting of shareholders of TICON Management Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company held on 19 March 2018, the shareholders approved the appropriation of dividends from
retained earnings after the appropriation of legal reserve of Baht 1.52 per share, totalling Baht 13.20
million. The dividends were paid to the shareholders during the first quarter of 2018.

At the annual general meeting of shareholders of ECO Industrial Services Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company held on 27 April 2018, the sharcholders approved the appropriation of dividends from
retained eamings after the appropriation of legal reserve of Baht 2425 per share, totallmg
Baht 30.31 million. The dividends were paid to the shareholders during the second quarter of 2018,

At the annual general meeting of shareholders of TICON Logistics Park Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company held on 29 March 2017, the shareholders approved an allotment of retained earnings for
dividend payment to its shareholders of Baht 1.069 per share. The dividend payment, totaling Baht 2,085
million, was paid on 21 April 2017,

At the annual general meeting of shareholders of ECO Industrial Services Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company held on 29 March 2017, the sharcholders approved an allotment of retained earnings for
dividend payment to its shareholders of Baht 1.25 per share. The dividend payment, totaling Baht 6.25
million, was paid on 25 April 2017,

At the Board of Directors of ECO Industrial Services Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company
held on 28 August 2018, the Board of a subsidiary approved the appropriation of interim dividends of
Baht 6.40 per share, totalling Baht 8 million. The interim dividends were paid to the shareholders during
Aungust 2018,
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the interim financial statements

For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

13 Non-controlling interests

‘The following table summarises the information relating to cach of the Group's subsidiaries that has a
material non-controlling interest, before any intra-group eliminations:

172

30 Seplember 2018

31 Decermber 2017

TICOM TICOM
Management Mon- Management Mon-
Company  Intra-proup  controlling Company Intra-group  controlling
Limited  climinations  Interesis Limnited eliminations  Titerssts
fin thousand Baki)
Mon-contral lingr interest pereentape 30.00 30.00
Current asgeis TL116 44,306
Mon-cumrent pssels 1.EI6 1,039
Current lizhilities 3,7 17,581
Mon-gcurrent liabilities _ 1,125 016
Met asscts 46,030 26,848
[hrr_\'irl,g arsounl of non=controlling inleres 13,80 149 13,958 B.054 (103} 7,951
For the period from 1 January 2018 For the yesr ended
1o 30 Septenber 2018 31 December 2017
TICOMN TICOM
Management Non- Management Mon=
Company Imra-proup  controlling Company  Intra-group  controlling
Limited climinarions Imcrests Limitzd climinations  Interests
fir thousand Raku}
Revenie 226,981 62 642
Profit 34,381 T.982
Other comprehensive income B i -
Total comprehensive income J4,381 8,294
Profil allocated (o non-controlling miceresl 10,315 - 10,315 2,399 - 2,395

Oiher comprehensive income allocated 1o
non=conirolling mierest

Cash flows from operating activities 43,105 {5410
Cash flows from investing activities (1,153) {1x
Cash flows from financing activities {15,587 (368)
Met increase (decrease) in eash and cash

nquh':ull:nlzi Iﬁeﬁﬁ jtg]‘:l;
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Investment propertics under development and available for rent/sule comprisc land and land
improvements, asset under construction, eommon assets, factory and warehouse buildings.

Capitalised of borrowing cost relating to the acquisitions of the investment properties under development
and ayvailable for rent/sale for the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018 amounted to Baht
(.86 million (for the vear ended 31 December 2017: Bahr 13,93 milliom), with a capitalisation rate of
3.35% (for the year ended 31 December 2047 3.35%).

Collateralised

As at 30 September 2018, investment properties under development and available for rent/sale of the
Group and the Company with a net book value of Baht 1,657.67 million and Baht 75.15 million,
respectively, (31 December 2017: Baht 1800.67 million and Baht 80,19 million, respectively) have
been pledged as collateral for bank overdrafis, short-term loans and long-term loans from financial
institutions of the Company and the subsidiaries.

(b Invesiment properties for resnl

Consolidated financinl statements

Land and Factory and
Ll warghouse
Note  improvements huildings Total
{in thousand Bahe)

Cost
1 January 2017 5,839,271 9,127,006 14,966,367
Disposals (38,998) {334,263) (373.261)
Transfers from investment properties

under development and available

for rent/sale idfa} 791,46 1,190,733 1.982,679
31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 6,592,219 ©.983,566 16,575,785
Disposals (281,092) (834,680} (1,115,772)
Transfers from investment properties

under development and available

for renl/sale 1dfal 636,785 1,323,290 1,960,073
Transfers oul o disposal groups

classified 25 held for sale i {426,420) (684,764) (1,111,184}
30 September 2018 ___ 6521492 9,787.412 16,308,904
Depreciatinn
1 January 2017 140,645 1,218,473 1,359,123
Depreciation for the year 15,580 200,862 310,442
Disposals . (21,815) {21,815)
Transfers from investment properties

under development and available

for rent/sale Idia) (o089 17,352 7.263
31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 150,136 1,504,877 1,655,013
Depreciation for the period 15,797 230616 255413
Drisposals (12,433) (111,989 (124,424)
Transfers from Investment propertics

under development and available

for rent/zale H{a} 11,912 144,773 156,685
Transfers out to disposal groups

classified as held for sale iV - {184,855) (154,855}
30 September 2018 165,410 1,592,422 1,757,832
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Consolidated financial statements

Land and Factory and
land warchouse
Note  Improvements buildings Tatal
fin thousand Bakt)
Net book vafue
1 January 2017 5,698,626 7,908,618 13,607,244
31 December 2017 and 1| January 20E8 6,442,083 8,478,689 14,920,772
30 September 2018 6,356,082 5,194,594 14,551,072
Separate financial statements
Land and land
Note  improvements Factory buildings Total
fin thousand Baht)
Cost
1 January 2017 1,401,395 1,348,689 2,750,084
Disposals (38,998) {45,814) (84,812)
Transfers from investment properties
under development and available
for rent/sale fdfal R2R73 191,100 273,973
31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 1,445,274 1,493,975 2,939,245
Diaposals (226,049} - (226,019)
Transfers from investment properties
under development and available
for renl/sale Tdfa) 206,836 2747145 451,581
Transfers ouf to disposal groups
classified as held for sale i (361,382} {323,939 {685,321)
30 September 2018 1,064,675 1,444,781 2,509,456
Depreclation
I January 2017 5,084 538,380 543,464
Depreciation for the year 1,126 38,030 39,176
Disposals - (14,873) (14,873)
Transfers from investment properties
under development and available
for rent/sale 14fa) 245 49,461 49,706
31 December 2017 and 1 Januvary 2018 6,455 611,018 617,473
Depreciation for the period 947 E) Wirk 32,724
Transters from Investment properties
under development and available
for rent/sale 14fu) 302 41,603 41,905
Transfer out to disposal groups
classified as held for sale 10 = { 140,487) {140,487)
30 September 2018 7,704 543,911 551,615
Net book value
1 January 2017 1,396,311 310,309 2,206,620
31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 1.438.815 382,957 2,321,772
30 September 2018 1,056,971 900,870 1,957,841

Investment properties for rent comprise land and land improvements, factory and warchouse buildings.

Fair value of investment properties as at 30 September 2018 and 31 December 2017 were determined
by independent valuers. The fair value of the land and Jand improvements under development has been
determined based on market prices, while that of the factory and warchouse buildings available for
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

rent/sale has been determined using the income approach. The main assumptions used in the valuation
are rental rate, occupancy rate and long-term prowth in real rental rates,

Fair value of investment properties were as follows:

Consolidated hinancial statements

30 September 2018 31 December 2017
Book value Fair value  Book value Fair value
{in thousand Baki)
Investment properties under
development and available for rent/sale 14,487,361 16,605,408
Invesiment properties for rent 14,551,072 14,920,772
Total 29,038,433 38,425,536 31,526,180  41,708,760"
Separate financial statements
30 September 2018 31 December 2017
Book value  Fairvalue  Book value Fair value
{in thousand Baht)
Investment properties under
development and available for rent/sale 4,521,659 5,194,750
Investment properties for rent 1,957,841 2,321,772
Total 6,479,500 10,273,647 7,516,522  11,508,967"

“As at 31 December 2017, fair value of investment propertics of the Group and the Company did not
include construction in progress which had book value of Baht 521.28 million and Baht 170.14 million,
respectively.

Measuremenl ol Fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of investment property was determined by external, independent property valuers, having
appropriate recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of

the property being valued.

The fair value measurement for investment property has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based
on the inputs to the valuation technique used.

Valuation technigue

Propertics type Valuation technique

Land Market price comparison.

Land, factory and warchouse  Income approach: Discounted cash flows; The valuation model
buildings considers the present value of net cash flows to be generated from the

property, taking into account expected rental growth rate, cccupancy
rate and long-term growth in real rental rates, The expected net cash
flows arc discounted using risk-adjusted discount rates. Among other
factors, the discount rate estimation considers the quality of factory and
warchouse buildings and its location, and lease terms,

Construction in progress Cost method.
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Motes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Investment properiies for rent under operating leases

The Company and the subsidiaries have operating lease agreements in respect of the lease of land,
factory and warehouse buildings. The terms of the agreements are between 4 months to 20 years. As at
30 September 2018 and 31 December 2017, future minimum rental income 1o be gencrated under these
operating leases is as follows.

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 31 30 3

September  December  September  December

2018 2017 2018 2017

(in thousand Balt)

Within one year 1,321,339 1,200,434 361,143 286,424
After one vear but not more than five years 3129513 2,700,152 574,810 432,584
Owver five years 2,073,620 1,903,929 123,278 22,687

Ceollateralised

As at 30 September 2018, investment properties for rent of the Group and the Company with a net book
value of Baht 3,070.60 million and Baht 221.88 million, respectively, (3] December 2017: Baht
2.631.17 million and Baht 222.41 million) have been pledged as collateral for bank overdralls, short-
term loans and long-term loans from financial institutions of the Company and (he subsidiaries.

Servituded invesiment properties

As at 30 September 2018, investment properties under development and available for rent/sale and part
of investment properties for renl of the Group and the Company comprise land under servitude of
approximately 308 rai and 18 rai, respectively (37 December 2017: 315 rai and 71 rai, respectively)
with a net book value of Baht 467.79 million and Baht 24.62 million, respectively (37 December 2017:
Baht 624.16 million and Baht 156.46 million, respectively).
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Motes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

15 Prepaid land rental

Leand remtal agreements

The Group entered into land rental agreements in order to develop factory and warehouse buildings for
rent as follows;

Projects Lessor Period Effective date
Bangplee 2 Chatyanan Bangplee 24 years 4 months to

Parkland Co., Ltd. 26 years 4 months 10 July 2013
Bangna KM.39 Pornchai Equipment Co.,

Ltd. 30 years | May 2014

Movements for the period starting from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018 and for the year ended
31 December 2017 were as [ollows;

Consolidated Separale
financial statements financial statements
For the For the
period from For the period from For the
1 January year 1 January year
2018 to ended 2018 to ended
30 3l 30 31
September December September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
(in thousand Baht)

Cost
At 1 January 785,039 788.039 - -
Decrease (1,356) . - -
At 30 September/ 31 December 786,683 788,039 - -
Amaortisation
At 1 January 134,639 103,847 - -
Amorlisation for the period/ year 23,0694 0792 - -
AL 30 September/ 31 December 157,733 134,639 - -
Net book value
1 January 653,404 684,192 - -
30 September/ 31 December 628,950 653,400 = =
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

The gross amount of the Group’s fully depreciated plant and equipment that was still in use as at 30
Seplember 2018 amounted to Baht 128.78 million (3! December 2017 Balt 125,75 million).

Separate inancial slatements

Furniture,
Tools and fixtures and
equipment equipment Vehicles Total
fire thowsaned Behi)

Cost
At 1 Januvary 2017 28.916 39,188 20,755 88,859
Additions 17 2,285 2,609 4,911
Disposals - {(811) {1.,516) {2,357)
At 31 December 2017 and

1 January 2018 28,933 40,062 21,818 91,413
Additions 37 1,992 - 2,029
Transfers 3 {5) - -
Disposals - (2,197) (10,429)  (12,626)
At 30 September 2018 28,975 401,452 11,359 80816
Depreciation
At 1 January 2017 24,413 34,441 15,438 74,292
Depreciation charpe for the year 2,399 2,118 2,238 6,753
Disposals - {783) (1,320) (2,103)
Al 31 December 2017 and

1 January 2018 26,812 35,774 16,356 78,942
Depreciation charge for the period 1,232 1,554 1,427 4213
Disposals - (1,939) (10,094) (12,033)
At 30 September 2018 28,044 35389 7689 71,122
Net book value
At 1 January 2017 4,303 4,747 5,317 14,567
Al 31 December 2017 and

1 January 2018 2,121 4,888 5,462 12,471
At 30 September 2018 031 5,063 3,7 9.694

The gross amount of the Company’s fully depreciated plant and equipment that was still in use up to 30
september 2018 amounted to Baht 56.49 million (31 December 2017: Bahi 59.56 million).

Collateralised
Asg al 30 September 2018, land and land improvement and buildings of the Group with a net book value of

Baht 13.75 million (37 December 2017: Balt 107 million) have been pledged as collaleral for bank
overdrafts, short-term loans and long-term loans from a financial institution of the subsidiary,

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform




Annual Report 2018

TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements

For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

17  Intangible assels

Consolidated Separale
financial statements financial statements
Software Software
Computer under Computer under
soflware installation Total software installation Total
{in thowsand Baht)
Cosr
AL T January 2017 31,954 - 31,954 25,093 - 25,093
Additions 161 8,267 £.428 87 4,998 5,085
At 31 December 2017
and 1 January 2018 zns 8,267 40,382 25,180 4,998 3,178
Additions 986 15,098 16,084 396 E.622 9,018
Tranafers 11,685 {11,685) - 6,264 (6,204) -
At 30 September 2018 44,786 11,680 56,406 31,840 7,356 39.1%6
Amntortisation
AL 1 January 2017 28,428 - 28,428 23,670 - 23,670
Amortisation [or the year T89 - 789 228 - 228
At 31 December 2017
and 1 January 2018 29,217 - 29,217 13,898 - 23,598
Amortisation for the
period 1,058 - 1,058 B 400 - 400
At 30 September 2018 30,275 - 30,275 24,298 - 24298
Net book value
At 1 January 2017 3,526 - 3,526 1,423 - 1,423
At 31 December 2017
and 1 Januvary 2018 2,898 8,267 11,165 1,252 4,998 6,280
At 30 September 2018 14,511 11,680 26,191 7,542 7,356 14,898
18 Deflerred Tax
Dieferred tax assets and liabilities as at 30 September 2018 and 31 December 2017 were as follows:
Consolidated
financial statements
Agsets Liahilities
30 il 30 31
September December September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
(in thousand Bah)
Total 293,495 296,173 (360,289) (342,934)
Set off of 1ax {90,100} (113,790) 96,100 113,790
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) 197,395 182,383 (264,189) (229,144)
Separate inancial stalements
Assels Liabilities
30 3 30 31
September December Seplember December
2018 2017 2018 2017
{in thousand Balt}
Total 28,978 66,132 {197,056) (214,596)
Set off of lax (28,978} (66,132) 28,978 66,132
MNet deferred tax liahilitics - - (168,078) {143,464)

The Leading Provider of
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Movements in total deferred tax assets and liabilities for the period from | Januwary 2018 to
30 September 2018 and for the year ended 31 December 2017 were as follows:

Consalidated financial statement

{Charged)/Credited to:
Other At
At 1 January comprehensive 30 September
2018 Profil or loss income 218
fin thowsand Baht)

Deferred tax assels
Trade accounts receivable

and other teceivables

(doubtful accommts) 4,125 . s 4,125
Inyesiment properlies 510 4,039 - 4,549
Non-current provisions for

employee benefit 7,913 87 - 8,000
Customer deposits 23,115 2,942 - 26,057
Cost of sales of properties 25,051 12,808 - 37,859
Unrealised gains on sales

of properties to associate 182,200 14,970 - 197,170
Loss carry forwand 45,099 (45,0949) - -
Others 8,160 7,575 . 15,735
Total 296,173 2,678) - 293,495
Deferred tax liabilities
Operating lease reeeivables (10,887) (777) - (11,664)
Financial lease receivables (8,143} {732) - (8,873)
Revenue from sales of

building under financial

leases {276,900} (133} - (277,039)
Change in usclul lives of

asscts (46,998) (13,687) n (60,685)
Depreciation of assets held

[or sale = (2,026) = i (2,026)
Total (342,934) (17,355) = (360,289)
Net (46,761) (20,033) ” (66,794)
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 Scptember 2018

Caonsolidated financial statement
(Charged VCredited 1o:
Other At
At 1 January comprehensive 31 December
2017 Profit or loss income 2017
fin thowsand Beahi)

Deferred tax assets
Trade accounts receivable

and other receivables

{doubtful accounis) 3.943 182 - 4,125
Investment properties - 510 - 510
Mon-current provisions for

employee benefit 8,400 1.614 (2,101} 7013
Customer deposits 18,984 4,131 - 23,115
Cost of sale of properties 22,163 2,888 - 25,051
Unrealised gain on sales of

properties to associate 184,645 {2.445) - 182,200
Loss carry forward - 45,099 - 45,099
Others 6,230 1,930 - g 8.160
Total 244,365 53,909 ,101) 296173
Deferred fax liabilities
Operating lease receivables {9,561) (1,326) - (10,887)
Financial lease receivables - (8,143) - (8,143
Revenue from sales building

under [inancial leases (275,233) {1,673) - (276,906)
Change in useful lives of

assets (22,556) (24,442) . (46,998)
Total (307,350) (35,584) - (342,934)
Net (62,985) 18,325 (2,101} (46.761)
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Deferred tax assets

Trade accounts receivable
and other receivables
(doubifid uccounts)

Investment properties

Non-current provisions for
emplovee benefit

Customer deposits

Loss carry forward

Others

Total

Deferred tax liabilities

Operating lease receivables

Revenue from sales building
under financial leases

Change in usciul lives of
assets

Depreciation of assets held
for sale

Tatal

Net

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform

Separate financial statement
{Charged /Credited to:

TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2013 to 30 September 2018

Cither At
At 1 January comprehensive 30 September
218 Profit or loss income 2018
(in thousand Baht)
2,526 . ; 2,526
510 3,065 - 3,575
5,124 (472) - 4,652
7.582 2167 - 9,749
45,0049 (45,099) & =
5,291 3,185 - B.476
66,132 (37,154) - 28,978
(1.700) 256 - (1,444)
{193,109) 24,779 - (168,330)
(19,787) (6,507) - (26,294}
- (988) - (988)
{214,396) 17.540 - {197.,056)
(148,464) {19.614) - {168,078)
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Separate financial statement

{Charged)Credited to:
Al Other At
1 Jannary comprehensive 31 December
2017 Profit or loss income 2017

Deferred itax asseis
Trade accounts receivable

and other receivables

{doubtfil accounts) 2377 149 - 2,526
Investment praperties - 510 - 510
Mon-current provisions for

employee benefit 5.431 904 (1,211 5124
Customer deposits 6,557 1,025 i 7.582
Loss carry forward - 45,009 - 45,009
Others ; 2875 2416 & e 5,291
Total 17,240 S0,103 {1,211) 66,132
Deferred tax liabilitiex
Operating lease receivables (2,244} 544 - {1,700}
Financial lease receivables (195,629) 2,520 - (193,100}
Change in useful lives of

assets (10,284) (9.503) . (19,787)
Total (208,157) (6,439) = (214,596)
Net (190,917) 43,664 (1.211) (1458.464)

In 2017, the subsidiary has the unused taxable losses amounting to Baht 105 million, on which deferred
tax assets have not been recognised. This is because the management considered that it is not probable
that future profit will be available against which the subsidiary can wtilise the benefit thereform.
The vnused tax losses will expire in 2022,
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

19  Interest-hbearing liabilities

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 31 30 il
September December  Scplember December
Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
fin thousand Baht)
Current
Current portion of long-term
loan from financial institution
Secured 126,749 - - -
Current portion of debentures
Unsecured 20 1,600,000 4,100,000 1,600,000 4,100,000
Current portion of financial lease
liabilities 235 1,628 - -
Total current interest-
hearing liabilitics 1,726,984 4,101,628 1,600,000 4,100,000
Non-current
Long-term loan from financial
institution
Secured 633.747 - - -
Debentures
Unsecured 20 12,620,000 $,220,000 12,620,000 0,220,000
Financial lease liabilities - 202 - -
Total non-current interest-
bearing liabilitiex 13,253,747 9,220,202 12,620,000 9,220,000

The periods to maturity of interest-bearing liabilities, e¢xcluding finance lease liabilities, as at 30
September 2018 and 31 December 2017 were as [ollows:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statemenis
30 31 30 31

September December  September  December

2018 2017 2018 2017

(in thousand Bahi)

Within one year 1,726,749 4. 100,000 1,600,000 4,100,000
After one year bul within Hve years 12,126,998 6,220,000 11,620,000 6,220,000
Afier five years 1,126,749 3,000,000 1,000,000 3,000,000
Taotal 14,980,496 13.320,000 14,220,000 13,320,000
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

MNotes to the financial statements

For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Secured interest-bearing liabilities as at 30 September 2018 and 31 December 2017 were secure on the
following assets with a net book value:

Consolidated Separale
financial statements financial statements
30 3 30 3l
September December Seplember December
2018 2m7 2018 2017
Note {Tn thousand Bakht)
Investment in Trust Il 74,217 - 126,115 -
Investment properties under
development and available
for rent/sale Ldial 1,657,672 1,800,672 75,147 80,190
Investment properties for rent 14¢b) 3,070,602 2,631,169 221,881 222,405
Property, plant and equipment 1a 13,746 1.069 - -
Total 4,516,237 4,432,910 423,143 302,595

As at 30 September 2018, the Group and the Company had unutilised credit facilities totalling Baht 1,214
million and Baht 225 million, respectively (37 December 2017; Bath 1,885 million and Baht 225 million,
respectively),

A subsidiary entered into a long-term Joan agreement with a financial institution with interest rate of MLR
minus {ixed rate per annum as specified in the agreement. The first installment will be repaid after 3 years
and 6 months from the first drawdown date according 1o the details of installment as specified in the
agrecment.

Under the agreement, the Company and the subsidiary must comply with certain conditions such as
maintaining debt to equily ratio as specified in the agreement. In addition, the Company issued a letier of
undertaking to the financial institution under the condition that the Company will remain as a major
sharcholder of the subsidiary of not less than 75 percent and will provide financial support to the subsidiary
until that subsidiary has settle its obligation as specified in the agreement.

The subsidiary had pledged investment properties under development and available for rent/sale, investment
properties for renl, and its future construction thereon with the financial institution as a guarantee for the
long-termy loan from the financial institution as specified in the agreement.

Finance leaxe Hahilites

Financial lease liabilities as at 30 September 2018 and 31 December 2017 were as follows

Consolidated financial statements

30 September 2018 31 December 2017 =
Present Present

Future value of Fulure value of
minimum minimum minimum minimuin

lease lease lease lease
payments Interest payments  paymenls [nterest payments

{in thousond Bakhi)
Within one year 250 15 235 1,727 99 1,628
After one year but

within five years - - - 218 16 202
Total 250 15 238 1,945 115 1,830
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

MNotes to the financial statemenits

For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

The subsidiaries entered into finance lease agreements [or rental of vehicles for use in their operations for
a period of 4 years. The subsidiary commilted o pay rental on a monthly basis.

20  Debentures

Significant detail of the debentures as at 30 September 2018 and 31 December 2017 were as follows:

Na. Tssue date

2/2011 § July 2011
62012 26 Seplember 2012
22013 15 May 2013
2/2013 15 May 2013
32013 12 September 2013
572013 18 October 2013
172014 17 January 2014
2/2014 18 July 2014
172015 19 January 2015
272015 L5 May 2015
2/2015 15 May 2015
32015 14 Aupust 2015
372015 14 August 2015
3/2015 14 August 2015
172016 18 May 2016
172016 18 May 2016
12018 14 March 2018
172018 14 March 2018
172013 14 March 2018

Maturity date

8 July 2018

26 September 2022
15 May 2018

15 May 2020

12 September 2018
18 October 2019

17 January 2019

18 July 2021

19 January 2018

15 May 2019

15 May 2022

14 August 2018

14 August 2020

14 August 2023

18 May 2020

18 May 2023

14 March 2021

14 March 2023

14 March 2028

f¥ear) % per annum)

LA Ll =] o 08 Uh L) =] e W =] Wh ShoLA =] LA

—
=

Separate/Consolidated
financial statements
a0 3l

Seplember December

Triterest vate 2018 2017

fin million Balx)

4,78 e isn
4,90 1,000 1,000
4,00 - 1,200
4,30 00 500
473 - 300
4.85 620 620
1.71 &00 600
4,80 800 800
3.08 - 1,550
291 1,004 1.000
3.69 1,004 1,000
2.44 - 700
322 G000 600
4.03 T00 700
2.29 100 100
3.35 2,300 2,300

2.20 1,500 =

2.75 2,500 -

3.58 _Loon -
14,220 13,320

Movements during the period from | January 2018 to 30 September 2018 and for the year ended 31
December 2017 of debentures were as follows:

At 1 January
Increase
Decrecase

At 30 September/ 31 December

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform

Separate
{ Consolidated
financial statements
For the
periad from For the
1 January 2018 year ended 31
to 30 December
September 2018 2017
fin thousand Baht)
13,320,000 17,340,000
5,000,000 -
(4.100,000% (4,020,000)
14,220,000 13,320,000
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

21

21

The periods to maturity of debentures as at 30 September 2018 and 31 December 2017 were as follows:

Nate

Separate

{ Consolidated
financial statements

30

September

Debentures matured within one year 19

2018

31
December
207

{in thousand Bahi}

1,600,000

Debentures matured after one year 19 12,620,000

4,100,000
9,220,000

Total 14,220,004}

13,320,000

As at 30 September 2018, the Company had the outstanding balance of debentures amounting to Baht
14,220 million (3! December 2017: Bakt 13,320 million). The debentures are name specified,
unsubordinated, and unsecured, which were sold at the price of Baht 1,000 per unit and had a face value
of Baht 1,000 each. The interest will be repaid in every 6 months, The Company must comply with certain
conditions and maintain its debt-to-cquity ratio based on the specific conditions over the term of the

debentures.

Trade accounts payable

Consolidated Separate financial
financial statements statements
30 3] a0 3l

September  December September December

2018 2017 2018 2017

{in thowusand Bahi)
Other parties 99,011 93,572 24,328 19,631
Other payables
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial stutements
Naote 30 31 30 31

September  December  September December

2018 2017 2018 2m7

{in thowsand Baht)
Related parties 4 4,414 34 6,787 37,789
Others
Accrued interest expenses 103,529 135,712 103,663 135,712
Accrued bonus 70,362 45,620 44 764 20 874
Acerued operating expenses 56,820 9.513 16,826 4,587
Accrued property tax 44,495 9,597 16,425 6.857
Taotal 280,020 238,195 188,465 214,819
The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the period from | January 2018 to 30 September 2018

23  Non-current provisions for employee benefit

194

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 31 30 31
September ~ December  September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
{in thousand Baht)
Statement of financial position
Non-current provisions for:
Post-employment benefits 40,000 39,560 23,260 25,620
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
For the For the For the For the
period from Year period from Year
I January ended | January ended
2018 10 30 k]| 2018 to 30 3l
Seprember December September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
fint thowsand Bahi)
Statement of comprehensive income:
Recognised in profit or loss:
Post-employment benelits 1,582 8.186 (1,212) 4,579
Reeognised in other comprehensive
income:
Actuarial gain recognised in the period / year - (10.504) - {6.054)
Cumulative actuarial gains recognised (5,685) {5,685) (3,380) (3.336)
Defined henefit plan

The Group and the Company operate a defined benefit plan based on the requirement of Thai Labour
Protection Act B.E 1998 to provide retirement benefits to employees based on pensionable remuneration

and length of service.

The defined benefit plans expose o actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, inferest rate risk and market
{investment} risk.

The Leading Provider of
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the linancial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations.

Consolidated Separate
financial staternents financial stalements
For the For the For the For the
period from Year Period from Year
1 January ended 1 January ended
2018 0 30 31 2018 10 30 31
September December September December
2018 2017 2018 207
{in thousand Baht)
At 1 January 39,566 41,998 25,620 27,152
Include in profit or loss:
Current service cost 1,537 7318 (964) 4,070
Interest on obligation 45 868 (248) 509
1,582 8,186 (1,212} 4,579
Included in other comprehensive
income
Actuarial gain - (10,504) e {6,054}
- (10,504) - {6,054)
Other
Benefit paid {1,148) (114} (1.148) (57)
(1,148) (113) (1,148) (57)
At 30 September/ 31 December 40,40 39,566 23,260 25,620

Actuarial gaing recognised in other comprehensive income arising from:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
For the For the For the For the
period from Year period from Year
| January ended | January ended
2018 to 30 k| 2018 to 30 k]|
September December September December
2018 017 2018 017
{in thowsand Bali)
Demaographic assumptions 1,143 - 808
Financial assurnptions 1,607 - 694
Experience adjustment 7,754 4,552
Total 10,504 = 6,054

The Leading Provider of
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 (o 30 September 2013

Actuarial asstumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted
averages):

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
3t 31 30 3l

September December September  December

2018 2017 2018 2017

(#3)
Discount rale 213 -2.76 2.13-2.76 2.13 2.13
Future salary growth 3.0-540 3.0-5.0 30-50 3.0-50
Staff turnover rate (depending on age)

Head office 0.0-27.0 0.0-27.0 0.0-220 00 -220
Site 0.0 -64.0 0.0 - 64.0 0.0-64.0 0.0 - 64.0

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.

As at 30 September 2018, the weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation of the Group
and the Company were 8.4 - 15,6 years and 8.4 years, respectively (2017: 8.4 - 15.6 years and 8.4 years,
respectively).

Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding

other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown
below.

Consolidated Separate
Ninancial stalements financial statements
Increase Decrease Increase Decreasc
(in thousand Baht)
At 30 September 2018
(1% movenent)
Discount rate (3.642) 4283 {1,507) 1,733
Future salary growth 4,552 (3.941) 1,903 {1.689)
Staff turnover rate (3,875) 2,061 (1,614} ang
At 31 December 2017
(1% movement)
D¥iscount rate {3,544} 4,168 ([,696) 1,952
Future salary growth 4,020 {3,497) 1,877 (1,668)
Staff turnover rate {3,773) 2,035 {1,816} 1,006

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan,
it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.
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24 Share capital

Par value 2018 2017
per share Number Amount Number Amount
{in Baht) (thowsand shares / in thousand Bahi)
Auathorised
ALl January
- ordinary shaves 1 2,751,214 2,751,214 1,834,142 1,834,142
Increase of new shares 1 _ - - 917,072 917,072
At 30 September/
31 December
= ordinary shares 1 2,751,214 2,751,214 2,751,214 2,751,214
Isswed and pald-up
Al 1 January
- ordinary shares 1 1,834,142 1,834,142 1,099,142 1,009,142
[ssue of new shares 1 - - 735,000 735.000
At 30 September/
31 December
- ordinary shares 1 1,834,142 1,834,142 1,834,142 1,834,142

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

At the annual general meeting of shareholders of the Company held on 27 March 2018, the shareholders
approved the extension of the period for the allocation of newly-issued ordinary shares of the Company
of 917.07 million shares under the General Mandaie by offering o the existing shareholders
proportionately and/or public offering. The Company shall complete the allocation of the newly-issued
sharcs within the date of the annual general mecting of sharcholders of 2019,

On 16 January 2017, the Company received payment of share subscription from allotment of 735 million
shares at Baht 18 per share, totalling Baht 13,230 million from Frasers Property Holdings {Thailand}
Company Limited. The Company registered the increase in share capital with the Ministry of Commerce
on 16 January 2017,

At the annual general meeting of shareholders of the Company held on 24 April 2017, the shareholders
approved the increase in registered share capital under a General Mandate from Baht 1.834.14 million to
Baht 2,751.21 million by issuing 917.07 million ordinary shares at Baht 1 per share. The Company
registered the increase in registered share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 15 May 2017,

Share preminm
Section 51 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 requires companies to sel aside share subscription

monies received in excess of the par value of the shares issued to a reserve account (*share premium™).
Share premium is not available for dividend distribution.
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25

26

Reserves
Reserves comprise:

Apprapreiations of profit
Legal reserve

Scetion 116 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 Section 116 requires that a public company shall
allocate not less than 5% of its annual net profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward, to a reserve
account (“legal reserve™), until this account reaches an amount not less than 10% of the registered
authorised capital. The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution,

Other components of equity
Currency translation differences

The currency translation differences account within equity comprises all foreign currency differences
arising from the translation of the {inancial statements of foreign operations, as well as from the translation
of liabilitics that hedge the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation.

Sepment information

The Group has four reportable segments, as described below, which are the Group’s stralegic divisions,
The strategic divisions offer different services, and are managed separately becanse they require ditferent
technology and markeling stralegics. For each of the strategic divisions, the chief operating decision
maker (CODM) reviews internal management reports on at least a quarterly basis. The following
summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments.

e Sepment]  The development of investment properties - factories

o Segment?  The development of investment properties - warehouses
o Segment3  The provision of services

s Segment 4 The general management fee

Information regarding the results of cach reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured
based on segment profit before tax, as included in the internal management reports that arc reviewed by
the Group’s CODM. Segment profit before tax is used to measure performance as management believes
that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the resulis of cerlain segments relative to other
entities that operate within these industries.

Geographical segments

The Group is managed and operates principally in Thailand. There are no material revenues derived from,
in foreign countries,

Major customer
Revenues from three customers of the Group’s | and 2 segments for the period from 1 Janvary 2018 to

30 September 2018 represents approximately Baht 2,2019.52 million (for the vear ended 2047. Baht
269.71 million from one customer) of the Group’s total revenues.
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Reconcilintions of reportable yegment profit or loss and asseis and liabifities

Profit
Total profit before income tax for reportable scpments
Unallocated amounts

Other income

Distribution costs and administrative expenses

Depreciation

Finance costs

Share of profits of investrments in associates and

Jjoint ventures

Unrealised gains on sales of properties to associate

Profil hefore income tax

Assets

Total assets for reportable segments

Other assets

Investments in associates and joint ventures
Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Total liabilitics for reportable sepments
Other liabilitics

Consolidated total liabilities

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform

For the
period from For the
| January year
2018 1o ended
30 September 31 December
2018 2017
fin million Baht)
1,667 1,347
158 212
(644) (567)
(150) (219
(415) (571)
196 275
{102) -
710 477
30 September 31 December
2018 2017
(in million Bahi)
38,440 36,932
352 201
4,207 3,849
42,999 40,982
17,615 16,046
4 2
17,619 16,048
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27  Other income

Management fee income

Property tax income

Met gain on disposal of building and
equipment

Consulting income

Gain on disposal of investments in associates

Others

Total

28

Administrative expenses

Opcrating lease expenscs

Repair and maintenance expenses
Employee henefit expenses
Properly tax

Consulting fees

Loss on impairment of assets
Others

Total

Consolidated Separate
financial siatements financial statemenis
For the For the

period from Forthe  period from  Forthe
1 January year | Tanuary Vear
2018 to ended 2018 1o ended
30 31 30 31
Seplember  December September December
2018 2017 2018 2017
fin thouwsarnd Bafit)
- - 91,261 10,189
51,791 19,923 25,585 g1ll6
20,975 1,118 1,341 1,089
8,921 5413 240 -
- 5,029 - 6,408
13,697 28,521 19,933 35,263
95,384 60,004 138,360 61,065
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
For the For the
period from For the period from For the
1 Januwary vear 1 January year
2018 to coded 2018 10 ended
30 3 30 31
September December Septemnber December
2018 2017 2018 2017
fin thousand Baht)
57,530 76,104 24,997 31,736
49,783 67,507 10,802 17,371
281,163 264,816 184,037 157,200
90,591 36,007 28,134 9,158
26,338 23,391 18,119 14,558
20,195 2,048 21,755 16,111
87,373 6,561 48,604 64,646
612,973 530,934 336,448 310,780
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29 Employee benefit expenses

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
For the For the
period from  For the period from For the
1 January year 1 January year
2018 to ended 2018 to ended
30 3 30 31
September December  September December
2018 2m7 2018 2017
(in thousand Baht)
Salarics and wages 254,520 243,568 165,512 145,175
Defined benefit plan 1,582 8,180 (1,212} 4,579
Others 25,061 13,062 19,737 7,446
Total 281,163 264,816 184,037 157.200

Defined contribution plam

The defined contribution plan comprises a provident fund established by the Group for its employees.
Membership to the fund is on a voluntary basis. Contributions are made monthly by the employees at
rates ranging from 3% to 15% (31 December 2017:2% to 4%) of their salanes and by the Group at rates
ranging from 5% to 7% (3] December 2017: 2% to 4%) ol the employees® basic salaries. The provident

fund is registered with the Ministry of Finance as juristy entities and is managed by a licensed Fund
Manager.

30 Expense by nature

The financial statements include an analysis of expenses by function. Expenses by nature disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of various TFRS were as follows

Consolidated Secparate
financial statements financial statements
For the For the
period from For the period from For the
1 January year 1 January year
2018 1o ended 2018 to ended
30 31 30 3]
Soptember December  September December
2018 2017 2018 2007
fin thousand Baht)
Employee benefit cxpenscs 281,163 264,816 184,037 157,200
Depreciation and amortisation 406,877 530,674 78,493 108,957
Repair and maintenance 49,783 67,507 10,802 17.371
Operating lease expense 57,530 76,104 24,997 31,736
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31 Income tax cxpensc

Income tax recognised in prafit or loss

Consolidated Separate
financial siatements linancial siatemenis
FFor the For the
period rom  Forthe  period from  For the
1 January year | Januvary yenr
2018 to ended 2018 to ended
30 31 30 31
September  December  September  Decomber
Note 2018 2017 2018 07
{in thousand Bahi)
Current tax expense
Current vear 27,721 9,643 10,116 -
Adjustmoent for prior years Z08 3,637 - -
21,929 13,280 10,116 -
Deferred tax expense i3
Movements in temporary differences 20,033 {18.325) 19,614 {43,664)
Total income tax expense (henefit) 41,962 (5,045) 29,730 {43,6064)

Tncome tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Consolidated financial statcments
For the period from

1 January 2018 10 For the year ended

30 September 2018 31 December 2017
Tax Tax
Beforc {cxpense) Met of Before {expense) Met of
tax benefit tax tax benefit tax
{in thousand Baht)
Defined benefit plan
actuarial gains - - - 10,504 (2,101) 8.403
Total = = - 104,504 {2,101) 5.403
Scparate financial statements
For the period from
1 January 2018 to For the year ended
30 September 2018 31 December 2017
Tax Tax
Before (expense) Net of Before {expense) et of
tax benefit tax tax benefit tax
(trr thensand Balit)
Defined benefit plan
actuarial gains - - - 0,054 (1,211) 4,843
Total - - - 6,054 (1,211} 4,843
it \ 203
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Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Consolidated linancial statements

204

| January 2018 to For the year ended
30 September 2018 31 December 2017
fin fin

Rate thousand Rate thousand

(%) Baht) (%) Balu)
Profit before income tax expense 20.00 709,626 20.00 477,356
Income tax using the Thai corporation tax rate 141,925 95,471
Income not subject to tax

- dividend income from associates (38,257) -

- promotional privileges (35,508) (466)
Expenses nol deductible for tax purposes 13,222 91,649
Reeognition of previously unrecognised tax losses (39.628) {195,336)
Under provided in prior years 208 3,637
Total 5.91 41,962 (1.06) (5,045)

30 September 2018 31 December 2017
{in (in
Rate thousand Rate thousand
{%4) Baht) {?5) Baht)
Profit hefore income tax expense 20.00 ] 94&-‘15 20.00 2,903,927
Income tax using the Thai corporation tax rate 38,869 580,785
Income not subject to tax
- dividend income from subsidiarics and associales (9,790} (456.604)
- promoltional privileges - (466)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 651 27,957
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - (195,336)
Total 1530 29,730 (1.50) {43,664}

Inicome tax reduction

For the period from

Separate financial statements

For the period from
[ January 2018 to

For the year ended

Revenue Code Amendment Act No. 42 B.E. 2559 dated 3 March 2016 grants a reduction of the corporate
income tax rate to 20% of net taxable profit for accounting periods which begin on or aller 1 January 2016.
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32 Promotional privileges

By virtue of the provistons of the Industrial Investment Promotion Act of B.E. 1977, the Group has been
granted privileges by the Board of Investment relating lo building development for factories and/or
warehouses. The privileges granted include:

{a) Exemption from payment of income tax for certain operations for a period of three to eight years
from the date on which the income is first derived from such operations;

(b} A 50% reduction in the normal income tax rate on the net profit derived from certain operations
for a period of five years, commencing from the expiry date in (a) above;

As promoted companies, the Group must comply with certain terms and conditions prescribed in the
promotional certificates.
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Fyr the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Summary of revenue from promoted and non-promoted businesses:

Rental and related
service revenug
Revenue from
rendering of
services
Revenne from sales
of properties
Utilities revenue
Management fee
income from
associates
Interesl inemne
Realised gain on sales
of properties
Other meome
Total revenue

Rental and related
SEIVICE Fevenue
Bevenue from
rendering of
SCrVICes
Bevenue from sales
of properties
Utilities revenue
Dividend income
Management fee
income from
associates
Interest income
Other income
Tolal revenne

The Leading Provider of
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Consolidated Onancial statements

For the period from
{ January 2018 to For the year ended
30 September 2018 31 December 2017
Promoted Non- Promaoied M-
husi- promoted busi- promoted
nesses businesses Total nesses businesses Total
fin thousand Baht)
323,162 827,701 1,150,863 456,188 916,415 1,372,603
- 55,581 55,581 - 80,883 £0,983
Q5616 1,303,949 2.209,565 - 194,358 194 358
- 15,984 5,984 - 36,594 36,594
- 226,897 226,897 - 239,153 239,153
i 60,286 &4, 286 . 103,246 101,246
- 2,693 2,693 - 48,302 48,302
=  953B4 95 384 - 60,004 60,004
1.228,77H 2,548,475 3,517,253 456,158 1,678,955 2,135,143
Separate financial statements
For the period [rom
1 January 2018 to For the year ended
30 September 2018 31 December 2017
Promoted Non- Promoted Non-
busi- promoted busi- promoted
nesses businesscs Tenal Nnesses businesses Total
fin thousand Baht)
70,256 225 508 295,804 76,352 2RO, 7 357,055
F 22,355 22,355 - 21,349 23,349
23,641 470,555 503,196 - 166,358 166,358
- 4,708 4,708 - 7120 7,120
- 55,899 55,899 - 2,772 640 2.772.640
& & - - 141,916 141,916
- 454,752 459,752 - 504,082 504,082
. 138,360 138,360 - &61,065 61,063
93,937 1,386,137 1,480,074 76,352 3,957,233 4,033,585
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33

Basic earnings per share

The caleulations of basic eamnings per share for the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018
and for the year ended 31 December 2017 were based on the profit for the period/year attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period/year as follows:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements finnncial statements
For the For the

period from For the period from For the
1 January year 1 January year
201810 ended 2018 to ended
30 3l 30 3l
September December September December
2018 2017 2018 2017

{in thousand Bakt /thousand shares)
Profit attributable to ordinary

shareholders of the Company

{basic) 657,349 480,006 164.615 1,947,591
Number of ordinary shares

outstanding at 1 January 1,834,142 1,099,142 1,834,142 1,099,142
Effect of shares issued

on 16 January - 704,795 - 704,795
Weighted average number of

ordinary shares

outstanding (basic) 1,834,142 1,803,937 1,834,142 1,803,937
Earnings per share (basic)

(in Bahi) 0.36G 0.27 0.09 1.63

Dividend

Al the annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on 27 March 2018, the
sharcholders approved the appropriation of dividend of Baht 0.10 per share, amounting to Baht 183.41
million and appropriation of legal reserve of Baht 147.36 million. The dividend was paid to shareholders
in April 2018.

At the annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on 24 April 2017, the
sharcholders approved the appropriation of dividend of Baht (.08 per share, amounting to Baht 146.73
million. The dividend was paid to sharcholders in May 2017,
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35 Financial instruments

Financial risk management poficles

The Group is exposed to normal business risks from changes in market interest rates and from non-
performance of contractual obligations by counterparties. The Group does not hold or issue derivative

financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Group. The Group has a system of controls in
place to create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of managing the
risks. The management continually monitors the Group’s risk management process to ensure that an

appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.

Capital management

The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board monitors the return
on capital, which the Group defines as result from operating activities divided by total shareholders®
equity, excluding non-controlling interests and also monilors the level of dividends to ordinary

sharcholders,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fulure movements in market interest rates will affect the results of the
Group’s pperations and its cash flows because loan interest rates are mainly fixed. The Group is
primarily exposed to interest rate risk from its borrowing (see note19). The Group mitigates this risk by

ensuring that the majority of its borrowing are at fixed interest rates.

The effective interest rates of loans receivables as at 30 September 2018 and 31 December 2017 and the

periods in which the loans receivables mature or re-price were as follows:

Consolidaied financial statements
Efective Afler 1 year
interest Within 1 but within 5 After 5

rate year years years Total
(% per
TR {in million Baht)
30 September 2018
Current
Short-term loans to
related parties 10.00 144 - - 144
31 December 2017
Current
Short=term loans 1o
related parties 10.00 145 - - 145
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Separate financial statements

Effective After 1 year
inferest Within | but within 5 After 5
rate year YEars years Total
i per
annum) {in million Baht)
3 Seprember 2018
Non-current
Long-term loans to
related parties 4.48 - 4.88 10,611 93 - 10,704
31 December 2017
Non-curreat
Long-term loans to
related parties 3.78-4.84 - 12,659 - 12,659

The effective interest rates of imterest-bearing financial liabilities as at 30 September 2018 and
31 December 2017 and the periods in which those liabilities mature or re-price were as follows:

Consolidated financial statements

Effective After | year
interest Within 1 but within 5 Afier 5
rate year years years Total
%4 per
annum) {in miflion Behi)

30 September 2018
Current
Current portion of

long-term loans from

financial institution 425 127 - - 127
Current portion of debentures 3.58% 1,600 - - 1,600
MNon-current
Long-term loans from

finaneial institution 4,25 - 507 127 634
Debentures 358 - 11.620 1,000 12,620
Tolal 1,727 12,127 1,127 14,981
31 December 2017
Current
Current portion of debentures 3.82 4,100 - - 4,100
Non-current
Debentures 3.82 - 6,220 ooy 9,220
Total 4,100 6,220 3,004 13,320
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Separate financial statements

Effective After 1 year
interest Within 1  but within 5 After 5
rate year years vears Total
(%6 per
anmim) {in million Baki)
30 September 2018
Current
Current portion of debentures 3.5% 1,600 - - 1,600
Non-current
Debentures 3.58 - 11,624 1,006 12,620
Total 1,600 11.624 1. 1HH) 14,220
31 December 2017
Current
Current porlion of debentures 382 4.100 - - 4,100
Non-current
Debentures 3.82 - 6,220 3,000 0,220
Total . 4,100 6,220 3,000 13,320

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or counterparty to seitle
its financial and contractual obligations (o the Group as and when they fall due.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. At the
reporting date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of finaneial position.
However, due to the large number of parties comprising the Group’s customer base, Management does
not anticipate material losses from its debt collection.

Liguidity risk

The Group maonitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows.
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Carrying amount and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, It does not include fair value information for
financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

Consolidated financial stalements
Carrying Fair value
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in million Baks)

30 September 2018
Financial aysets and financial
fiabilities rnot measured af
Jir value
Financial lease receivables 300 - - 300 300
Long-term loan from financial
institutiom 760 -

= 760 760
Debentures 14,220 - 14,3940

14,390

31 December 2017

Financial asseis and financial
liakilities not meayured at
fair value

Financial lease receivables in - - 311 311

Finanecial lease liabifities 2 -

Debentures 13,320 - 13,709 - 13,709

Separated financial statements
Carrying Fair value
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
{in million Balt)

30 September 2018

Financial assets and financial
lighilities not measiared af
fair value

Long-term loans to 10,704 - - 10,870 10,870
related parties

Debentures 14,220 - 14,390 - 14,390

31 December 2017

Financial assets and financial
fiabilitics not measured af
fair value

Long-term loans to 12,659 - = 12,757 12,757
related parties

Debentures 13,320 - 13,709 - 13,709

Fair value of other current finance assets and liabilities are taken to approximate the carrying value due
to the relatively short-term maturity.

Fair value of other non-current finance assets and liabilities except the table above is taken to
approximate the carrying value because most of these financial instruments bear interest at market rates.
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Measurement of Fair value
Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputy,
Financial mstruments not measured at fair value

Type Valuation fechnigue Significant unobservable inputs
Long-term loan from

financial institution

and long-term loans

1o related parties Discounted cash flows Discounted rate
Debentures Market price Discounted rate

36 Commitments with non-related parties

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
{in thousand Bahi)
Capital commitmernts
Contracted but not provide for:
Agreements with contractors 240,248 04,501 13,740 28019
Agreements for consulting ~ 30,679 33,590 - =
Total 270,927 128,001 13,740 28,019
Future minimum lease paymerns
under non-cancellable
operating leases
Within one year 9164 20,044 9,164 12,605
After one year but within five years 36,655 36,655 36,655 36,653
Afier five years 27.966 30,648 27 966 30,648
Total 73,785 87,347 73,785 79,908
Ocher commitment
Bank guarantees 49,803 53.304 27,527 27,842
Contractor agreements

The Company and subsidiaries cntered into contractor agreements with various domestic companies for
the construction its factory and warchouse buildings. The Group agreed to pay construction costs
totalling Baht 394.65 million. The agreements will expire in December 2018

Service agreemient

The subsidiary entered into a service agreement with a domestic company to receive the consulting
serviee for the construction of standard factories for rent. The Group agreed to pay a service fee totalling
Baht 40 million as specified in the agreement.

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform

212




Annual Report 2018

TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

37

Rental agreements

The Company and subsidiaries had commitments in respect of six contracts made with “Industrial Estate
Authority of Thaitand™ to rent land for the construction of standard factories for rent. These agreements
are summarised as follows:

Contract No. Contract period Fees ot
21/2538-Nor Chor 13 December 1995 - 12 December 2025 Baht 4.70 million per annum  {a)
14/2540-Nor Chor 14 November 1997 - 13 November 2027 Baht 0,66 million per annum  {a)
8/2542-MNor Chor 18 August 1999 - 17 August 2029 Baht 2.2]1 million per annum  (a)
9/2544-Nor Chor 6 June 2001 - 31 December 2018 Baht 5.59 million per annum  (b)

MNor Chor Kor 002/2548 25 January 2005 - 31 December 2018 Baht 0.75 million per anoum (k)
MNor Chor, (05/2549 25 April 2006 - 31 December 2018 Baht 2,08 million per annum (b}

(a) The rental fee will be raised every ten years, at the rate of not more than 109 of the previous fee
{b) The rental fee will be raised every five years, at the rate of not more than 10% of the previous fee

Bank guaranfees

As at 30 September 2018, the Group had deposits at a financial institution of Baht (.24 million
(31 Becember 2017: Baht 0.24 million) which are pledged with the financial mstitutions as collateral
for letters of credit, trust receipt credit lines with pre-settlement risk lines and letters of guarantees issued
in favor of a govermment entity, a state enterprise and private companies,

Evenls after the reporting period

On 17 October 2018, TRA Land Development Co., Ltd,, an associate of the Group, participated in the
avction for 215 vacant plots of land for a total land area pursvant to the Title Deeds of 4,315 rai, 22.05
square wah, which are located at Bang Na-Trad Road KM.32, Bang Bo District, Samut Prakan Province.
The associate won the bidding with the total bidding amount of Baht 8,914.07 million.

In this regard, the associate entered into a sale and purchase agreement whereby the associate would
complete the transfer of ownership in such avetioned land by 1 February 2019,

At the Board of Directors’ meeting held an 19 November 2018, the Board approved the allotment of
net profit of the Company for the peried from | Januvary 2018 to 30 September 2018 for dividend
payment at Baht .27 per share. The payment will be made on 7 February 2019,

Al the Board of Directors” meeting of a subsidiary held on 19 November 2018, the Board approved the
ratification in investment in shares of Bangpakong Logistics Park Company Limited, which has
principal businesses of sale, rent or sub-lease whether direct or indirect of land, factories, warehouses
and/or buildings and/or other propertics with registered capital of Baht 1 million, divided into 100,000
shares at Baht 10 per share, representing 99.99% of shareholding,
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2013 to 30 September 2018

38

(@)

(b)

(c)

39

Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) not yet adopted

A number of new and revised TFRS which relevant to the Group’s operations are expected to have
significanl impact on the consolidaled and separate (inancial stalements on the date ol initial application.
Those TFRS become effeetive For annual financial reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January of
the following years.

TFRS Topie Effective
TFRS 7* Financial Instruments: Disclosures 2020
TFRS 9* Financial Instruments 2020
TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 2019
TFRS 16 Leases 2020
TAS 32+ Financial Instruments: Presentation 2020
TFRIC 16* Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation 2020
TFRIC 19+ Extinguishing Financial Liabilitics with Equity 2020
Instruments

* TFRS - F'inancial instruments standards
TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

TFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised. Revenne should be recognised when {or as) an entily transfers control over goods
or services to a customer, measured at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled.

Management is presently considering the potential impact of adopting and initially applying TFRS 15
on the consolidated and separate hinancial stalements,

TFRS in relation to Financial instriments standards

These TFRS establish requirements related to definition, recognition, measuremenl, impairment and
dercengnition of [inaneial assels and Ninancial liabilities, including accounting for derivatives and hedpe
accounting,

Management is presently considering the potential impact of adopting and initially applying
TFRS - Finaneial instruments slandards on the consolidaled and separate inancial stalements,

TFERS 16 Leases

TFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use
asscl representing its right to vse the underlying assel and a leasc liability representing its obligation o
make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value
iteins. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard, i.e. lessors continue to ¢lassify leases
as finance or operating leases.

Management is presently considering the polential impact of adepting and initially applying TFRS 16
on the consolidated and separate financial statements.

Reclassification of accounts

Certain accounts in the 2017 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the presentation
in the financial statement for the period from | January 2018 to 30 September 2018 as follow:
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements

For the period from 1 January 2018 te 30 September 2013

Statement of financial posifion
as at 31 Pecember 20017
Trade and other receivables
Trade accounts receivable
Other receivables
Advances [or construction
Withholding tax deducted
al source
Other current assets
Deferred tax assets
Withholding tax deducted
al source
Trade and other payables
Trade accounts pavable
Other payables
Current portion of
nnearned land rental
meome
Other current labilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Surplus from changes
in ownership interests
in subsidiaries
Other components of equily

Statemens of income
Jor the year ended
31 December 2067

Dividend imcome from
subsidiarics

Dividend income from
associates

Dividend income

Realised gain on sales of

propertics

Other income

Administrative expenscs

Other expenses

Share of profit from

investments in
associates

Share of profits from
inveslments in joint
venlures

Share of profits of
associntes and joint
ventures

Consolidated
financial statements

Before
reclass,

724,725

4,603

244 489
60,352

331,767

458,359
46,761

48,522
{38,075)

5,029
54,975
527,042
1,802

274,635

Tal

Reclass,

(724,725)
61,580

638,808
(8,603)

(242,451)
(17.060)
182 383

242451
331,767
(93,572)

(238,195)

(50,196)
50,196
(182,383)

(48,522)

48,522

5,029
(5,029)
3,892
(3,892)

(274,6535)

(761)

275416

2017
Separate
finanelial statements
After Before After
reclnss, reclss. Reclass, reclass,
{in thousand Baht)
- 641,392 (641,392) -
61,580 - 1810 BR10
688,808 - 645 941 645,941
- 3774 {3,774) -
20538 76,902 (76,992) -
43,292 15,142 (9.591) 3,551
182,383 - - -
242,451 - T6,592 76,992
. 234,450 234,450 =
93,572 = (19.631) 19,631
238,195 - (214,819} 214,819
50,196 E (18,235) 18,235
408,163 38,998 18,235 20,763
224 144 148,464 - 148 464
10,447 - . s
i 2,090,800 2,090,800 -
- 681,840 681,840 -
% - (2,772,640) 2,772,640
- 6,048 6,048 -
60,004 54,657 (6,048) 61,065
530,934 293 860 16,920 310,780
- 16,920 (16,920) -
275,416 - 2 a
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 (o 30 September 2018

The reclassification has been made because, in the opinion of management, the new classification is
more appropriate to the Group’s business,

40 Supplementary information

As described in Nole 2(e), change in accounting period, the consolidated and separate financial
glatements for the period rom 1 January 2018 io 30 September 20018 have been firstly prepared and
presented for the period from | January 2018 to 30 September 2018, in accordance with the required
format of the financial statements presentation.

I'or the benelit of the users in comparing and analysing the Gnancial information, the Group and the
Company have prepared the supplementary inforimation in the form of the unaudited consolidated and
separate statements of income and comprehensive income, cash flows and segment information for the
period from 1 January 2017 to 30 September 2017, as details below:

Statement of income Consolidated Separate
financial statements fimancial statements
For the nine-month period ended 30 September 2018 2017 2018 2017
(Unaundited) {Unaudited)
{in thousand Bahi)

Revenue
Rental and related service revenue 1,150,563 1,043,348 295 804 266,415
Revenue from rendering of services 55,581 77,343 22,355 16,9587
Revenue from sales of properties 2,200 565 148,508 503,196 148,568
Urilities revenue 15,984 28,782 4708 5,275
Management fee income from associales 226,897 146,327 - 91,300
Dividend income - = 35,899 2,316,063
Interest income 60,286 69,3873 459,752 343,971
Realised gain on sales of properties 2,693 - - -
CHher income 95,384 37,565 138,360 33,951
Total revenue 3,817,253 1,551,316 1,480,074 3,222,530
Expenses
Cost of rental and related services 343,530 317,411 52,277 45,010
Cost of rendering of services 42 305 59,153 19023 14,757
Cost of sales of propertics 1,593,529 539,400 419,083 59,400
Tlulities costs 11,432 25,585 3,554 4,303
Distribution costs 32,058 31,154 10,266 7,262
Administrative cxpenses 612,973 336,477 336,448 194,936
Depreciation 150,407 162,555 45,367 52,546
Finance costs 414952 445458 399,721 153,368
Total expenses 3,201,186 1,457,193 1,285,729 827,582
Share of profits of associates and joint ventures 195,564 173,578 - -
Unrealised gains on sales of properties

to associates (102,005) o - .
Profit before income tax expense 709,626 267,701 194,345 2,594,948
Tncome tax expenses {41,962) {20,956 {(29.730) {4,333)
Prafit for the period a67, 604 © 246,745 164,615 2.390.615
Profit attributable to:

Crwners of the parent £57,349 244,911 164,615 2,390,815
Non-controlling interests 10,315 1,834 - =
Profii for the period 607,604 246,745 164,615 2,3HL615
Basic earninps per share (in Bahi) 0.36 n.14 .09 1.33
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

MNotes to the linancial statements

For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2013

Statement of comprehensive income
For the nine-month period cnded 30 September

Profit for the period
Item that will be reclassificd subscquently to
profit or loss
Exchange differences on translating foreipn
operations
Taotal item that will be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss

Oiher comprehensive income for the period
Total comprehensive income for the period

Comprehensive profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent
MNon-controlling interests

Comprehensive profil for the period;

Statement af eash flows
Far the nine-manth perlod ended 30 September

Cash flows from aperating activities

Profit for the period

Adiustments to veconcile profit to cash
recelpts fpayments)

Tax expensa

Finance cosls

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment loss on investment propertics

Impairment loss on investment in subsidiary

{Reversal of) non-current provisions for
employee benefit

Provision related 1o sales of properties

Cost of sales of properlics

Recognition of uncamed land rental income

Recognition of prepaid land rental

Sharc of profits of associates and joint ventures,
net of tax

Bad and doubtful debts expense

Write-off withholding tax deducted at source

Realised gain on sales of properties

Unrealized gains on sales of propedies o
assoCintes

{Guin) loss on disposal of building and equipment

[nterest income

Dividends income

Consolidated Separate
fingncinl statementy financial statements
2018 2017 2018 2017
(Unandited) (Unand ited)
{in thousand Baht)
067,664 246,745 164,615 2,390,615
(33,618} (43,851} - -
(33,648) (43,851) - o
(33,648) (43,851) - -
634,016 202,804 164,615 2,390,615
623,701 200,060 164 615 2390615
10,315 1,634 - .
634,016 202,894 164,615 2,390,615
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2018 2007 2018 2017
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
{in thousamd Beaki)
HOT 664 246,745 164,615 2390615
41,962 20,956 29,730 4,333
414,952 445,458 399721 453,368
406,877 A0 T4 78,491 51,584
20,195 - 15,325 *
- - 6,430 -
1,582 f, 140 (1.212) 3434
20,522 - - -
1,497 8533 56,157 394,529 56,157
(1466013 {37.799) (70,057 (11,388)
23,0094 23,094 i 5
(195,564) (173,578) - -
- 1,007 - 742
4,682 - - -
(2,69%) - - -
102,005 - - -
(20,975) (696) (1,341) (669)
(60,286) (69,383) (459,752) {143,971)
- - (55899)  (2,316.063)
215,209 i A00,580 318,142
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Statement of cash flows
For the nine-month period ended 30 Seprenther

Changes in operating assets and labilities

Trade accounts receivables and unbilled operating
leases receivahles

Other receivables

Financial lease receivables

{ther current assets

Other non-current assets

Trade aceounts payahle

Other payables

Provisions

Other current liabilitics

Employee benefit paid

Customer deposits

Uneamed land rental income

Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations

Met cash generated from operating

Tuxes paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cuash flows from investing activities

Decrease (increase) in current investments

Increase in investments in associales

Decrease (increase) in investments in subsidiaries

[ncrease in investments in joint ventures

Proceeds from repayment af shori-term loan to
related party

Payment for shorl-Lerm loan to related party

Proceeds fram repayment of long-term loan o
related party

Payment for long-term loan to related party

Proceeds from capital reduction

Acquisition of investment proporties under
development and available for rentfsale

Proceeds from sales of building and cquipmeni

Acquisitions of property, plant and eguipment

Cash paid for deposit from land acguisition

Acqnisitions of intangible assets

Interest received from subsidiaties

Dividends received

Interest received

Net cash from (used in) investing activilies

Cash flows from financing activitiex

Proceeds from issue of shares

Repayment in short-tenm loans

Repayment of short-terin loans (rom related
party

Repavment of long-term loans from related
party

Proceeds from long-term loan
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Notes to the linancial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Consolidated Separate
financial siatemenis financial statements
2018 2017 2018 2017
{Unaudited) {Unaudited)
{in thousard Baht)
(15,429) (7,857) (12,717} {4,683)
(51,130) (16,577) {237,728) 98,408
11,364 - - -
(24,824) 115,216 2,251 10,280
(13,763) 207 (5,335) 281
746 5,008 - -
73,608 {9,010 5,608 8,649
(2,586) - . .
{293,878) 209,161 {3,351) (2,904}
(1,148) {114} (1,148) (3T
11,497 14,733 18,274 (5,356)
234 653 - - -
4,926 (750} - -
2,682,305 1,238,422 266,524 422,769
(126,012} {49,092) (25436) (21,185}
2,563,293 1,189,730 241,088 401,584
586,600 (2,304,390} 630,000 (2,305,000)
(437,166) (1,091,173} - (1,091,173)
- - {2.201) 7,875,847
(108,285) (209,400} {108,885) -
2,400
(71,860) E
- - 2,470,000 195,000
. - (515,000) (12,116,500)
599251 - 546,331 -
(428.522) (1,029,341) (31,773) (12,828)
53,664 971 1,934 022
{5,432) (10,280} (2,029) (4,561}
i (6,000) : 4
(16,084) (107) {9,018) (89)
- - 414,562 281 440
526,350 225,263 384,016 2,316,063
56,817 56,326 41,646 51,125
826,573 (4,437,591) 3,819,683 (4.809,754)
- 13,230,000 - 13,230,000
- {2,030,000) - (2,030,000}
- (1,060,000) - (1,060,000}
- (783,766) - -
760,494 - - -
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the period [rom 1 January 2018 to 30 Septcmber 2018

Consolidated Separate
Statement of cash Dows financial statements financial statemenis
Faor the nine-month period ended 30 Sepiember 2018 2007 2018 207
{Unaudited) {Unandited)
(i thowsand Bahi)

Casl flows from fluancing activities {cont,)
Repayments of long-term loans - (1,032,391) - (692,391}
Proceeds from debentures 5,000,000 - 5,000, (00 -
Redemptions of debentures (4, 100,000) (4,020,000 (4, 100,000 {4,020, 000)
Dividends paid to ownoer of the Company (187.974) (146,740) (183 414) (146,740)
Interest paid (447,595)  _ (505,061) (431,773) (512,813)
Met cash from financing activities 1,024,927 3,652,042 254813 4,768,056
Met increase in cash and cash cquivalents 4.414,793 404,181 4,345,584 359,886
Cush and eash equivalents at 1 January 1518173 284,268 1,395,514 213911
Cash and cash cquivalents at 30 September 5,932,966 688,440 5,741,098 573,797
Non-caxh transactions
Transfers of investnent propertizs to property,

plant and equipment 6,490 11,590 - .
Transfers of uncellected lease receivables to

disposal groups classified as held for sale 197 - 197 -
Transfers of investment properties to property to

disposal groups classified as held for sale 1000466 - 589,760 -
Fayables for purchase of investment properics,

und property, plant and equipment QR 500 112,576 24,528 19,044
Transiers of deposits from customers (o

liabilities ncfuded in disposal groups

classified as held for sale A7 284 - 30,758 -
Transfers other receivable for subscribing of

shares capital of subsidiaries - - 204 289 -
Transfers advance expense to imvestment

properiics 1414 - - -
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TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss and assets and Iiabilities

2018 2017
For the ninc-month period ended 30 September (Unaudited)
(in million Baht)
FProfit
Total profit before income tax for reporlable segments 1,667 981
Unallocated amounts
Other income 158 107
Distribution costs and administrative expenscs {(644) {386)
Depreciation (150} {163)
Finance costs (415) {445)
Share of profits of investments in associales and joint ventures 196 174
Unrealised gains on sales of properties lo associate AL
Profit before income tax 710 268
30 September 30 September
2018 2017
{Unaudited}
(in million Baht)
Assets
Total assets for reportable segments 38,440 36318
Other assels 352 203
Investments in associates and joint ventures 4,207 4,139
Consolidated total assets 42,999 40,662
Liahilitics
Total liabilities for reportable segments 17.615 15,958
Other liabilities 4 1
Consolidated total liabilities 17,619 15,959
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CERTIFICATION OF THE ACCURACY OF AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION DETAILS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Audit fee
No. Company's name Auditor's name Audit fee (Baht)
1 TICON Industrial Connection Public Company | Ms. Patamavan Vadhanakul 1,300,000
2 | TICON Logistics Park Company Limited Ms. Patamavan Vadhanakul 1,550,000
3 | ECO Industrial Services Company Limited Ms. Patamavan Vadhanakul 500,000
4 | TICON Management Company Limited Ms. Kanokorn Phooriphanyawanit 600,000

Total Audit fee 3,950,000

Non-audit Fee

Non-audit fee (Baht)

Company’s name Non-audit Service provider

Amount paid Amount to be
service in the Year paid later
1 TICON Industrial Connection Project Terra KPMG Phoomchai 1,660,173 -
Public Company Business Advisory
Limited
2 TICON Industrial Connection TAX Assistance | KPMG Phoomchai 160,500 -
Public Company Tax Limited

Total Non-audit fee 1,820,673

The foregoing information:

@ is complete and accurate, and | certify that to the best of my knowledge there is no other remu-
neration paid by the Company to me and related persons and to the company | work for and
its related persons.

O is not complete and not accurate in respect of ............cooi,

After making any necessary adjustments to the information contained in this form, | hereby certify that
such information presents complete and accurate details of all Audit fees and Non-audit fees paid by
the Company to me and the audit firm that | work for.

ol Vol

(Ms. Patamavan Vadhanakul)
KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.
Auditor of TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited
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General Information

Name
Type of business
Registration number

Head office address

Tel:

Fax:

Website

E-mail address
Registered capital
Paid-up capital

Par value

TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited
Development of ready-built factories for rent
0107544000051 (Bor Mor Jor 666)

Suite 1308, 13/1" Floor, Sathorn City Tower,

175 South Sathorn Road, Thungmahamek, Sathorn, Bangkok 10120
(662) 679-6565

(662) 287-3153

www.ticon.co.th

ticon@ticon.co.th

Baht 2,751,213,562 (As at September 30, 2018)
Baht 1,834,142,375 (As at September 30, 2018)
Baht 1 per share
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Subsidiaries

Eco Industrial
Services Company
Limited

49/32 Moo 5,
Laemchabang Industrial
Estate, Tungsukhla,
Sriracha, Chon Buri
20230

Tel: (662) 679-6565
Fax: (662) 287-3153

Development
of ready-built

factories for rent
in Laemchabang
Industrial Estate

under BOI
Privileges

TICON

Thailand

THB
12,500,000

THB
12,500,000

THB 10

TICON Logistics Park
Company Limited

Suite 1308, 13/1" Floor,
Sathorn City Tower,
175 South Sathorn
Road,

Thungmahamek,
Sathorn, Bangkok
10120

Tel: (662) 679-6565
Fax: (662) 287-3153

Website
www.ticonlogistics.com
E-mail:
logistics@ticon.co.th

Development
of ready-built
warehouses
for rent

TICON

Thailand

THB
11,500,000,000

THB
11,500,000,000

THB 10

100

Shanghai TICON
Investment Management
Company Limited

Rm. A512, Building 4,
No.3288, Jinhai Road,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai, China

Investment
management

TICON

China

usD
2,800,000

usD
2,800,000

100

TICON Management
Company Limited

Suite 1308, 13/1" Floor,
Sathorn City Tower,

175 South Sathorn
Road, Thungmahamek,
Sathorn, Bangkok,10120

Tel: (662) 679-6565
Fax: (662) 287-3153

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform

REIT
manager

TICON

Thailand

THB
10,000,000

THB
10,000,000

THB 10
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Suite 1308, 13/1"
Floor,Sathorn City
Tower,175 South
Sathorn Road,
Thungmahamek,
Sathorn, Bangkok,
10120

Tel: (662) 679-6565
Fax: (662) 287-3153

business and
technology
based business

TICON (HK) Limited Investment TICON | China usD usD usD 100
company 16,130,000 16,130,000 1

Room 337,

3/F South China C.S.

Building, 13-17 Wah

Sing Street, Kwai Chung,

N.T. Hong Kong

TICON International Investment TICON | Singapore SGD SGD SGD 100

Pte. Ltd. company 238,453,999 | 238,453,999 1

80 Robinson Road,

#02-00, Singapore

068898

TICON Technology Investment in | TICON | Thailand THB THB THB 100

Company Limited data center 1,000,000 1,000,000 10

Associate Companies

Registered

Company /
Head office address

TICON Freehold and
Leasehold Real Estate
Investment Trust
(Investment by TICON
and TICON International
Pte. Ltd.)

Suite 1308, 13/1™ Floor,
Sathorn City Tower,

175 South Sathorn
Road, Thungmahamek,
Sathorn, Bangkok, 10120

Tel:
(662) 679-6565
Fax:
(662) 287-3153

Nature of
business

Industrial Real
Estate Trust
which invests in
freehold and
leasehold
industrial
properties

Share-
holder

TICON
and
TICON
Interna-
tional
Pte. Ltd.

Regis-
tered in

Thailand

capital

(As at September

30, 2018)

THB
25,173,622,620

Paid-up
capital

(As at September

30, 2018)

THB
25,173,622,620

Par

value
(Per
Share)

THB
9.5363

23

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform
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Company /

Head office address

Nature of
business

Registered

capital
(As at September
30, 2018)

Paid-up
capital

(As at September

30, 2018)

Par

value

(Per

Share)

Suite 1308, 13/1" Floor,
Sathorn City Tower, 175
South Sathorn Road,
Thungmahamek,
Sathorn, Bangkok
10120

Tel:
(662) 679-6565
Fax:
(662) 287-3153

Joint Ventures

PT SLP Surya TICON Development of | TICON Indonesia Rp Rp Rp 25
Internusa [Investment by | factories and (HK) 2,412,800,000,000 | 603,200,000,000 | 13,000
TICON (HK)] warehouses for
sale and rent in
Setiabudi Atrium Unit Indonesia
201 Lantai 2,
J1. H.R. Rasuna Said,
Kav. 62, Jakarta
12920, Indonesia
TRA Land Development | Development of | TICON Thailand THB THB THB 50
Co., Ltd. (Investment by | real estate 1,000,000 1,000,000 10
TICON) properties

TICON Demco Power 6
Company Limited
(Investment by TPARK)

59 Moo1, Tambon

Suan Prik Thai, Amphoe
Mueang, Pathum Thani
12000

Tel:

(662) 959-5811-5
Fax:

(662) 959-5822

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform
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Electricity
generating
company from
solar energy

TPARK

Thailand

THB 5,000,000

THB 5,000,000

THB
100
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TICON Demco Power | Electricity TPARK | Thailand THB THB THB 51

11 Company Limited | generating 4,000,000 4,000,000 100
(Investment by company from
TPARK) solar energy

59 Moo 1,Tambon
Suan Prik Thai,
Amphoe Mueang,
Pathum Thani 12000

Tel:

(662) 959-5811-5
Fax:

(662) 959-5822

TPARK BFTZ Development | TPARK | Thailand THB THB THB 60
Company Limited of warehouses 350,000,000 | 350,000,000 10
(Investment by for rent

TPARK)

Suite 1308, 13/1th
Floor, Sathorn City
Tower,

175 South Sathorn
Road, Thungma-
hamek, Sathorn,
Bangkok 10120

Tel:
(662) 679-6565
Fax:
(662) 287-3153

JustCo (Thailand) Co-working TICON | Thailand THB THB THB 51

Company Limited office and 213,500,000 | 213,500,000 100
Co-working

11/1 AIA Sathorn space

Tower, 9th Floor, business

South Sathron Road,
Yannawa, Sathorn,
Bangkok 10120

Tel:
(662) 055-8600
Fax:
(662) 055-8601

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform
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Other Related Persons

Share registrar

Auditor

The Leading Provider of
Smart Industrial Platform

Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited 62 The Stock
Exchange of Thailand Building, Ratchadaphisek Road,
Khlong Toei, Bangkok 10110

Tel:  (662) 229-2800
Fax:  (662) 359-1259

Miss Patamavan Vadhanakul, CPA (Thailand),
Registration No. 9832

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.

Empire Tower, 50" -51° Floors,

1 South Sathorn Road, Yannawa,

Sathorn, Bangkok 10120

Tel:  (662) 677-2000
Fax:  (662) 677-2222






TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited

Suite 1308, 13/1th Floor, Sathorn City Tower,
175 South Sathorn Road, Thungmahamek, Sathorn,
Bangkok 10120

Tel: (662) 679-6565 Fax: (662) 287-3153
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